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Chairman’s Statement

ERH®RS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Neway Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | would like to present to
shareholders the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

Year 2020 was a special year highlighted by the outbreak of
coronavirus disease 2019 (the "COVID-19") pandemic which suddenly
and dramatically changed the daily life of people and the business
environment all over the world. Together with the intensified dispute
between the United States (the “U.S.”) and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), the Group was therefore shadowed by additional
uncertainties and difficulties in respect of its operation and business
development. However, in light of the efficiency of the containment
policy of the COVID-19 pandemic and the speedy recovery of the
economy of the PRC, positive and favorable impact was brought to
those Hong Kong companies with operations in the PRC.

During the Year, the Group continued to put extra effort to expand
the markets of different business segments in overseas countries. The
Group will keep adhering to the diversification strategy in the coming
years, and expect that the performance will be gradually reflected in
all the business segments under the Group. For our Manufacturing
and Sales Business, the Group will accelerate our move in the field of
industrial intelligence for our production plants to enhance the overall
efficiency, which is also in the direction of the overall plan launched by
the central government of the PRC. Besides, the Group will revise our
plans carefully with reference to the reshuffle of global supply chain
and will step up our effort to identify and form partnerships with
different parties, including but not limited to material suppliers or
other manufacturing partners, to provide more value-added services
to our valuable clients.

In addition, given the increase in global money supply, the Group will
enrich its products mix and broaden its sales channels to maximize
the efficiency of fund application in an efficient way. For the Music
and Entertainment Business, the Group will promote and develop our
musical products and services by introducing advanced technologies
and bringing more brand new entertaining elements to fans and
audiences. The Group will also continue to license or acquire more
musical products of different types to provide a wider range of
options to customers.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERH®RS

The Group will adopt a more cautious manner to deal with the
increasing business and credit risks faced by different businesses, and
we will maintain a positive and enterprising attitude to expand our
business to leverage the increase in global money supply. Lastly, due
to the rapid changes of global economic and political situation over
these years, a number of business opportunities have been created
for our further development and expansion in different areas and
sectors notwithstanding the impact and challenge faced by traditional
industries. The Group will take these opportunities to expand our
business cautiously and increase the profit margin of different
segments.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincerest gratitude to all shareholders, investors, business
partners and staff for their continuous support and dedication to
the Group throughout the Year notwithstanding the unprecedented
challenges and difficulties we encountered.

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE R

OVERVIEW

During the Year, the Group was significantly and adversely affected
by the outbreak of the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
pandemic which seriously affected the global economy to different
extents. Restrictions on cross-border travel, lockdown of countries
and cities, and implementation of stay-at-home policies changed the
consumption behavior of people all over the world rapidly. The slack
economic environment and the increasing unemployment rate further
undermined the desire of consumption of all people. The turnover
and segment results of all business segments of the Group were
therefore inevitably affected. Meanwhile, the Group stepped up its
effort on the development of the industrial park project in Qingyuan
City, the PRC.

The business and financial review of each business segment is detailed
below.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Total Revenue from Continuing Operations and Gross
Profit Margin

During the Year, total revenue from continuing operations of
the Group was approximately HK$532.7 million (Year 2019:
approximately HK$560.6 million) and the gross profit margin was
approximately 25.0% (Year 2019: 27.1%). The contribution of each
business segment to the revenue from continuing operations of the
Group is as follows:

Approximate %
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to total to total
2020 revenue 2019 revenue
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HK$ HK$

BT BT
Lending Business BEXH 6,756,759 1.3% 8,491,405 1.5%
Manufacturing and Sales Business Ui R S8 E %55 486,079,273 91.2% 490,000,611 87.4%
Music and Entertainment Business 44y 1 44 255 4,071,062 0.8% 11,881,910 2.1%
Property Business MEZEH 4,880,323 0.9% 7,310,989 1.3%
Trading Business BRE% 30,887,078 5.8% 42,900,332 7.7%
Total revenue Bl 532,674,495 100.0% 560,585,247 100.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE R

Lending Business

The Lending Business included the financial leasing business in
Shanghai, the PRC and the money lending business in Hong Kong. For
the financial leasing business in Shanghai, no transaction was made
during the Year, and the Group is still identifying deals with promising
potential.

For the money lending business in Hong Kong, the outbreak of
COVID-19 worsened the economic environment in the territory
which in turn adversely affected the number and amount of new
loans granted by the Group. Though the Group was able to receive
the majority of interest income as scheduled, its loan portfolio
decreased to approximately HK$29.6 million as at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: HK$67.6 million). During the Year, the
interest income from loans decreased by approximately 20.4% to
approximately HK$6.8 million (Year 2019: HK$8.5 million), mainly due
to the decrease in loan portfolio during the Year. The segment loss of
the Lending Business was HK$26.9 million (Year 2019: segment profit
of HK$3.7 million), which was mainly due to the impairment loss of
approximately HK$30.6 million (Year 2019: HK$1.3 million) recorded
during the Year.

The impairment loss of approximately HK$30.6 million was made
for two outstanding loans of which the repayment of principal and
interest incurred therefrom was in default. Both loans were secured by
personal guarantee and/or share charges of a company incorporated
in Hong Kong principally engaged in property development business
in the PRC. During the Year, the financial situation of the borrowers
of the aforementioned loans was impaired due to the outbreak of
COVID-19, making them unable to repay the principal and interests
incurred therefrom as scheduled. The Group issued letters of demand
to these borrowers and actively negotiated with them to reach a
practical solution. The Group may consider executing the share charge
or taking further legal action if appropriate. As at the date of this
report, no settlement agreement was reached, and the Group will
continue the negotiations. Excluding the impairment loss mentioned
above, the segment margin was 55% for the Year (Year 2019: 59%).
As the majority of loans receivable were financed by internal resources
and only limited manpower was required for the daily operation of
the Lending Business, the Group could maintain low operating costs
and achieve a high profit margin accordingly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmRO

Manufacturing and Sales Business

This segment represented: i) the business of manufacturing and sales
of printing products, such as packaging boxes, labels, paper products
and paper shopping bags, with a worldwide customer base; and ii)
the manufacturing and sales of surgical masks, with a Hong Kong
customer base. The segment revenue decreased by approximately
0.8% to HK$486.1 million (2019: approximately HK$490.0 million)
and the segment profit decreased by 29.6% to approximately
HK$10.2 million (2019: approximately HK$14.5 million). The
operations and financial performance of each business are detailed
below.

i) Manufacturing and sales of printing products

During the Year, the Manufacturing and Sales Business
experienced an extremely difficult and challenging
environment. The outbreak of COVID-19 slowed down global
economic activities and undermined the desire of consumption
which directly affected the demand for printing products of
the Group. To cope with the severe economic condition, the
Group: (i) exercised extra caution in the evaluation of capital
investment in renovating factories and acquiring machineries;
(i) allocated resources to the automation of manufacturing
functions so as to lessen the required manpower; (i) worked
more closely with overseas and domestic customers to get
market updates and customer feedback to enhance product
quality and provide more value-added services to valuable
customers; (iv) continued to refine its product mix and
allocated more effort to expand the sales networks of products
with higher profit margins;, and (v) carefully reserved and
planned resources to meet the anticipated surge in demand for
printing products after the pandemic has been controlled.

Boasting the above measures, the segment revenue of this
business decreased by approximately 2.1% to HK$479.8
million for the Year (Year 2019: approximately HK$490.0
million), mainly attributable to the decrease in orders of
plastic printing products and paper shopping bags, which was
partially offset by the increase in sales of paper products to
existing overseas clients.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE R

The segment profit of this business for the Year decreased by
approximately 9.1% to approximately HK$13.2 million (Year
2019: approximately HK$14.5 million), mainly attributable to
the following factors:

()

(iii)

(iv)

Given the adjusted product mix, the material
consumption ratio increased by approximately 4.7% as
compared with Year 2019. Due to the slow economic
environment, the selling price of products decreased,
thus pushing up the material consumption ratio as the
material price did not decrease by the same extent.

The ratio of total staff costs and other related expenses
to sales for the Year decreased by approximately 2.0%
as compared with Year 2019. The decrease in staff cost
was mainly due to:(i) the waiver of social insurance
payment by the PRC government of approximately
HK$6.6 million; and (ii) the decrease in headcount of
staff due to the automation of certain manufacturing
procedures and the increased efficiency of new printing
machines.

Rental and related expenses increased by approximately
HK$1.7 million, mainly due to increased rental expenses
and forfeiture of rental deposit for a leased factory
in Dongguan, the PRC. As disclosed in the Group’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2019 Annual Report”), the Group terminated the
rental agreement with the landlord and reallocated the
production lines to its self-owned factory in Shenzhen,
the PRC.

The negative impact of decrease in segment revenue
and segment profit margin of this business was partially
offset by the increase in government subsidies received
in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the Year, one-off
government subsidies for COVID-19 and the trade war
between the U.S. and the PRC totalling approximately
HK$7.6 million were received and recorded under other
income in the financial statement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE R

i)  Manufacturing and sales of surgical masks

During the Year, the Group started a new business, namely the
manufacturing and sales of surgical masks. Two production
lines were established and half a floor within the Fanling
Building (as defined below) was renovated as a clean room for
the business. The revenue of this business was approximately
HK$6.3 million whereas the loss was approximately HK$3.0
million.

Music and Entertainment Business

Revenue from this segment mainly consisted of income from concerts
and shows, artist management fee income, album distribution
income, promotion income and musical work licensing income.

The revenue of this segment decreased significantly by approximately
65.7% to HK$4.1 million (Year 2019: approximately HK$11.9 million)
and the segment loss for the Year was approximately HK$8.5 million
(Year 2019: approximately HK$7.2 million).

The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the following
factors:

(i) No revenue from concerts and shows was received during the
Year (Year 2019: approximately HK$3.2 million). Due to the
outbreak of COVID-19, nearly all shows and concerts in Hong
Kong were cancelled or suspended to avoid the gathering of
people.

(ii) The artiste management income decreased by approximately
94.1% to HK$58,000 (Year 2019: approximately HK$987,000)
because many functions and events were cancelled due to the
outbreak of COVID-19.

(iii) The sales and distribution of albums decreased by
approximately 78.2% to HK$830,000 (Year 2019:
approximately HK$3.8 million) because the slow economic
environment undermined the desire of consumption, especially
for non-essential products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmRO

Property Business
Property development business

The Group had two property development projects as at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: two). For the year ended 31 December
2020, one project involved EEMHEREMERZERAE
(unofficial English name: Qingyuan Zhongging Property Development
Co., Ltd.) (“Zhongqing”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and the other involved 2 A ENRI (&%) B FRA 7 (unofficial
English name: Zhongda Printing (Qingyuan) Company Limited)
("Zhongda Qingyuan”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, one project involved
Zhongging and the other involved W) HEEMEFEAT
(unofficial English translation: Sichuan Yinghua Real Estate Co.
Ltd.) (“Yinghua”) which was disposed of to another shareholder of
Yinghua in 2019. Further information of Yinghua was disclosed in the
2019 Annual Report.

Zhongging held the land use right of two commercial land parcels
in Qingyuan, the PRC. On 18 June 2014, ZFIIHHEREREKE
ERAMRAE (unofficial English name: Shenzhen Zhongxing
Guosheng Investment Development Co., Ltd.) (“Zhongxing
Guosheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, initiated
civil proceedings against Zhongging in the People’s Court of Baoan
District (the “Court”) for, among other matters, the repayment of
the shareholder’s loan contributed by Zhongxing Guosheng in an
amount of RMB23,479,330 (the “Litigation”). On 19 June 2014,
pursuant to an application made by Zhongxing Guosheng for
freezing and preserving the assets of Zhongging with a total value of
RMB23,400,000, an order was granted by the Court to freeze and
preserve the two land parcels owned by Zhongging from 24 June
2014 to 23 June 2016 (the “Freeze Order”), aiming to ensure that
Zhongging would have sufficient assets to repay the shareholder’s
loan to the Group.
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Two hearing sessions of the Litigation were held on 18 August 2014
and 25 September 2014 respectively. On 15 October 2014, the Group
received a civil mediation document dated 30 September 2014 (the
"Document”) from the Court, acknowledging that: (i) the Group and
Zhongging confirmed that Zhongqging was indebted to Zhongxing
Guosheng in a sum of RMB23,479,330; (i) Zhongging agreed to
repay to Zhongxing Guosheng a sum of RMB23,479,330, together
with interests accrued from 18 June 2014 to the date of repayment,
which was within 15 days of the effective date of the Document; and
(iii) where Zhongging failed to repay the agreed amount, Zhongxing
Guosheng was entitled to request Zhongqging to pay default interests
calculated at two times of the lending rate of the People’s Bank of
China over the same period.

As advised by the Group’s legal advisers in the PRC, the effective date
of the Document was 15 October 2014 and thus, the deadline for
repayment by Zhongging was 30 October 2014. As at 30 October
2014, Zhongging did not repay the outstanding shareholder’s loan
and accrued interests to Zhongxing Guosheng.

On 27 May 2016, Zhongxing Guosheng submitted an application to
the Court for the extension of the period covered by the Freeze Order
and the application was accepted. The extended period covered by
the Freeze Order started on 13 June 2016 and ended on 12 June
2019. In May 2019, Zhongxing Guosheng submitted an application
to the Court again for the further extension of the period covered by
the Freeze Order and the application was accepted accordingly. The
further extended period covered by the Freeze Order started on 13
May 2019, and will end on 12 May 2022.

During the Year, no further action was taken by the Group. The Group
will closely monitor the property market and the development plan
of Qingyuan and will take further action if necessary. Currently, the
Group is still seeking the opportunity to dispose of the land parcels.
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The Group, through Zhongda Qingyuan, owned a land parcel in
Qingyuan, the PRC, with a total area of approximately 208,000 square
metres (“sqm”) and planned to construct a biomedical industrial park
with an array of industrial buildings, commercial buildings, apartments
and dormitories. The buildings thereon were intended for lease or
sale to research institutions and relevant enterprises in the biomedical
industry. The plan was approved by the Guangdong Qingyuan High-
Tech Industrial Development Zone Management Office in March 2020
and was highly supported by the Qingyuan government.

Construction work of the first industrial building commenced in
July 2020 and its gross floor area was approximately 22,000 sgm,
representing around 5% of the planned gross floor area of the
land parcel. As at 31 December 2020, approximately 10.5% of
construction work was completed according to the supervision report
prepared by the independent construction supervision company
engaged by Zhongda Qingyuan. Construction work of the first
industrial building is expected to be completed by the end of April
2021. The corresponding sales and marketing activities commenced
before the Chinese New Year of 2021, and the Group is taking an
active role in negotiating the terms with certain potential buyers and
tenants.

Property investment business

During the Year, the property investment business included: (i) the
mini storage business operated by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and (i) the leasing of several commercial units in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

Mini storage business

The ground floor, 1st floor, 2nd floor and half of the floor area of
the 4th floor of a self-owned industrial building in Fanling, Hong
Kong (the “Fanling Building”) are used for the operation of the mini
storage business. As at 31 December 2020, the occupancy rate of the
storage units further decreased to approximately 57% (Year 2019:
approximately 61%) due to the worsened economic environment
of Hong Kong. Approximately 36.9% of revenue of the Property
Business was derived from the mini-storage business.
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Since Year 2018, in order to meet the safety requirements stipulated
by relevant government authorities, the ground floor and 1st floor
of the Fanling Building were renovated. As at 31 December 2020,
the renovation was complete and pending a final inspection by the
relevant government authorities, which was expected to be further
delayed due to COVID-19.

Property leasing and investment

The property leasing business involved two properties. The first one
was a commercial property in Yuen Long, Hong Kong (the “Yuen
Long Property”). It was leased to an independent third party as at
31 December 2020. During the Year, due to the adverse economic
impact arising from the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group provided
the tenant with a rental concession totalling at HK$1,295,000.
Approximately 53.1% of revenue of the Property Business was derived
from the Yuen Long Property.

The second one was a commercial property in Beijing, the PRC (the
“Beijing Property”). During the Year, the Beijing Property was leased
to an independent third party and the annual rental income was
approximately HK$490,000.

According to the Group’s accounting standard, the Fanling Building,
the Yuen Long Property and the Beijing Property were classified as
investment properties of the Group and were carried at market value.
A fair value loss of approximately HK$9.9 million was recorded in
“other gains and losses” of the Group during the Year (Year 2019:
fair value loss of HK$18.0 million). The fair value loss was mainly due
to the decrease in market value of the Yuen Long Property, which was
caused by the drop in rental value of surrounding areas.

Trading Business

Revenue from the Trading Business decreased significantly to
approximately HK$30.9 million (Year 2019: approximately HK$42.9
million) while the segment profit margin dropped to approximately
5.4% (Year 2019: 15.4%), mainly attributable to: (i) the suspension
of large-scale construction and renovation work in Hong Kong, which
was one of the primary income sources of this business.; and (ii) the
increase in operation cost of a trading company in the PRC resulting
from the Group's expansion of its sales and operation teams in the
PRC.
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Securities Trading and Equity Investments Business

The Group's equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss (“FVTPL") as at 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately HK$40.9 million (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$82.7 million). During the Year, the Group recorded
a fair value loss in investments of securities listed in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$32.5 million (Year 2019: approximately HK$15.2
million), a realized loss of approximately HK$5.7 million (Year 2019:
approximately HK$537,000) and a dividend income of approximately
HK$529,000 (Year 2019: approximately HK$1.1 million).

The Group’s investments as at 31 December 2020 included
securities of 9 listed companies on the Main Board or GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
investment in an offshore investment fund and a Hong Kong private
company. The carrying amount of each of the Group's investments
accounted for less than 5% of the Group’s audited total assets as
at 31 December 2020. The largest investment was the investment
in an offshore investment fund named Zhong Wei Capital L.P.
("Zhong Wei"), which represented 1.33% of the total share capital
of Zhong Wei. Its fair value as at 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$17.5 million, representing approximately 1.5% of
the Group's audited total assets as at 31 December 2020.

The Group will carefully study the market and the information related
to prospective investees before purchasing any securities, and will
closely monitor the performance of the investments after acquisition
as well as revise the investment strategy in a cautious manner as and
when necessary to minimize the impact of market volatility.
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Hthim R 518

Other gains and losses for the Year mainly comprised the following KEEEMKEZEEBEEFTEGIEUT
items: HH .
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Change in fair value of financial assets FEREmEATEIRS
at FVTPL (Note d) TREENATEEE
(B15#d) (32,529,639) (21,840,204)
Change in fair value of investment properties & E#) M A FEEH)
(Note b) (HizEb) (9,917,231) (17,966,974)
Gain recognized in respect of loans %Jﬁ%%é%’&jféf?ﬂ
to joint ventures (Note ¢) B (Y aEc) - 1,775,100
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note a) HE—RWBAR Z W
(Htzta) - 11,807,968
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain SNEE (B518) Wi /358 (8,151,710) 980,712
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME -BEREZEN
plant and equipment W za 73R8 322,912 619,578
Total 485t (50,275,668) (24,623,820)
Notes: et -
(a) On 28 March 2019, Dream Class Limited (“Dream Class”) and Grand (a) RNIE—NE=ZBZ+NH XxRAFIZ2E

Prospects Finance International Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, Kwong Da Enterprises Limited, Kada Capital
Investments Limited and the common director of Kwong Da and Kada
entered into a confirmation deed for the settlement and completion
arrangement for the disposal of Star Rank Limited (“Star Rank”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dream Class which held 16.67%
equity interest of Yinghua, to Kwong Da. Grand Prospects signed
a loan agreement with Kada which held 83.33% equity interest of
Yinghua to provide a 2-year loan to Kada at an amount equal to
the outstanding consideration of RMB21,693,205, bearing interest
calculated at 10.5% per annum. Upon signing of the loan agreement,
the disposal of Star Rank was completed on 23 December 2019 and
Dream Class ceased control on Star Rank since then.

The fair value loss of investment properties was mainly related to the
Yuen Long Property. For the reason of such loss, please refer to the
business and financial review of the Property Business stated above.
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(0 For the Year 2019, the Group recognized a gain in respect of its loan

to Estate Summit Limited, a joint venture of the Group.

(d) The change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL consisted of
the fair value loss of securities traded in the Stock Exchange of
approximately HK$32.5 million (Year 2019: HK$15.2 million) and
the fair value loss of financial derivative derived from Yinghua of

approximately HK$6.7million for Year 2019.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL

STRUCTURE

The following table sets out the Group’s current ratio, quick ratio and

gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

(0) RIE—NEE AEBMRELTAER
&8 /N BlEstate Summit LimitedZ & &g

Bt o

(d) RIE—NEE BSBRERBATETER
ZEMEEZ ATEEZHBIENE
BEZHH AT EEE432,500,00058
T (CZE—HEE 15,200,000 7T) K3
EERMEELEZERTETAEZATE
[E518496,700,00038 7T ©

RBEE BXERRESE
18

TERIAEER B -BE+ 5
=+—BAR-E—AF+-A=+—
AR % B L R S E A L

=

= .
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RIZEZEHFE N TE—RF
+=-—H=+—H +-B=+—H
Notes HK$ HK$
g3 BT 7
Current ratio REEEE (a) 2.6 2.6
Quick ratio REEEE (b) 1.9 2.3
Gearing ratio EEBMBLIXE (c) 18.1 18.5
Notes: VoEza
(@ Current ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets by total (a) L RLIREREERERFNE TS
current liabilities as at the end of respective year. BEGRUERESBETE
(b) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets less inventories (b) R RLIBEREERERFNE TS
and properties under development for sale by total current liabilities as BERGERGEZRRBIYERLLER
at the end of respective year. FEEsTEo

(0) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity
as at the end of respective year and then multiplying it by 100%. Total
borrowings include: (i) the amount due to a related company, (ii) bank
borrowings, (iii) the amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a

subsidiary; and (iv) lease liabilities.
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HAEEPR A R AR BB SR L 100% 5T & ©
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$228.9 million
(31 December 2019: approximately HK$232.2 million) and total
borrowings of approximately HK$150.2 million (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$164.0 million).

Total borrowings included: (i) the amount due to a related company;
(i) bank borrowings; (iii) the amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary; and (iv) lease liabilities. The amount due
to a related company was unsecured, payable after five years and
carried interests at fixed-interest rates ranging from 18%-20% per
annum. Secured bank borrowings were payable within two years
and carried interest at the Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate plus
1.25% to 2.5% per annum. The amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. Lease liabilities carried incremental borrowing rates
ranging from 4.4% to 5.4% per annum.

All borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and RMB and
the majority of cash and cash equivalents was denominated in RMB,
Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars.

The current ratio and quick ratio indicated an ample cash flow and a
stable liquidity position as at 31 December 2020. The gearing ratio of
the Group decreased from 18.5% to 18.1% as at 31 December 2020,
mainly due to the decrease in total borrowings of the Group. The
decrease in total borrowings of the Group was mainly attributable to
the repayment of term loans from the bank.

The Group generally finances its operation with cash flows generated
internally and bank facilities obtained in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Taking into account the amount of funds expected to be generated
internally and the available banking facilities, the Group will have
adequate resources to meet its future capital expenditure and working
capital requirements. The Group will continue to implement a prudent
policy in managing cash balances, thereby maintaining a strong and
healthy liquidity level to capitalize any potential business opportunity.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking forward to the year ending 31 December 2021 (the "Year
2021"), it is expected that the Group will be challenged by all sorts
of adversities as the global market continues to be shadowed by
economic and political uncertainties, including the prolonged trade
dispute between the U.S. and the PRC, the increasing unemployment
rate, the political unrest in Hong Kong and the COVID-19 pandemic
that will continue to cast a negative impact on every business
sector of the world. Accordingly, the recovery progress of the global
economy is unpredictable. In order to cope with these complicated
and difficult situations, the Group will carefully revise the strategy
for all its business segments, as well as diversify and expand the
businesses in a cautious way.

Lending Business

Given the economic uncertainty around the globe and the keen
market competition, the Group will take calculated risks when
expanding the loan portfolio for the Lending Business. The Group
will continue to equip the operational function of the online money
lending platform with more fin-tech elements, identify new customers
and allocate more financial resources to expand the business scale
by enlarging the loan portfolio. Meanwhile, due to the deteriorated
economic environment caused by COVID-19, the Group will continue
to carefully review its credit system to cope with the rapidly changing
market.

Manufacturing and Sales Business and Trading Business

Year 2021 will continue to be an extremely challenging year, especially
for the Manufacturing and Sales Business of printing products. The
political and economic tensions between the PRC and other countries,
such as the United States and Australia, will further intensify the
economic uncertainty which may negatively affect the demand for
and supply of China-made products and further shift the sales orders
from the PRC to other Asian countries. The impact will continue
affecting the financial performance of the Group, and is expected to
persist in Year 2021. In addition, the effectiveness of viable vaccines
for COVID-19 is still uncertain and the possibility of further waves of
outbreak in any country may further slow the recovery of the global
economy. Furthermore, the rapid and continuous increase in material
price since the end of Year 2020 will undermine the profit margin of
the business. Accordingly, it will not be easy for the Group to deliver
the annual budget target set for Year 2021.
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All of the above factors will negatively affect both export and
domestic sales of this business segment to varying extents. As a result,
the Group will carefully revise its sales strategy in the expansion of
these market segments and spare sufficient cash flow to cope with
any sudden or prolonged adverse situation beyond its expectation.
The Group will also continue to acquire new printing machines and
ancillary equipment for the expanded production line to increase the
production efficiency and lower the defect rate in production activities
in a cautious way. Besides, certain portions of the factories will be
renovated and the automation of certain manufacturing processes will
be enhanced to boost the overall efficiency of the factories.

Quality management and enhancement and credit control on
receivables will continue to be the top priorities of the Manufacturing
and Sales Business in Year 2021. The Group will further enhance
the total quality management of all levels by setting more task
groups for different improvement areas and the Chung Tai Academy
platform has been established in Year 2020 to promote the learning
atmosphere within the Group. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to
spare dedicated resources to expand the luxury packaging and paper
product segment which enjoys a higher profit margin. Although the
uncertainty of the global economy is expected to persist in Year 2021,
the Group will take this opportunity to diversify into the target market
sectors with tightened and prudent control on operating costs.

In addition, to cope with the challenges experienced by the printing
industry and to maintain the profitability of this segment, the
Group will continue to step up its efforts on the following aspects:
(i) efficiency and effectiveness enhancement by streamlining the
production process of its factories to reduce operation and production
wastage; (i) talent recruitment, provision of value-added services and
continuous upgrade of its technology infrastructure; (iii) procurement
of alternative materials, verification of their quality and negotiation
with vendors for more favourable terms; (iv) market expansion to
cover high value products and explore any long term cooperation
or joint venture opportunities with other industry players to extend
the production capacity of the factories; and (v) allocation of more
resources to facilities upgrade and recruitment of skilled labours to
meet the varied requirements of clients. All the strategies adopted by
the Group will further equip it with strength and core competence to
tackle unknown challenges in the coming years.

For the Trading Business, the Group will continue to spare more
resources to expand and develop the sales team in Hong Kong and
the PRC so as to broaden the clientele and optimize the product mix.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmRO

Music and Entertainment Business

The persistence of COVID-19 will continue to post a negative impact
on the Music and Entertainment Business in Year 2021. The Group
will allocate more financial resources to expand the music licensing
business by acquisition or via licensing of existing catalogues from
other song master owners. In Year 2019, the Group was contracted to
produce a famous overseas talent show by working with independent
parties to film the show in the Greater Bay Area of the PRC.
Although promotional activities of this TV show have been delayed
by COVID-19, the Group, together with the independent parties
mentioned above, will resume the production of the show when the
pandemic subsides. The contract period has been further extended
for 1 year. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to devote financial
resources to produce and release physical albums and, if appropriate,
invest in potential projects in the PRC and overseas.

Property Business

In respect of the property development business, apart from the
possible disposal or development of the commercial land parcels held
by Zhongging in Qingyuan as mentioned in the business and financial
review section of the Property Business above, the construction work
of the first industrial building in the biomedical industry park held by
Zhongda Qingyuan is expected to be completed by the end of April
2021. The Group intends to submit the construction plan of gross
floor area of approximately 100,000 sgm to the local government for
approval in the second quarter of Year 2021, and the construction
work is expected to be commenced by the end of Year 2021. The
management of the Group is currently reviewing the design of the
industry park and the target 100,000 sgm. Meanwhile, the Group will
allocate more financial resources in the sales and marketing of the
industry park for the potential buyers and tenants. Meanwhile, the
Group is also actively seeking cooperation opportunities with third
parties to co-develop or invest in the industrial park as planned.

In respect of the property investment business, the Group completed
the renovation of mini-storage spaces on the ground floor and 1st
floor of the Fanling Building, and is pending approval from relevant
government authorities, which is expected to be further delayed due
to COVID-19. The Group will allocate more marketing resources to
promote the mini-storage business and facilitate a rebound of the
decreased occupancy rate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmRO

Securities Trading Business

The Group expects the fair value of equity securities listed in Hong
Kong may keep fluctuating in the foreseeable future due to the
volatile global economy. In light of this, the Group will closely monitor
the general market and market data related to prospective investees
before committing to any securities investment, and will pay attention
to the performance of the investments after purchasing as well as
make necessary adjustment to the investment strategy in a cautious
manner so as to alleviate the impact of extreme market swings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's sales and purchases were mainly denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars. Except for RMB,
there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rate of Hong
Kong dollars and U.S. dollars during the Year. The management will
closely monitor the foreign exchange rate risk of RMB and identify
the significant adverse impact (if any) on the Group’s operations in
the PRC. The Group did not use any financial instrument for hedging
purpose during the Year and it did not have any outstanding hedging
instrument as at 31 December 2020. The Group will consider using
appropriate hedging solutions when necessary.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, capital expenditure of the Group for property,
plant and equipment and properties under development for
sales amounted to approximately HK$48.3 million (Year 2019:
approximately HK$66.7 million) and approximately HK$4.6 million
(Year 2019: Nil) respectively. The capital expenditure for the Year was
mainly attributable to the acquisition of machineries for production
in the PRC, the renovation work of a factory in Shenzhen and the
construction work conducted on the industrial park in Qingyuan City,
the PRC.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$2.5 million (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$20.3 million) which had been contracted for but had not been
provided for in the financial statements for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment. The Group did not have any capital
commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
that had been authorised but not contracted for in both reporting
periods. The Group expects to finance the capital commitments by
internal resources.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmRO

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged leasehold building
and investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$205.4 million (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$217.0 million) to secure the mortgage loan of certain investment
properties and general banking facilities granted to the Group. Save
as aforesaid, no other assets were pledged by the Group as at 31
December 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the share capital and capital structure of the
Company during the Year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 1,460 full-
time employees (31 December 2019: approximately 1,520). Total
staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the Year were
approximately HK$155.2 million (Year 2019: approximately HK$162.4
million).

The remuneration schemes of the Group are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and the qualifications of the
employees, and the reward packages, including discretionary bonus,
for staff members are generally reviewed on an annual basis according
to the performance of the Group and respective staff members. Apart
from salary payment and contributions to retirement benefit schemes,
other staff benefits include participation in share option scheme
and medical insurance for eligible employees. In-house and external
training programmes are also provided as and when required.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There was no significant event affecting the Group that had occurred
since the end of the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEERAHRS

The Board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

The Company acknowledges the important roles of the Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company operations. The Board recognises that good corporate
governance practices are vital to maintain and promote shareholder
value and investor confidence and has adopted the code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (”Listing Rules”). The Company
is committed to enhancing and reviewing its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that they align with the latest
development of the Group.

In the opinion of the Board, save for the deviations disclosed in
this Corporate Governance Report, the Company has applied the
principles of and complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the Year.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company and in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to the shareholders
of the Company. Every Director carries out his duty in good faith in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and regulations and
acts in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
at all times.

Board Composition

The Board comprises eight members during the Year and as at
the date of this Corporate Governance Report, which include
two executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience necessary for
independent decision-making.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRER/HRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Executive Directors:
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan

Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky

Mr. CHU Gun Pui

Alternate Director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
the following members during the Year and up to the date of this
Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman)
Mr. WONG Sun Fat
Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRER/HRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprises the following members during the Year and
up to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman)
Mr. WONG Sun Fat
Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky

The names of the Directors on the relevant dates are disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “Chief Executive Officer”), is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”). The detailed
relationships among members of the Board are disclosed under the
section headed "Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 45 to 49.

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to (i) the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise; and (ii) the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRER/HRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
existing independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all existing independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules.

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive Directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
different persons in order to preserve independence and a balanced
judgement of views. The Chairman, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, is
primarily responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established.

The Chairman has encouraged all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead to ensure that
it acts in the best interests of the Company. Directors with different
views are encouraged to voice their concerns and they are allowed
sufficient time to discuss issues in meetings to ensure that Board
decisions fairly reflect Board consensus.

During the Year, the Chairman has held meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the executive Directors
present. The Chairman has ensured that appropriate steps are
taken to provide effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and that their views are communicated to the Board as a
whole.

The Chairman has promoted a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive Directors in
particular and ensuring constructive relations between the executive
and non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEERAHRS

THE BOARD (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Continued)

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, is responsible for
running the Company’s businesses and developing and implementing
the Group's strategic plans and business goals.

Despite that the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman are uncle
and nephew, they consider issues and make decisions independently.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the existing non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan was appointed for a term of three
years from 5 April 2019 to 4 April 2022, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky was
appointed for a term of three years from 19 April 2020 to 18 April
2022, and Mr. CHU Gun Pui was appointed for a term of three
years from 23 June 2020 to 22 June 2022. Save for the above, all
other non-executive Directors have a term of appointment which
commenced from 1 April 2019 and will continue for a period of three
years until 31 March 2022. The term of appointment of each Director
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) and the Listing Rules and
the terms and conditions of their respective letters of appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Bye-laws and the nomination policy
adopted by the Company in December 2018. Please refer to the
paragraph headed “Nomination of Directors” below for further details
of the nomination policy of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRER/HRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The Directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with
the legal and regulatory developments and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Briefings
and professional development trainings will be arranged for the
Directors whenever necessary.

Professional Training for Directors

Each of the existing Directors, namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr.
SUEK Chai Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren,
Mr. WONG Sun Fat, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky, Mr.
CHU Gun Pui and Mr. LAU Kam Cheong confirmed to the Company
that he had complied with provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the
Year by reading all materials provided by the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) and/or attending trainings on
the topics relating to the updates on the new requirements under the
Listing Rules launched by professional parties.

Company Secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan joined the Group as the Company Secretary
since 23 August 2010. Acting as the Company Secretary, Ms.
CHEUNG Yuk Shan reports to the Board and is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters. She has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings

Board practices and conduct of meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings were served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings during the Year. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notices were given. All Directors
were given an opportunity to included matters in the agenda for
discussion.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRER/HRS

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings (Continued)

Board practices and conduct of meetings (Continued)

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information were sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting during the Year to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest development and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The
Board and each Director also had separate and independent access to
the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. During the Year,
draft minutes containing significant detail for any decision and
recommendation made during the meetings were normally circulated
to the Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version was open for the Directors’ inspection.

The Bye-laws contain provisions, with certain permitted exemptions,
requiring Director(s) to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Director(s) or any of their respective associates have a material
interest.
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EXRER/HRS

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings (Continued)

Directors’ attendance records

During the Year, the Board held four meetings, two of which were
regular Board meetings for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance of the Group. The Company did not
announce its quarterly results and hence did not consider the holding
of quarterly meetings necessary.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, the Board committees and at the general meetings of the
Company for the Year is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of meetings
held during the Year
REFEHERY,ERETRY

Special Annual
General General
Meeting Meeting
held on held on
Audit Remuneration 4 May 24 June
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee 2020 2020
RIZZ2E RITZEE
FBMA ANBAZ+MH
2172 272
e - ENZEY FMEEE REFIAT RRBERE
Executive Directors HITEE
~ Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Emie —EEBEE 44 N/A N/A 1/1 11
(Chairman) (/) TEH TEH
~Mr. SUEK Chai Hong —BEELRE 44 N/A N/A 1/1 11
(Chief Executive Officer) ({TEH#EH) TEH TEHR
Non-executive Directors EHITES
- Dr. NG Wai Kwan -REHEELT 4/4 N/A N/A 1”1 11
A TEH
— Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren —iAt L 404 N/A N/A 111 101
TEH TEH
— Mr. WONG Sun Fat —EMELE 44 2 212 1N 17
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHNTES
- Mr. LEE Kwok Wan -FHRERE 4/4 212 212 1”1 17
~ Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky —BHMLE 4/4 212 212 11 11
- Mr. CHU Gun Pui —RENRE 4/4 N/A N/A 1”1 17
TER TER
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EXRER/HRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
was noted by the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for
Directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising from corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

DELEGATION

In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision making in all
major matters of the Company including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, the setting of objectives and overall strategies,
internal controls and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those may involve a conflict of interests), appointment
of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the designated officers. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board before the designated officers enter into any
significant transactions and they have the Board’s full support in the
discharge of their responsibilities.
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DELEGATION (Continued)

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the investment
management committee (the “Investment Management Committee”)
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs. All Board
committees are established with defined written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Mr. LAl Sai Wo,
Ricky, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun Fat, the
majority of which was independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his
associates will participate in deciding such Director's remuneration.
Remuneration of each Director is determined by reference to the
Group's operating results, the duties and responsibilities of the
Director within the Company, the performance of the Director
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer in relation to its proposals relating to the
remuneration of the executive Directors and shall have access to
professional advice at the Company's expense, if necessary.
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EEERAHRS

DELEGATION (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
to review the remuneration of the existing Directors and senior
management and made recommendation to the Board in relation
thereto.

The written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee is
posted on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk)
and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively and are
available to shareholders upon request.

Investment Management Committee

For the purpose of effective and timely management of the
investment matters of the Company, and in order to cope with
the Company's business development in the future, a committee
of the Board known as the Investment Management Committee
was established in March 2014 for identifying, assessing and
analysing all investment opportunities for the Group and to make
recommendations on acquisition and/or disposal of the Group to the
Board from time to time.

The Investment Management Committee comprises four members,
namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman), Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, and Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan throughout
the Year and up to the date of this Corporate Governance Report,
all of whom possess experience and familiarity with financial and
investment analysis.

During the Year, the Investment Management Committee held two
meetings and all members of the Investment Management Committee
attended such meetings.
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EXRER/HRS

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not established a nomination committee which is in
deviation of Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.5 of the CG Code. At present,
the Company does not consider it necessary to have a nomination
committee as the full Board is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the appointment of new
Directors from time to time, so as to ensure that it has a balanced
composition of candidates appropriate for the requirements of the
businesses of the Company. The Board as a whole is also responsible
for assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in
particular the chairman of the Board.

Since December 2018, the Company has adopted a nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) for the nomination of directors so as to
ensure the Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution
of the Company’s business strategy and in order for the Board to be
effective.

The Board has primary responsibility for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and making
recommendations to shareholders of the Company for election
as Directors at general meetings or appoint Directors to fill casual
vacancies, and in carrying out this responsibility, will give adequate
consideration to the Nomination Policy.

According to the Nomination Policy, Board appointments will be
made on merit and candidates will be considered against an objective
criteria. In assessing the suitability of a proposed Director, the Board
will consider the candidate’s academic background and qualifications;
experience in the industry; character and integrity; willingness and
capacity to devote adequate time in the discharge of a director’s
duties; and will also consider whether the candidate can contribute
to the Board a diversity of perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

Any Board member may nominate or invite a candidate for
appointment as a Director for consideration. The Board shall evaluate
the personal profile of each of the candidates based on the criteria
as set out in the Nomination Policy. The Board shall also undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of each candidate and make
recommendation for the Board's consideration and approval.
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EXRER/HRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management, reviewing the policies and
practices of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and developing and reviewing and monitoring the codes
of conduct applicable to employees and Directors. During the Year,
the Board reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy since 1 September
2013 (the "Board Diversity Policy”). In assessing the Board
composition, the Board would consider various aspects set out in
the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, knowledge, professional
experience and skills. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and the contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the
Board. Despite the Board does not consist of any female members as
at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the Board considers
that an appropriate balance of diversity in terms of experience and
knowledge of the Board has been maintained.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements (Continued)

The management has provided all Directors with monthly updates
containing such explanation and information to the Board so as to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information put to the Board for approval and the financial position of
the Company.

Further explanation as to how the Company generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the
Company's objectives is set out under “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 6 to 23 of this report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Group complied with Provision C.2 of the CG
Code by maintaining appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The management of the Company is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
system while the Board oversees the management in performing its
duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management
and internal control systems are described below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

o Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and monitor the residual risks on
an on-going basis.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the Year, no
significant risk was identified.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (the “COSO”) 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:

o Control environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group;

o Risk assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed;

o Control activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks for the achievement of objectives are carried out;

o Information and communication: Internal and external
communications to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of the internal control system is
present and functioning.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Control System (Continued)

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements
an inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable
measures have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent a breach of disclosure requirement in
relation to the Group, which include:

o the access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

o confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations; and

o the executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the Year, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Audit Function

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An |IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually, covering a period of each financial year
and the results are reported to the Board via the Audit Committee
afterwards.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring that a review of the effectiveness
of these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have
been considered during the Board's review, which include but are not
limited to (i) changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since
the last annual review and the Group's ability to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment; and (ii) the scope and
quality of management’s on-going monitoring of risks and of the
internal control systems.

The Board and the IA function conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems during the Year.
The Board, through its review and the review made by the IA function
and the Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate. Such systems,
however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
was also considered that the resources, qualifications and experience
of relevant staff were adequate and the training programs and budget
provided were sufficient.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee

As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the Audit
Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky,
and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun Fat, the
majority of which was independent non-executive Directors (including
at least one independent non-executive Director who possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee was a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The written terms of reference for the Audit Committee are published
on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of
the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively and are available
to shareholders upon request.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o to review the financial statements and reports of the Company
and consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Company's staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function and external auditors before submission to
the Board;

o to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management systems via the IA function and their associated
procedures; and

o to review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRER/HRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
reviewed the Group’s final results and annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2020. The Audit Committee also reviewed with the
management the Group’s accounting policies, the risk management
and internal control systems via the IA function and the effectiveness
of the Company's IA function. It also discussed auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters of the Group, reported to
the Board on material issues, if any, and made recommendations to
the Board. It reviewed the work performed and fees charged by the
external auditors and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditors.

The Company's final results for the Year have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee. There are no material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

External Auditors and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 124 to 131.

For the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
amounted to HK$1.85 million and HK$0.2 million respectively. The
non-audit services charged by the external auditors of the Company
for the Year included (i) interim review of the financial statements of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2020; (ii) filling of
tax return of the Company and its subsidiaries; and (iii) professional
services rendered on a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules conducted during the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRER/HRS

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communications with the
shareholders are essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group's business performance and
strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information to enable shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated officers maintain regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast
of the Company’s developments. Investors may write directly to the
Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
enquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings
to ensure a high level of accountability to the shareholders and
for the shareholders to stay informed of the Group's strategy and
goals. External auditors, the Chairman as well as the chairmen of
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, normally
attend the annual general meeting and other relevant general
meetings of the Company to answer questions from the shareholders.

During the Year, the Company had arranged for the notice to its
shareholders to be sent for its annual general meeting at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and at least 10 clear business
days for all other general meetings.

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders of
the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, as amended from time to time. The written requisition
must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXRER/HRS

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting;
or (i) not less than one hundred shareholders, can submit a written
requisition stating the resolution which is intended to be moved
at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Shareholders who wish to put forward any enquiry to the Board
may send such written enquiry to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, deals with shareholders’ questions on
their shareholdings and related share registration matters.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Director.

All resolutions put forward at a general meeting will be taken by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be uploaded on
the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively after the general
meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 42, was appointed as the Chairman
since August 2009. He has been an executive Director since July
2004 and the chief executive officer of the Company from November
2007 to 31 August 2009. He is also a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie obtained an
EMBA degree and a Master degree in marketing from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2008 and 2003 respectively. He had two
years of experience in investment banking and subsequently moved
to commercial sector and acted as a director of a private company
for two years. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie possesses sophisticated and
professional management experience and is familiar with investment
analysis. He is responsible for monitoring the Group’s business
development and to search for business opportunities in the PRC
market and overseas. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie has not entered into any
service contract with the Company and there is no designated length
of service but his appointment is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-
laws and the Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Ka
Lun, Ernie is entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$2,263,534 per
annum.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is the nephew of Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer, and Dr. NG Wai
Kwan, a non-executive Director.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, is a director of CNA Company Limited, which
has an interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and Divisions 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 59, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer since August 2009 and has been appointed as an executive
Director since 1992. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. SUEK Chai Hong obtained a Bachelor degree
of Business Administration in Finance from the York University,
Canada. He has more than 30 years of experience in marketing and
is responsible for running the Company’s businesses and developing
and implementing the Group's strategic plans and business goals.
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong has not entered into any service contract with
the Company and there is no designated length of service but his
appointment is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is entitled to
receive a remuneration of HK$1,363,131 per annum.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an
executive Director and the Chairman.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 71, was appointed as an non-executive
Director in March 2007. Dr. NG Wai Kwan holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom. Dr. NG Wai Kwan has over 40 years' experience in global
supply chain management, logistics planning, innovation and
executive and leadership development.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Dr. NG
Wai Kwan and the Group, Dr. NG Wai Kwan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2019 until 31
March 2022 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Dr. NG Wai Kwan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

Dr. NG Wai Kwan is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an executive
Director and the Chairman.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in February 2002 and was re-
designated as a non-executive Director in November 2007. He is
a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (UK) and a fellow member of the Institute of the
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries & Administrators (UK), the Hong Kong Institutes
of Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered Global Management
Accountant.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren has over 40 years of experience
in financial management, corporate administration and corporate
finance in several multinational corporations and listed public
companies.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren and the Group, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren has been appointed for a term of three years commenced
from 1 April 2019 until 31 March 2022 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated
in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions
of his letter of appointment. As at the date of this report,
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren is entitled to receive a remuneration of
HK$169,992 per annum.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director from December 1994 to August 2009 and
re-designated as a non-executive Director in August 2009. He is
currently a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. WONG Sun Fat holds a Bachelor degree of Arts from
The University of Hong Kong and has over 35 years of experience in
electronic products business and vast experience in manufacturing
operations.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
WONG Sun Fat and the Group, Mr. WONG Sun Fat has been
appointed for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2019
until 31 March 2022 subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election and other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws
and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of
appointment. As at the date of this report, Mr. WONG Sun Fat is
entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2013. He is currently the chairman
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan holds a MBA degree in Business Administration and a
Bachelor degree in Commerce and Accountancy and is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the CPA Australia, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has more than 25 years of accounting and
management experience. He is the chief financial officer of a sizable
company in Hong Kong engaging in the manufacturing of watches.
He was once appointed as the company secretary of the Company
from March 2007 to May 2008.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan and the Group, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 5 April 2019 until 4 April
2022 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and other
related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules
and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As at
the date of this report, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky, aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2017. He is currently a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He holds
a Master degree of Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a Bachelor degree of Arts (Honours) in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. LAl Sai
Wo, Ricky is a practising accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountant and an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky has more than 20 years of accounting and
management experience. He is currently the financial controller and
the company secretary of Jolimark Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2028), whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky was once appointed as the company
secretary of the Company from August 2006 to March 2007.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr,
LAl Sai Wo, Ricky and the Group, Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky has been
appointed for a term of three years commenced from 19 April 2020
to 18 April 2023 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

Mr. CHU Gun Pui, aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2017. Mr. CHU Gun Pui holds a Bachelor
degree of Commerce majoring in marketing and a Bachelor degree
of Science majoring in computer science from The University of
Auckland. Mr. CHU Gun Pui has over 15 years of experience in sales
and marketing field in entertainment industry.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
CHU Gun Pui and the Group, Mr. CHU Gun Pui has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 23 June 2020 until 22
June 2023 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Mr. CHU Gun Pui is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

As at the date of this report, each of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr.
SUEK Chai Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan and Mr. WONG Sun Fat has an
interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and/
or its associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong
Kong). For further details, please refer to the paragraphs headed
"Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
of the Directors’ Report of this annual report. There is no change in
such Directors’ interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and/or its associated corporations within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO from 31 December 2020 up to the date of this
report.

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong, aged 58, was appointed as the alternate
Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, a non-executive Director, in July 2008.
He is a manager of Delight Source Limited. Mr. LAU Kam Cheong
joined the Group in 2001. He holds a Master degree in Business
Administration and a Master degree in Professional Accounting from
The Open University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Chartered
Institute of Marketing in the United Kingdom and has over 30 years of
experience in management, sales and marketing.
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Directors’ Report
EFEHRS

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) present its annual report for the year ended
31 December 2020 (the “Year”). All cross-references mentioned in
this Directors’ Report form part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the Year,
the principal activities of the Group include (i) money lending; (ii)
manufacturing and sales of printing and other products; (iii) artistes
management, production and distribution of music albums and
movies; (iv) property development and investment; (v) securities
trading; and (vi) trading of printing products. The principal activities
and other details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
132 to 133.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the Year.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (Year ended 31 December 2019 (“Year 2019"): Nil).
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Directors’ Report
EFEHRS

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (Continued)

In order to enhance transparency of the Company and facilitate
the shareholders of the Company and investors to make informed
investment decisions relating to the Company, the Board has adopted
a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). According to the Dividend Policy,
when determining whether to declare any dividend in the future and
the amount of dividend to be declared, the Company shall consider a
number of factors, including but not limited to:

the Group's actual and expected financial results;

o the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company;

o the Company’s business operation strategy, including expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans;

o the Company’s liquidity position;

o retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the
Company;

o the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends

imposed by the Company’s lenders and other institutions; and

o any other factors that the Board considers to be applicable
from time to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution
proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, payment and amount
of dividends will be subject to the Board’s discretion. The Board will
review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s businesses with analysis using key
performance indicators and the likely future development of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 6 to 23.
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EFEHRS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at an aggregate
cost of approximately HK$48.3 million (Year 2019: approximately
HK$66.7 million) during the Year in order to increase its production
capacity. Details of such acquisitions and other movements in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Year are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
There was no change in the share capital and capital structure of the

Company during the Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

ISSUE OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company did not issue any shares or debentures.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to its shareholders were approximately HK$637.6
million (Year 2019: approximately HK$639.5 million), calculated in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 304.
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EFEHRS

DIRECTORS

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Directors’ Report:

Executive Directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

(alternate Director: Mr. LAU Kam Cheong)
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky
Mr. CHU Gun Pui

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company's bye-laws (the
“Bye-laws”), Mr. WONG Sun Fat, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky, and Mr. CHU
Gun Pui will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“2021 AGM") of the Company. Being eligible, each of Mr. WONG
Sun Fat, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky, and Mr. CHU Gun Pui will offer himself
for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “"SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (the “Shares”)

EZRRG  HEEARGBKRES
PR

HME-S-TEI-A=+—BL-%
ARZEFRBBIHMABREAT
REEEE (EERBSRBE S
(T8 % R B 17 11) SEXVER) 2 1815 -
BRI RS T A RKE S R
SP3BT 7 E 2 B A
% RRELBETAEFETEER
2 MR T A AN B A A5 RB A
2R :

(i) MEATESKEEIIEATZ
EEpg (Tg7)) 288

Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital
ordinary  of the Company
Name of director Capacity Shares held  {EARF B 1T
By 5145 HEBERYE RABEL
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie Founder of a discretionary trust who 39,872,000
can influence how the trustee
exercises his discretion (Note)
BEEBAE AR EZEATENEEN
2REFENEIMA B3
Beneficial owner 1,580,000
BEmEAA
41,452,000 16.34%
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong Beneficial owner 700,000 0.28%
EEBENRE BEmEAA
Dr. NG Wai Kwan Beneficial owner 8,000 0.01%
REHEL BEmEAA
Mr. WONG Sun Fat Beneficial owner 100,000 0.04%
BT SE BEmEAA
Note: These Shares were held by CNA Company Limited (“CNA") Wit ZERMISBACNA Company

which in turn is beneficially owned by Preserve Capital Trust,
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, the
beneficiaries of which include a family member of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie and a charitable institution set up in Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i)

Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations

As at 31 December 2020, CNA beneficially owned deferred
non-voting shares in the following subsidiaries of the
Company:

Name of subsidiary

MEBARHTE

EFNKRG - MEARGRES
Rz igs ()

(i)

REBCER KRB ZFE

BHE_ZE_EF+_HB=+—H
L CNAEGBEEARA T FHIMH
BAB 2B ERIEIER :

Number of deferred
non-voting shares held

FEERERELERHE

New Box Mini Storage Limited

PRERIMBEBRLAE

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
hRENR (FFED BIRAF

Chung Tai Printing Company Limited
RAREIRIBRAE]

Profit Link Investment Limited

PAREEEBRAT

The Greatime Offset Printing Company Limited
WA XENRIBRAF

The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares
are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

CNA is beneficially owned by Preserve Capital Trust, a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie and the
beneficiaries of which include a family member of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie and a charitable institution set up in Hong
Kong. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is deemed to be interested in all
the deferred non-voting shares owned by CNA in the above
subsidiaries of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, no Directors nor chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of every
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in
the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long Positions

FERR

( E_E_EF+ "B =+—HI>
BEANE (ZK/ATZ%%_EE'};T:IH/\E
BRIN MR AT IRE S R EERAIE
336X BEFIFEZECMIFrCiE 2 iR
PRABRERM 2RISR BT ¢

5=

Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital
ordinary  of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity Shares held  {LZEXTE#EIT

IR ATE 19 FEBERYE N g

CNA’ Beneficial owner 39,872,000 15.72%
EmEBA

Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited Trustee 39,872,000° 15.72%
ZEEA

Alpadis Group Holding AG Interest in controlled corporation 39,872,0007 15.72%
RERLEE 2

Alain Esseiva Interest in controlled corporation 39,872,000° 15.72%
RS EE 2 #am

Notes: et -

1. CNA is beneficially owned by Preserve Capital Trust, a discretionary 1. CNAHPreserve Capital Trust (—IBMHEES:

trust set up by Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, the beneficiaries of which
include a family member of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie and a charitable
institution set up in Hong Kong. Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Alpadis Group Holding AG, is the trustee of Preserve
Capital Trust. Alpadis Group Holding AG is owned as to 45.92% by
Alain Esseiva.

2. These 39,872,000 Shares duplicate with those held by CNA.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who had any interests or short positions in any Shares or
underlying Shares as at 31 December 2020.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 February 2014, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the Company and
adopted by the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commenced on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds an
equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme and the Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of
the following classes of participants to take up the options:

(a) any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director) of
the Company, any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive Director (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(0 any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

(9) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangements to the
development and growth of the Group.

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the offer may
be made to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of eligible participants.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the aggregate number of issued Shares at the day on which the
Share Option Scheme was adopted, which was 10,193,545 Shares
(restated to reflect the share consolidation effected on 5 April 2016),
representing approximately 4.02% of the issued Shares as at the
date of this Directors’ Report. The maximum number of Shares which
may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30% of aggregate
number of issued Shares from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the aggregate number of issued Shares from time to time.
Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Director who is a grantee of the options).
Where any grant of options would result in the Shares issued or to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associate in excess of 0.1% of the
aggregate number of issued Shares and having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of grant, in excess
of HK$5 million in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant, such further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the
date of the offer for grant of the option.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
for the grant of options to grantees, there is no performance target
and no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised under the Share Option Scheme.

No dividend will be payable and no voting rights will be exercisable in
relation to an option that has not been exercised.

During the Year, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme. There was no outstanding
share option under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January 2020
and 31 December 2020.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either any directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the Year was
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements,
and the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, none of the Directors or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and which was subsisting as at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the existing independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of the existing independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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EFEHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group has engaged in certain connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions which are subject
to annual reporting requirement in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of these transactions are set out below:

Continuing Connected Transactions
Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong

The Group completed the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of Supreme Cycle Inc. (“Supreme Cycle”) on 30 November 2016.
The principal activities of Supreme Cycle are investment holding
and property investment and its principal assets are units 21, 22,
23, 41 and 77 of 1/F and the whole of 3/F, Hop Yick Commercial
Centre (Phase 1), No. 33 Hop Choi Street, Yuen Long, New Territories,
Hong Kong (the “Yuen Long Properties”). Pursuant to the tenancy
agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) dated 16 March 2016 entered
into between Supreme Cycle as landlord and Well Dragon Limited
("Well Dragon”) as tenant, the Yuen Long Properties have been
leased to Well Dragon for an initial term of three years from 16 March
2016 to 15 March 2019. Since Well Dragon is wholly-owned by a
trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is one
of the discretionary objects, Well Dragon is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules and the transaction contemplated
under the Tenancy Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules upon completion
of the acquisition of Supreme Cycle on 30 November 2016.

MEXZRFERERS

REFE AEEEREETHERS
RFSERERS BRAXZABT LS
RABAATEANNFEREHTE - &F
RpZHBUOT

HEMER S
REEHEBRAYNE

AEERRZZE—R"F+—HB=1+H5%
B U B&Supreme Cycle Inc. (I'Supreme
Cycle]) W2 EBE TR AR Supreme
Cyclez TE2XEBRRETER RMER
= EIE SERBAEMA TS E
3358 & 1 = 0 (IHR) —18/921~ 22
23~ 41&775;%3%@&_@}_ (T7CBA

M2 )) o iR¥ESupreme CyclefEZA % 8
ﬁ%‘éﬁﬁﬁ 7 (THEREY) 1EAMPETIL
HEEA—ZE—XR"EF=B+~BZzHEHE
Tfmu&(rﬁ &) ’EEH%ﬁE‘ﬁFH =5
FERE %)J*/FEEHH?% FOoEIE—RE
=B+ R"AEZ—hFE=B+HH-"

EEﬁJiEEEEEiEﬁETm%Z HZEEA
TEBE MEEBITEAZEHEGS
22HZSmAZ— Hit REEHHR
B EEEAXATIMNEEAL BHIRE
EHE R IE—RE+—B=1+H
SR U BESupreme Cyclef® > IR BB E 17
BRETZRZBHRANAE ZFHER
B 50

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2020 £ 3R



Directors’ Report
EFEHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING FAERX G RIFERER S (8)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued) EEREIRS (8

Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong REBHEBGHEYE (48)
(Continued)

Principal terms FEIFA

The terms of the Tenancy Agreement were determined after arm’s THEDEZ2ER HE KR RATER
length negotiations between the parties thereto. The principal terms BT -HEMEZTEBEHREIWT

of the Tenancy Agreement are set out below:

Use: Operation of a karaoke outlet or related business Bi&
ancillary to karaoke operations conducted by Well
Dragon and its affiliated companies.

Term: An initial fixed term of three years commenced from FH
16 March 2016 and ending on 15 March 2019 (both
days inclusive) (the “Initial Term”).

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Tenancy
Agreement, Well Dragon has an option to renew
the tenancy for a further term of three years from
the expiration of the Initial Term (the “First Renewal
Term”) by giving Supreme Cycle prior written notice
not less than six months before the expiration of
the Initial Term. During the Year 2019, Well Dragon
exercised the option and renewed the term to 15
March 2022 (“Renewed Tenancy Agreement”).
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong

(Continued)

Principal terms (Continued)

Rent:

For the Initial Term, a monthly rent of HK$370,000
exclusive of rates, government rent, management fee
and air-conditioning expense.

For the First Renewal Term, a monthly rent as agreed
by Supreme Cycle and Well Dragon and in any event
the increase of monthly rent shall be within a range
of 0% to 10% of the monthly rent of the Initial Term.
The parties agreed that the monthly rent during the
First Renewal Term is HK$370,000.

The monthly rent under the Renewed Tenancy
Agreement was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations between the parties thereto with
reference to the prevailing market rents in the same
district.

During the Year, the Group provided Well Dragon
with a rental concession totalling HK$1,295,000. The
rental income charged by the Group to Well Dragon
was HK$1,110,000 (Year 2019: HK$4,440,000).
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong
(Continued)

Annual caps
The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Tenancy

Agreement are set out below:

For the year

MEXZRFERER S (B)
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Annual Caps

ended/ending 31 December amount
HE+_-_A=1+—HLEE FELREEE

(HK$)

(7o)
2016 2 —RE 3,515,000
2017 —E—tF 4,440,000
2018 —EBE—NFE 4,440,000
2019 —Z2—NEF 4,791,500
2020 __EE__%Efﬁ 4,884,000
2021 —EF-—F 4,884,000
2022 BT 5,270,650
2023 __7._n_fﬁ 5,372,400
2024 —ETOF 5,372,400
2025 —E"hHEF 1,119,250

Details of the above transaction have been set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 25 April 2016 and 30
November 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 20 July 2016.

The Company has followed the policies and guidelines when
determining the prices and terms of the continuing connected
transactions.
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Directors’ Report
EFEHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance
with the Tenancy Agreement and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the external auditors of the Company to perform certain
agreed-upon procedures in respect of these continuing connected
transactions of the Group. The auditors have reported to the Board
that:

(i) nothing has come to the external auditors’ attention that
causes them to believe that the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(ii) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to external auditors’ attention
that causes them to believe that the transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company;

(iii) nothing has come to the external auditors’ attention that
causes them to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the Tenancy
Agreement; and

(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the
external auditors’ attention that causes them to believe that
the non-exempt continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual caps disclosed in
the relevant announcements of the Company in respect of the
non-exempt continuing connected transactions.

The Directors confirmed that the related party transactions as
disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.
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Directors’ Report
EFEHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Termination of lease of commercial properties in Hong
Kong

On 31 July 2020, Supreme Cycle and Well Dragon entered into a
deed of surrender, pursuant to which Supreme Cycle and Well Dragon
agreed on the early termination of the Renewed Tenancy Agreement
and the surrender of the Yuen Long Properties with effect from 31
July 2020.

Connected Transaction

On 10 January 2020, the Company and Smithfield Ventures Limited
("Underwriter”) entered into an underwriting arrangement in
respect of a proposed rights issue of the Company (“Underwriting
Agreement”). The Underwriter is wholly-owned by CNA Company
Limited, which is in turn beneficially owned by Preserve Capital Trust.
CNA is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Therefore, the
Underwriter is a connected person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under
the Underwriting Agreement constitute connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules and are subject to the
reporting, announcement and Independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, as
the resolution approving the proposed rights issue was not passed by
the independent shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company, the proposed rights issue did not proceed and lapsed.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is determined
by the management of the Group with reference to the market
conditions and qualifications of the employees. The reward packages
for the staff are generally reviewed on an annual basis, depending on
the staff's and the Group's performance.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual duties and responsibilities and performance and
market practice and conditions.
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EFEHRS

EMOLUMENT POLICY (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme as set out on pages 57 to 59 above was
also adopted by the Company as a long-term incentive or rewards for
the staff's contribution.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the Year, the Company applied the principles of and
complied with all the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, save for certain
deviations. Details of the corporate governance practices of the Group
during the Year are set out in Corporate Governance Report on pages
24 to 44.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and as at the date of this Directors’ Report, an
indemnity provision was in force such that the Directors should be
indemnified by Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses they may incur or sustain in the execution of
their duty.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the date of this Directors’ Report, at least 25% of the issued
Shares were held by the public throughout the Year.

DONATIONS

The Group made donations for charitable or other purposes of
approximately HK$476,000 for the Year (Year 2019: HK$133,000)
and has donated a total of 40 boxes, each containing 50 surgical
masks to the charitable institutions in Hong Kong.
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EFEHRS

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICIES

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to identify
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. Please refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report on pages 72 to 123 for further
information on the work done and efforts made by the Company on
environmental protection and other aspects for sustainable growth
and development of the business of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial performance, operating results, business operation
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are set out
below. However, there may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below, which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could become material in the future.
The management of the Company meets periodically to discuss these
risks, and where appropriate, will monitor these risks closely and adopt
any necessary risk mitigation measures. In respect of the details of the
risk management system and internal audit function of the Company,
please refer to the paragraphs headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” on pages 37 to 40.

Business Risk

The Group currently has seven operating segments in various
industries and each operating segment has its specific business risks.
For the Manufacturing and Sales Business and the Trading Business,
the Group is subject to intense competition in terms of product
prices and production costs, and is also affected by seasonal factors
prevailing in the countries of targeted and existing customers. For
the Lending Business, the collectability of outstanding loans and
the customer network of the Group are both affecting the financial
performance of the segment. The Music and Entertainment Business
may be affected by the economic environment of Hong Kong and
the PRC as it will have impact on the consumption behaviors of both
individual and corporate customers. With respect to the Property
Business, alternatives can be found in the respective location of
the Group’s premises and thus the rentals of its units offered to
customers are subject to fierce market competition. To maintain the
competitiveness of the Group, the management of the Company will
meet regularly with the head of the respective business units to keep
itself up-to-date with the business environment.
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EFEHRS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Environmental Risk

The Group’s Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged to comply
with a variety of environment protection laws and regulations on the
discharge and disposal of waste materials, water and gas imposed by
relevant governmental bodies in the PRC. These law and regulations
govern the disposal of these wastes and impose fines and penalties
for serious violation of environmental requirements, and any non-
compliance may jeopardise the operating licences of the Group's
subsidiaries engaged in the Manufacturing and Sales Business.

Moreover, environmental laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are subject to change from time to time. It may be impracticable
for the Group to continuously quantify the costs of complying with
such laws and regulations, and any further change may also lead
to a substantial increase in the operating costs of the Group. In this
regard, the management of the Company regularly reviews adherence
to relevant environmental laws and regulations with the head of the
Manufacturing and Sales Business.

Market Price Risk

The Group’s Securities Trading Business is exposed to the risk of
decreasing fair values of equity securities as a result of the volatile
market changes. The management of the Company together with
the Investment Management Committee of the Board monitor
the changes of respective securities’ prices and may change the
investment portfolio held and investment strategy whenever
necessary.

FERBRFRABEZR (&)

IR1% LR

AEBNRERBEXEBBE SIS
18Uk B YR BE SRR ~ BE /K R BE SR8 ST
o [ AH 8 B AT 14 R 1R fh B9 2 TRIR RO
PRI - BRAEDI KRR A EE I FEE
BEMRRER L THBREERRRR
EEEME R EE > MERTERE
MAEGHAEERE TSI RE KB
EXBHNBARNEENRERT

A2

tESh > BRNAE R ZIRRIER KRG
AIEEN R EE AERFEFTETE
B A B s 3R B BY & FR A 7 BT BE 8 AN 1)
B MEMEMESTR S AER
WEERAKRNE -FUILME > ZRFE
BEEUNEREEERGFTEECHER
HRRRIE AP RO ERER

5 E A% A b
MARHZELEAR 2EENESES

$EFEBRAESATETENA
5o AT ERECEREFERTH
REEREEAREREERESEED
28, TEERELBERT ALEH
BIFEIREA S RIEE o

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2020 £ 3R



Directors’ Report
EFEHRS

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out both in Hong Kong and the
PRC and are regulated by their laws and regulations accordingly. In
particular, the Group’s Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged
to comply with a variety of environmental protection laws and
regulations on the discharge of waste, water and pollutants and the
labour law in the PRC. While any non-compliance may attract fines
and penalties and jeopardise the operating licenses of the Group,
the imposition of more stringent regulations may also increase the
operating costs of the business segment.

During the Year and up to date of this Directors’ Report, the Group
has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact in Hong Kong and the PRC. For details, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 72 to
123.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of purchases attributable to the 5
largest suppliers combined was less than 30%. The percentage of
revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to
the 5 largest customers combined was also less than 30%.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group strives to maintain a strong relationship with its suppliers,
customers, employees and other stakeholders to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. Please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 72 to 123 for further information.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who shall retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment at the 2021 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at
the 2021 AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditors of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

On behalf of the Board

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report
of Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), presenting the environmental and social
impacts of the Group’s business activities during the year ended 31
December 2020, and its performance in measuring and managing
these sustainability aspects during the Year.

The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
integrity of this report. To the best of its knowledge, this ESG Report
addresses all relevant material issues and fairly presents the ESG
performance of the Group. The Board of Directors confirms that it has
reviewed and approved this ESG Report.

Reporting Boundary and Scope

This ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX"), focusing
on environmental and social performance of the Group's printing
products manufacturing and sales business, being the largest business
segment of the Group in terms of contribution to the revenue for the
Year. This report has fulfilled the “Comply or Explain” stipulation and
is centred on the reporting principles of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”,
“Balance”, and "Consistency”. Quantitative data are analysed and
presented in a way that allows for consistent comparison.

The boundary of this ESG Report remains unchanged from the
previous year, encompassing the ESG performance of (1) Chung
Tai Printing (International) Company Limited; (2) its wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely # 2 R KEIRI CRIN) BERAE] (unofficial English
translation being Neway Chung Tai Printing (Shenzhen) Company
Limited) (“Neway Chung Tai Printing”); and (3) $2&3ENR) CHII)
BPRAF (unofficial English translation being Kam Hon Printing
(Shenzhen) Company Limited) (“Kam Hon Printing”). These are
the three principal subsidiaries of the Group’s printing products
manufacturing and sales business. For governance section, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 24 to 44 of this
Annual Report.

BN AHRS

753K & ANeway Group Holdings Limited
REERERERARY (KAF) &
BIENBAS HBIANER) FEHH
RE-MERERRS 2VAEEP
BE_ZZFE+ZA=+—HILHF
ENERTEHRERTENFE Y
ERAFEAHEREEBAIFELRE
EE D ERIRIE -

EEENTEHERRARSEENS
EoBEMN RIRIFE LB REBR
HHEFMBHEBEARZSE TRARME
FIREENIRIE - HEREARR -F
EERIECERLBEARE - HER
BRAWmSGe

HREERKLIEE

RIREB - EREARSTVIRES AR
ERXFFABRAE (T Fr)) EHiRE]
& —+EtAE(RE - HERE AR
SIS ) MRE  EhiRBEAEEER
ERUERHEER UAEERAE
BN EEMtEAsREBNRAE
Bl NRERHEREB - ARERE
RETRETHMBEIRE TUTEE
M2~ TR RT—8E 8RS
BRI AT ECBIBE DB LAIE
— ML AR ET o

KIRIFE - HEREARSTHNIEEERE
F (PR KEDR () BRRAR N (HE
ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%@ﬂqﬂ%qﬂﬁmﬁ (“ill)ﬁ
RAT (Th 2 KEIRL) ; K(3)EREHED
GINGS ill)ﬁﬁﬁfz}?(rﬁiﬁmﬁﬁaﬂa
B g REARFE - Z=Z[BARAAAK
EERNpERESERIBEERNTE
MEBR B -BREAEA—H BFREEAE
WE2ABEFAMBENTES ARS -

* EHHF

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2020 £ 3R



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and performance. The Board is responsible for providing
strategic guidance, formulating sustainability policies and goals,
supervising corporate governance matters, maintaining the Group's
risk management procedures, ensuring the effectiveness of internal
measures implemented, and incorporating ESG agenda into the
Group's risk management procedures. The Group collected internal
and external data as well as stakeholders’ views in a comprehensive
manner through different channels, historical data, future forecasts,
cases and information of other relevant domestic or international
companies, in order to identify ESG risks which are material to the
Group. Measures to address such risks are formulated accordingly and
risk management measures of the Group are reviewed as and when
necessary to ensure their effectiveness.

The Group’s core business is manufacturing and sale of paper
products. Recognising the importance of sound ESG management, we
are committed to proactively implementing sustainable development
initiatives and gradually integrate ESG aspects into our daily
operations. It is our responsibility to mitigate the impacts of our
operations to both the environment and the communities where we
operate. A range of quantitative targets, spanning across all ESG
topics, are monitored and reviewed to track our ESG performance.
We strive to refine our management approach in on-going basis to
achieve continuous improvement.

Proper social responsibility management can bring about positive
impacts to the Group including higher operational efficiency and
lower cost. To this end, we have a SA8000 Standard compliant Social
Responsibility Management System in place. Overseen by the top
management and five executive committees, implementation of this
system is spearheaded by the Senior Vice President in a top-down
approach. Our production manufacturing sites are qualified to hold
ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 certifications in relation to
quality management, environmental management and occupational
health and safety management systems respectively.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH (Continued)

Management Representatives
BEEAR

Health and Safety

Labour Executive Environmental Executive
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH (Continued)

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group constantly engages with both internal and external
stakeholders, a process essential to identify ESG risks and
opportunities. Moreover, we are committed to understanding
issues that concern them and provide feasible solutions. The
Group proactively engages with stakeholders including customers,
employees, suppliers, investors, the government and the community
through channels such as annual reports, surveys, meetings, etc.
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Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels Issues of Concern
Frin & B4H BBERE RAEEIE

Customers Company website Customer satisfaction
xR PiN/NSIFEN S BERRERE

Feedback by phone Data privacy

BERER BB RTA

Formal process for handling

complaints

IR SR ERIZF
Employees Staff meetings Training and development
== BT EH Bl ERE

Annual appraisals Occupational Health and Safety

FEE BERRRZR
Suppliers Website for prospective suppliers Third party risk management
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Supplier assessment
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Supplier conference
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ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH (Continued) RIE e REBEEAZE

(4&)
Stakeholder Engagement (Continued) HHERE (4)
Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels Issues of Concern
R & 4H BERE FEEIR
Investors Annual reports and interim reports Corporate governance
REE FHRKRPRE txER
Corporate communications and Business operations
press releases EEEE
EEBARER o
Information disclosure
BERHREE
Government Compliance with applicable laws Legitimacy of service and business
ELRF and regulations ethics
BTERERERIER R EEE REEERE
Tax compliance
MBER
Community Compliance with applicable laws Environmental protection
HE and regulations RIGRE

ETEREERER
Support charitable institutions
SRESES

Contribution to the community
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group continues to be committed to reduce its environmental
impacts through establishing environmental targets and adopting new
technologies to improve operational efficiency.

Environmental Management

The Environmental Executive Committee is responsible for identifying
the potential environmental impacts of the Group’s operations
through regular site inspections and documents review. To manage
its environmental performance, the Group has implemented an
environmental management system (“EMS”) within its organisation.
The Group’'s management has the responsibility to approve the
environmental management approach and targets, ensuring
effective allocation of resources for environmental management and
compliance with the laws and regulations. The EMS of the Group's
subsidiaries Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing is
certified with the 1SO14001:2015 Standard.

To make sure effective environmental management in the factories,
the Group has formulated a series of management procedures
ranging from management of waste to chemicals and dangerous
goods, energy and resources. In addition, the Group has established
an Environmental Management Team in its subsidiaries. Spearheaded
by the EHS senior management representative, the team is responsible
for implementation of environmental protection measures, research
on hazardous chemicals control and monitoring and measurement of
environmental indicators.

Environmental Performance Tracking

To monitor the environmental performance of the Group, both Neway
Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing have established eight
environmental targets, covering air emissions, effluent discharge,
hazardous waste management, resource consumption and noise
pollution. The subsidiaries regularly analyse the data for performance
monitoring.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Environmental Management (Continued)
Environmental Performance Tracking (Continued)

The table below summarises the Group’s progress towards its annual
environmental targets. Please refer to the corresponding sections of
this report for details of each target.

IRIZReE (@)
RIFEE (48)
IRIEZRJIEH ()

TEBAFERRNEFEREBEEN
EE -FSREABRSHEEEH UTH#
HZEEREFB

Environmental Aspects Neway Chung Tai Printing Kam Hon Printing Corresponding Section
IRIGEEER R £ K EN R ERERENR RS

>70% achieved
>70%3E 2

Energy Consumption

¢ BEEHEE

>50% achieved
>50%3E 12

Water Consumption

IKEFHEFE

®

>90% achieved
>90%3EIE

Paper Consumption

MLSRHEAE

A\
v

Stationary Source Emissions
EERRIBEHN

-

Mobile Source Emissions

BERHER
é Effluent Discharge
75 KB

/A Hazardous Waste Management
BEERYER

‘ Noise Emissions
IR E PR

A

100% achieved

100%3E4Z

During the Year, the Group strictly complied with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations’. The Group was not aware of
any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions, discharges into water or land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

! Please refer to Laws and Regulations section for environmental-
related laws and regulations.

Energy

&k
Rein

Water
KER

Paper Usage and Packaging
HIRAERER

100% achieved
100%3E1ZE

Air Emissions

ZERBERY

Effluent and Waste
Management

ERRERMER

Noise Management
IREER
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation
Paper Usage and Packaging

Paper is the major material used in production and the Group spares
no effort in its conservation, through minimising the use, reusing and
practicing sustainable procurement in its operations. FSC-certified
paper is used in production, ensuring our products are made with
materials from well-managed forests. During production, the Group
prevents overuse of materials by implementing quota collection and
strengthening the quality management of products to reduce the
occurrence of unqualified products.

In addition, green office initiatives are being implemented to reduce
paper consumption. Employees are encouraged to adopt double-
sided printing and photocopying to fully utilise the resources. Paper
consumption is monitored and controlled on a monthly basis to
prevent wastage.

IRIGRE ()
EEIR
REHFREE

MRASEEFFBANEZYE MAEE
BRRVER ERAKRNEEERES
AIRERE TEBIMEBORME
FSCERFBRIAR R AN £ E » LUERE
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EmimEEE  EmHREAEHE
BB E 5

ItESh > 75 £ B B Ak (0 1 E HE LU
DRREE - AEBERBEEERAER
SIENRAEBENUTDFBAER - ZEE T
ABERREFRIRREEUERRE

Packaging Materials Consumption (Tonne)

BEMBEE ()

2.80

Paper 43R
14,634.00

During the Year, the Group consumed 14,634.00 tonnes of paper,
485.60 tonnes of plastics and 2.80 tonnes of metals for packaging. To
reduce packaging materials consumption, customers are encouraged
to return carton boxes for reuse.

485.60

RAEE > REEHE14,634.000F 4%
3R~ 485.60ME¥E K K2 8OME S B E B &
ZHeARBIEEREYIN REBF
BEPERXOEEMUEER-
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation (Continued)

Paper Usage and Packaging (Continued)

Paper Consumption Targets

HIRHFERR
Neway Chung Tai Printing
A E R KEN R

Consuming <4 pieces of paper per thousand
press pile boards of production units
FTHRIEEBMNNFERAS T BBENER

92 % achieved

92 %tz

IRIGRE ()
EMER (&)
HRERAREE (B

Kam Hon Printing

SREAENRI

Average monthly consumption of <48,000
pieces of paper
R TR E T HEIE48,0005
100% achieved
100% 2%

Energy

The Group’s operations involve consumption of petrol for mobile
vehicles, diesel, natural gas for boilers and purchased electricity.
The Group’s energy consumption mainly comprises electricity
consumption. Diesel is used for electricity generation due to power
outages. During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 63,252.48
GJ energy, with an energy intensity of 0.12 GJ per thousand Hong
Kong Dollars revenue.

Energy Composition

BETRAR X

o 493.29

60,000 7,118.61 JE— 7,263.43

50,000 1,192.02 170714
\GJE{ 0.13
5 40000
Y 30,000
£ X
2% 000 0.12
O i )
L 53,005.46 54 388,62
Sios 10,000
5w

0
2019 2020

—E-hf —T-TF

To detect unusual energy consumption at the facilities, the Group
monitors and analyses electricity consumption data on a monthly
basis. The Group has adopted a series of energy-saving initiatives,
with an aim to enhance energy efficiency and reduce energy
consumption. In addition to adopting energy-efficient appliances,
the Group strives to improve indoor ventilation and regulate indoor
temperature to reduce energy consumption of air conditioners.
Adoption of the non-invasive electromagnetic scale control system in
2017 has not only improved the lifespan of boilers but also reduced
energy consumption by 12%.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation (Continued)
Energy (Continued)

Training is provided to relevant employees on sustainable and
responsible use of resources, raising the awareness of employees
on energy saving. Employees who are responsible for energy
management are required to attend the training before being
deployed to work.

Energy-saving Initiatives

B AEYE it

Adopted energy-efficient water
dispensers

% F B AE BR 7K # HMEERNBERRAMNER

Regular maintenance
of machinery to ensure
operational efficiency
TEHA M E L 23
LR IR

Switch off idle
electronic appliances

RIFFEEEZR

Provided energy-saving
training to employees

& & 12 {4 BN AE 15 3

Energy Consumption Targets

FERHFER R

Neway Chung Tai Printing
R E R KENR

Consuming <30 kWh of electricity per 1.

thousand press pile boards of production units

STHREEEUNABENBETRE

77 % achieved

Improve air ventilation and
regulate indoor temperature

IRiGfReE (48)

EHER (&)

HER (48)
AEETEMABNESRUAHIFE
R&EEERERNE LURA RS
BRSENEN S EERTENES
SR AT TAERT A S o

Adopted non-invasive
electromagnetic scale control
system since 2017
B-Z—tFiEHRA
eI AR BHIKKIEBRRR

Reduce operations
duration of energy-
intensive machinery
W RER T EERN

E (SR

Kam Hon Printing

SRENENRI

Electricity cost rate of <450 RMB/'0,000
RMB stock-in quantity
BARBEBTAEENASEMRAE
BB AREE4507T

Energy consumption target for office: June
to September: <20,000 kWh, and October
to May <15,000 kWh
MAZENERHERR

NAZENA [ <20,000F E.F
+BZEAA : <15,000F KL

100% achieved

77 %2
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation (Continued)
Water

The Group consumed a total of 163,506.00 tonnes of water during
the Year, with water intensity of 0.31 tonnes per thousand Hong
Kong Dollars revenue. During the Year, the Group did not have any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose.

Water Consumption and Intensity

IRIB{RE (4)

HOEIR (&)
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REAFE AEBNREKENS
163,506.000F o ¥E/K B EN BT T BT
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170,000 040 T

160,000 . @
< X o .
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S 110000 029 o e \Water intensity
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2019 2020

“E-NE Z2SEHE

The Group strives to minimise water consumption through
wastewater recycling, water leakage detection and reducing water

REERNEBEE KB Rk K
WO BKUBEAKE- R - -F

usage. In 2020, one of our subsidiaries, Neway Chung Tai Printing,
has adopted a wastewater recycling system to reuse the boiler water
and treated water for toilet flushing. Along with water recycling,
the Group conducts regular water consumption monitoring, site

ForERAEP—HNBARTESHK
ENR 2 5% A BE /K [ U Z 4 > LU $8 X8 7K
REBRENKERFEHRRIAR -EF
KEREIW  AEEETEHAKE

inspection and facility maintenance to detect abnormal water
consumption and water leaks.

A B AR R K R M AERE - LURRI A IE
EBIRKKIRK

Water Consumption Targets

BKkEEZE

Neway Chung Tai Printing
R E R KENR

Kam Hon Printing

FRENENRI

Consuming <0.23 tonnes of water per
thousand press pile boards of production units
T EDRI 4 EBRFEKENEBIB0.23
L

Monthly water consumption <2,500 m?
& B A7k<2,5001L /5K

51% achieved 100% achieved

100% 12

51% &
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emission Control
Air Emissions

The Group’s air emissions include emissions from stationary sources of
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) during operations, and emissions
from company vehicles. During the Year, the Group's vehicles emitted
a total of 0.51 kg of sulphur oxides (SOx), 89.71 kg of nitrogen oxides
(NOx) and 7.95 kg of particulate matter (PM).

Vehicle Emissions (kg)

BHRHENR (AF)
100
g 7.95
0 86.19 89.71
0.55 0.51
0
2019 2020
—E-hE —E-EF

The Group continues to reduce its stationary and mobile air emissions
through regular maintenance and installation of air pollutants
treatment facilities. For stationary emissions, we set targets to
maintain concentration of pollutants within the allowable emission
level. VOCs generations are attributed to the use of printing ink
during production. To minimise VOCs emissions, the Group has
installed an exhaust gas treatment facility to remove VOCs in the
exhaust gas before discharge. Exhaust monitoring and testing are
regularly conducted to ensure compliance with the Printing Industry
VOC Emission Standard (DB44/815-2010) and Guangdong Province
Standards for Air Pollution Emission Limit Value (DB44/27-2001). In
2020, Neway Chung Tai Printing has revamped its boilers and exhaust
treatment facilities to further reduce its air emissions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emission Control (Continued)

Air Emissions (Continued)

BB IR B R R RS EY R

IRIGRE ()
BT (8)
ERmBHY ()

Reducing NOx Emissions through Gas Boiler Revamping Project

The Neway Chung Tai Printing has reduced nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions by installing low NOx burners in natural gas
boilers. Through reducing the peak flame temperature in the boiler, less NOx is generated during combustion. Along
with the installation of low NOx burners, the Group has also replaced the current gas boiler with steam generators,
aiming to increase the steam generation efficiency and reduce NOx emissions.

RERKERIZEBENR R ARAEZERARERURBEIE YR - BEREHEANN TS NG
BERRAGEBEREFREERDAREY X EEAMNEBRNER > REE T ENESBREEIAER

ERRE SERAZAEEMERERAKICHHITR -

Renovation of Exhaust Treatment Facilities
B PR EE R BRI R I

To minimising VOCs emissions, Neway Chung Tai Printing has renovated its exhaust treatment facilities in order to
optimise VOCs removal. Spray column and activated carbon adsorption towers remove VOCs from the exhaust gas
before discharge. It is expected that the renovation of exhaust treatment facilities can remove 48% of VOCs emissions.
AR VEZEEARCEYNEIR RERREB ERBNEREEREIERNM  UWEBCEZEERESY
BB R o RS e v 14 SR IR B #5 BT IS BRI AT B R BE SR R RV B 3 L B 1 AE &) - TREAENR B R IE 2 /it o]

HAB%BIIEE T B IE SR -

For reducing vehicle emissions, the Group has started using high
energy-efficiency fuel in certain vehicles which improves engine
performance. Annual maintenance of exhaust treatment system and
exhaust emission tests are conducted to ensure exhaust treatment
efficiency.

RERBE@WMIN AEBERETER
FR46E M & A8 TR R AR » AEK & 5
ENME -AEESEFETERREE
RABYF 2 A o Ko BE ROBETCRI A, > DA
REERBRIERI UK
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emission Control (Continued)

Air Emissions (Continued)

Air Emission Targets

ERBEBRYMB R

IRIGRE ()
BT (8)
ERmBHY ()

Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing
é{é\{:}) 2 K EN Rl Bz 87 55 EN Rl

. Conduct annual test for vehicle exhaust gas 2.

to ensure compliance with the Shenzhen
o|0 Motor Vehicle Emission Standard
BEETEMRIEE RO DU

R RIKEEERIFIRE

|

100% achieved

100%zZ

GHG Emission and Intensity

BERBHERREE
14,000 004 o
238
@ 12,000 % \L;j\
% 10000 12,382.36 12,028.25 o0.03 é o
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o I o g
E’N, = . 0.02 © 0.02 002 S j@
£ = 6,000 25
S S
‘R g 4,000 oo =
HOEJ ﬁ 2,000 531.67 ’g\@;
z 518.88 . £
& 28 000 = e
2019 2020
—E-NEFE ZBIERF
* Emission factors are adjusted compared to

those disclosed in 2019 report, and GHG
emission in 2019 are recalculated and
adjusted in the above figure.

Monitor the VOC level and other
parameters for stationary exhaust gas

to ensure compliance with the Printing
Industry VOC Emission Standard DB44/815-
2010 and Guangdong Province Standards
for Air Pollution Emission Limit Value
DB44/27-2001
EEEEM AR KERETERE
RAVEth R B HEIRTT 5DB44/815-
2010ENRITT B E A E S BEN
T AE K2DB44/27-2001 BB A AR5 Z
e R E1R 2

100% achieved
100% =1z
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®—e Emission intensity
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emission Control (Continued)
Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The greenhouse gases (GHG) emissions of the Group comprise
of direct emissions from fuel combustion (Scope 1), and indirect
emissions from purchased electricity (Scope 2). During the Year,
the Group’s total GHG emissions were 12,559.92 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (tCOze), with a GHG emission intensity of 0.02
tCO:ze per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue.

Since emissions due to electricity consumption account for the
major part of total GHG emissions, we strive to reduce electricity
consumption by implementing energy-saving measures in our
operations. We have also adopted a non-invasive electromagnetic
scale control system in boilers to optimise energy efficiency, leading
to reduction in natural gas consumption. For further details on the
energy-saving initiatives, please refer to the “Energy” section.

Effluent and Waste Management

The Group's operations generate both industrial and domestic
wastewater. During the Year, the Group discharged 13,553.00 tonnes
of wastewater. The Group ensures proper discharge of wastewater
by strictly complying with the Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants in
Guangdong Province. Industrial wastewater is treated and recycled in
the sewage recycling system, while domestic wastewater is diverted to
the municipal pipeline network for treatment.

We monitor the quality of effluents discharged through regular third-
party testing on water quality parameters including pH, chemical
oxygen demand (COD), biological oxygen demand (BODs) and
suspended solids (SS). In 2020, the Group revamped its wastewater
treatment facility, aiming to improve the wastewater quality standard.

For waste management, the Group strictly complies with the relevant
laws and regulations including the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. The Group
has implemented a waste management approach, which sets out
the standard waste handling process including waste segregation,
collection, storage and control. Quality management department is
responsible for monitoring waste management through internal audits
and inspections.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Effluent and Waste Management (Continued)

During the Year, the Group generated a total of 22.91 tonnes of
hazardous waste, 100% of which was transferred to an authorised
third-party collector for handling. The increase in hazardous waste
generation is attributed to the new definition of waste in the
amendments of the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste.
Non-hazardous waste generation amounted to 180 tonnes and it was
collected by the waste collector for handling or recycling. Since the
installation of the non-invasive electromagnetic scale control system in
2017, our hydrochloric acid waste generation has been reduced by 8
tonnes annually.

Hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and Intensity
(Kg/ '000 HKD revenue)
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Non-hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and Intensity

(Kg/ '000 HKD revenue)
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Waste Emission Targets
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. Monitor various parameters related to
effluents to ensure compliance with the
Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants in
Guangdong Province DB44/26-2001
BERSKEESHMUERTS
DB44/26-2001 (& 3R & 7K )5 24 HF Il
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100% achieved

100% ==

Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing

. 100% transfer of hazardous waste
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100% achieved

100% z1=
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Noise Management

Considering the Group’s operations might create noise pollution,
it has established a noise control target at operational facilities to
maintain the noise levels below the noise limits during daytime and at
night. To minimise the noise impacts on the surrounding environment,
third-party monitoring is conducted to measure the noise level around
the facilities, in which the Group has complied with the Emission
Standards for Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary.
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Noise Management Targets
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Neway Chung Tai Printing
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Not exceeding 60 decibel (dB) during daytime
and 50 dB at night
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100% achieved

100% sz

Kam Hon Printing
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Not exceeding 65 decibel (dB) during daytime
and 55 dB at night
HESErS88657 B RERE
#B557) B

100% achieved
100% =1z

Promoting Green Products

To reduce the environmental impacts of our products, the Group is
committed to exploring the potential for increasing the proportion of
eco-friendly products in the market. The Group has implemented a
management system for procurement of FSC-certified raw materials
as well as the management of FSC-certified green products. During
manufacturing, we strictly manage the use of wood products in the
production process, which FSC-certified paper is used in our printing
business.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Environmental Emergency Management

The Group attaches great importance to prevention of environmental
incidents and emergency situations such as fire, chemical leakage,
or other natural disasters that may impose significant environmental
impacts. To prevent the occurrence of emergency incidents and
ensure timely response, the Group has formulated an emergency
preparedness and response procedure that stipulates responsibilities
of the emergency management and preparation and prevention
procedures. Fire drills and chemical spill prevention drills are regularly
conducted, ensuring the employees can handle emergency situations
in an effective and timely manner. During the Year, the Group
conducted a total of 4 fire drills and 3 chemical spill prevention drills.

OUR PEOPLE

At Neway Group, we believe people are our greatest asset. The Group
strives to do everything possible to cater to the needs of its employees
and build a healthy, inclusive and decent workplace for them to excel and
grow.

Employee Profile

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 1,460 full-
time employees, over 90% of which are based in mainland China
while the remaining are based in Hong Kong. The ratio of male to
female employees is 51:49. Approximately 76% of our employees are
aged 31 - 50. In terms of educational profile, approximately 15% of
our employees have tertiary qualifications. Our team comprises 24%
of managerial staff and 76% general staff.
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OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employee Profile (Continued)

Employee Profile

by Gender
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49%
51%
Bl Male Female
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Employee Profile

by Education
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Employee Profile
by Age
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Employee Profile

by Function
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employee Profile (Continued)

During the Year, the overall turnover rate and new hire rates were
both 59%. The proportion of employee turnover and new hires by
age group and gender are presented in the graphs below.

2020 Turnover and New Hire Rates
by Age Group
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B Turnover Rate
TRAREEE

New Hire Rate

MiERELEEX

We are dedicated to nurturing a diverse workplace where our
employees are treated with dignity and respect. Therefore, we
have zero tolerance for any form of discrimination or harassment,
regardless of age, gender, marital status, race, religion and disability.
Fair and ethical labour practices are enforced to safeguard the
fundamental human rights of the staff. In case of any discrimination
is discovered, members of the Group are encouraged to report it to
Human Resources (HR) Department. All cases are handled anoymously
according to the Group's anti-discrimination management procedures.
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2020 Turnover and New Hire Rates
by Gender
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employee Communication

The Group pay close attention to its employees’ opinions and
feedback. To collect their views and grievances effectively, the
Management Systems Executive Committee has set up various
communication channels including a WeChat public account.
Employees are also encouraged to join unions to express views on
labour-related matters.

Employment Practices

The success of the Group lies in a team of dedicated and satisfied
individuals. To this end, competitive remuneration and benefits
packages are offered to attract and retain talents. Furthermore, we
fully compensate for overtime work and provide a range of paid
leaves including maternity, marriage and bereavement leave.

We have rigorous procedures in place to prevent child or forced
labour. Identification documents of candidates and the newly
recruited are inspected by HR department to verify if their age meets
legal requirements. Should there be any suspected case found,
the group arranges check-ups at once and notifies local labour
department officials.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance of relevant laws and regulations? that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, other benefits and welfare
and prevention of child and forced labour.

2020 Targets and Indicators
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2 Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for Labour-related

laws and regulations
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Training and Development

Enhancing the competency and professionalism of our employees
is critical to ensure smooth and efficient business operations. We,
therefore, organise various trainings including pre-employment
training, on-the-job training and transferee training to develop
employees’ capabilities. While the HR department oversees and
monitors the overall training and development strategy, each
department is responsible for determining the actual training needs
for its members.

To ensure teaching quality, we only assign individuals who possess
relevant teaching or professional qualifications such as ISO 9000, ISO
14000 and FSC to conduct training involving technical knowledge.
A training team regularly reviews the effectiveness of training by
conducting evaluation and investigation. In addition, employees are
assessed on their level of understanding through oral examination,
written examination and practical examination. Their attendance and
examination results are recorded for future use. Based on operational
needs, the Group encourages and subsidises employees to take part
in external courses. During the Year, the Group conducted training
amounting to 43,906 hours. The main training contents are outlined
as follows.

Pre-employment

B Al TE R

Company background, organisation
introduction
NEVF = NHAENA

e Operational procedures and
standards

EERFRRE
—)

_/

Industrial and fire safety Maintanence and operation of

THERHBZR equipments
RBAEE R AR

Environmental policies and targets

IRIREBR R ER e Sustainable and green procurement
Al IR REREE

International standards

Bl PR AR E e Labour safety management
HIZaEE

BT (@
B A R % R

RAEBNE T REEKEHERM
BREMNEFEEREEZE HIL
HMBEWZIEEY SERAIEI 1T
B A A R R E B LX?’*ETEEE’J fE
N EANEREEE kEEERE
Fe % R SR BE BV [B) B - RﬁBFﬁE\E\J\LEE
HENEREBINEE-

AERHBER BMEZKAEEE
R B EXERE (H/201SO 9000+ 1SO
1400052FSC) B9 A 3R L7 S 352 97 R0 8
BB o FEBETFERAE  EIIE
B EH@ BN BN ILI B2
5E$§§4Duit $uﬂ&§ﬁx%uﬁ J'/(l:;'fg
HENEREE -HENEBEXRES
EREWERFHRAGR RESES
EyARERTEINENESE S HEINPIE
Ao RNAFEE » REREITEHEAL3,906/)
E%E’Jimﬂloi%i—au)llm@}ﬁ;ttzwo

On-the-job training

e Operations and responsibilities of
the new position
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Training and Development (Continued)

On top of regular trainings, this year the Group arranged additional
trainings including Total Quality Management training and Productivity
training. These serve to enhance their production efficiency, knowledge
and capability in handling respective crucial areas of daily operation.

In addition to hard skills and technical knowledge, the Group believes
that soft skills are important to deliver quality output. For instance,
we provide staff training related to communication skills, effective
and efficient work strategies and even counter-terrorism knowledge.
Through these comprehensive trainings, we aim to raise employees’
confidence and performance when dealing with various situations.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group views employees’ safety and health as one of its top
priorities. In this regard, the Group spends unremitting efforts
to implement a comprehensive range of policies and operational
procedures to eliminate potential OHS risks. The Group’s production
sites remain certified for the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System (OHSAS) 18001:2007/GB/T28001-2011
standard. We adhere to the following overarching safety principles in
managing OHS issues.

Safety Principles
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
OHS Management System

Securing a work environment free from occupational health and
safety hazards entails collaboration. Representatives from various
departments work closely together in the Environmental, Health and
Safety (EHS) committee to take up their responsibilities in addressing
various safety-related concerns.

EHS senior management representative

BERBEREZNEHREEEAR

The senior management representative of the EHS committee
oversees the overall execution of the OHS management system
and communicates with relevant parties. Under its supervision, the
occupational health team is responsible for preventive measures
against occupational disease as well as various health hazards
including noise, dust and virus infection. A safety officer assumes
the role of managing environmental hygiene and food safety issues.
Moreover, a qualified first aider is stationed at each department to
perform first-aid in case injuries occur.

As a printing products manufacturer, when using machines OHS
becomes a major concern. We have therefore set up a designated
industrial and fire safety team within the EHS committee to ensure that
our machines and equipment are operated safely and properly and are
well-preserved to minimise the risk of accidents and injuries. Within this
team, a fire team head is also assigned for preventing fire incidents.
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Industrial and fire safety team
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Environmental management team
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
OHS Management System (Continued)

To protect employees from safety hazards and occupational diseases,
all employees are equipped with personal protective equipment in
accordance with their respective work-related needs. For employees
who are engaged in toxic and harmful operations, we arrange health
check-ups before they report to duty, during the employment on an
annual basis and before they leave the post to identify and eliminate
occupation related health issues in advance. During the Year, the
Group did not record any cases of occupational diseases.

Eliminating Potential Safety Hazards

In line with our safety-related principles, we take a prevention-
oriented approach to tackle fire risk. To eliminate fire hazards, our fire
safety management policy requires employees to obtain permission
from relevant departments before using fire inside company
premises, such as production sites and offices. They should smoke
only in designated zones and should never obstruct evacuation
channels through placing objects in corridors and emergency exits.
Furthermore, the Group performs a fire safety check on a monthly
basis to identify any defects in fire-fighting equipment and carries out
rectification immediately when needed. Additionally, to strengthen
staffs’ safety awareness as well as to enhance their ability to respond
to disasters, we conduct fire drills at least twice a year. The drills
serve to rehearse evacuation procedures that should be taken in case
emergencies happen.

To avoid serious injuries and accidents including fire and explosion,
we have a hazardous chemical goods management policy in place to
regulate the purchase, storage and use of chemicals.
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OUR PEOPLE (Continued) BT (&)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued) 1R B BB (48)
Eliminating Potential Safety Hazards (Continued) HIEZEEE (B)

e Use non-hazardous goods instead of hazardous chemicals as much as possible
EUEFEARSTCE2aMEESEEER
e Purchase of hazardous chemicals requires MSDS (Material Safety Data Sheet)

BEEZYHZ2HBERNES(ERER

e Each department should keep a Chemicals Inventory List to ensure proper management
REFIBRERILZRTFEIRUBFRYEEE
Chemical ° DanAgero\uf ggods must be stgred in LrldooL e:vironment with sufficient ventilation
Storage ﬁﬁxzﬁ:%ﬁﬁ%??ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ@ﬁ@iWiﬁiﬁ
BB e Chemicals should be labelled with MSDS and sealed properly to prevent leakage
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e Dispose spillage and leakage only in designated containers
ERiEESRERE GEERRR

e \Wear safety protection equipment including goggles, masks and gloves when handling chemicals

Chemical \ ) S¥93
Use REEBECERFEHZERERG UEBERE OSRFE
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OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
Eliminating Potential Safety Hazards (Continued)

In the event of fire or explosion, stringent emergency procedures are
followed to control the situation and minimise injuries and deaths.
The measures include notifying rescue department at once, initiate
evacuation when safe and try to put off the fire with fire extinguishers
under feasible conditions. When there is a leakage, employees should
cut off power and isolate the spreading of liquids, if any.

During the Year, there were 18 work-related incidents and the
number of lost person-days due to work injuries was 286. There
were no work-related fatalities reported. The Group was not aware
of any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations® that have
a significant impact on the Group regarding the provision of a safe
working environment and protection of employees from occupational
hazards.

Safety Training

Cultivating a safety culture at the workplace is essential. In this
regard, various kinds of training programmes for meeting the
different needs of employees are provided. New employees and those
who are transferred to new positions receive training based on the
safety requirements of the position. Similarly, specific trainings are
offered for employees participating in special operations or working
in positions with greater potential risks to ensure that they have
sufficient knowledge and capability to meet operational requirements
safely. In order to facilitate managerial staffs to manage and supervise
the implementation of laws and regulations required by both the
government and the Group, relevant trainings are arranged for
them regularly. In addition to caring the safety of our employees, we
communicate with suppliers and contractors to ensure they are well-
informed about the latest safety policies.

3 Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for Health and
Safety-related laws and regulations
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
Safety Training (Continued)

2020 Targets and Indicators

—E_ZFERKER

BT (&)
1EE R 3% ()
22157 (%)

000 The Group
&M
1. 0 cases of occupational disease
OB R R B 28

2. 0Oincidents in relation to combustible substance explosion, fire
incidents induced by chemicals, smoking, open flame operation and

circuit

OB R E BRI E M U RCEYE ~ RIE > BRXAF

T B 73| REA S

3. 100% coverage in employee OHS check-up
100%ETEXBERERLZE2RE

4. 100% coverage in employee EHS knowledge training

100% 8 T2 A R R R R KR Z 2R #1535

Combating COVID-19

Facing the unprecedented COVID-19, we collaborated closely with our
community partners during the Year to encounter this hard battle.

A range of preventive measures against the pandemic were taken.
These include distributing free surgical masks to all employees,
installing infra-red body temperature checking devices and placing
hand sanitizer dispensers in public areas. To enhance employees’
engagement, all staffs took part in promoting and spreading
knowledge related to precautionary measures to the public.

We also supported government’s actions through advising employees
to maintain social distancing and avoid visiting crowded premises.
Staffs who could not report for duty on time due to the special
circumstances in Hubei Province, the PRC were also paid salaries. We
also arranged isolation and quarantine facilities for those returning
from this region.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F E&£EZERERAT

100% achieved
100% 1=
100% achieved
100%:z1=

100% achieved
100% ==

100% achieved
100 %=

#iicoviD-19

Y FIFT R RAICOVID-19» BRI A F
EHRtEBEHBUSEUERIILSHE
i o

FEBERN—RIIBEIENMN % F
EfmEERMMAEREEREREINRDO
SNZRAMREERERERERN AR
BRREAFRERS BRI EEN
28 A BT 2 E R AR E A
TR TARFE I A BE A AN G o

BTSN EEEFERBERERESR
BRI R U SR BUFRITE - &
PEIHICE BRI MR BE B
TRBIE TR E - AT B
& [B] 2R BY (8 & & HF PR B A% SR o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Community Involvement

The Group has always been at the forefront to take on our social
responsibility and care those in need through various community
supporting initiatives.

In response to the unprecedented pandemic, the Group has donated
a total of 40 boxes, each containing 50 surgical masks to Chinese
YMCA of Hong Kong — Home of Love — Yung Shing Hostel and New
Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association during the Year. Besides, the
Group made donations of approximately HK$476,000 in community
investment during the Year. Looking ahead, the Group will continue
to explore opportunities to giving back to the society and building a
more connected and mutually respected society.

OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group is dedicated to upholding quality of its products and
services to the highest standards through communicating with
customers and collaboration with suppliers.

Quality Management and Assurance

Overseen by the Senior Vice President, an I1SO 9001:2015-certified
quality management system is followed. We assume responsibility for
product quality and monitor the conduct of staff for evaluation and
preserving knowledge. These resources are essential for accurately
executing our management system and future improvement.

BT (@
HESH

AER-—BHIEERGAELESE I
BBZHAMEXRHEMBARAERE
+o

BEBFIFMRENE R AEEREAE
EE&HEE40R (E8250M) 880
EFEBPEEBHEEEREIR
BEMNEREEBES LI RAE
B> &REBDIEE4476,0008 T4
ERE- REER AEBBEEGRR
WehEtg TEITSARBEERKNEME
BEMLEo

EERER
rEEFZBHEEF BERARED S
16 BT RERRRBIIEEIR

o
BIRE

BEEEARFRE

HeREEHER AEBEEBEEISO
9001: 20150 BN EEEE &4 - M
AEEREENETARERETITNER
oMU ERREN# ZEERE%E
BHRTEERAKBRBRIEEEEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - EREGRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) SEER @
Quality Management and Assurance (Continued) HEEHHERE B

Working Environment T {EIg1E

e Provide a comfortable working environment to maintain productivity
R BN TIERIEUMEREED

e Eliminate both physical and psychological pressure that affect services

HERT ERBH SRR RO IEE T

Monitoring and Evaluation 2522 R 5

e Ensure the entire production process is in compliance with national and international standards

BRBELERFETERERRE

Knowledge 38

e Embed knowledge obtained from both internal and external sources into operations
HHE P B Ko S B AR IS BRI S R &8
Internal sources include previous experience while external souces come from customers and suppliers feedback

AEZRIR R BEAR MM RRR BEER R EENRE

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2020 £ 3R



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Quality Management and Assurance (Continued)

The Group has in place a stringent set of control procedures and
operational standards to ensure product quality. Throughout
the quality assurance and production processes, we ensure that
customers’ requirements of products and services are well understood
and followed. The quality of materials and services delivered
by suppliers and sub-contractors are assessed and subjected to
testing. Products are also protected through proper storage and
transportation.

Customer Satisfaction

It is vital to understand and anticipate customers’ expectations
precisely and to communicate with them effectively. To this end, we
conduct customer satisfaction surveys annually to evaluate customer
satisfaction on aspects of technical support, quality of products
and services, as well as meeting environmental requirements. This
allows us to assess our performance and identify areas for future
improvement. During the Year, the Group achieved an overall
satisfaction rate of over 94%.

Before the production process commences, the Production
Department verifies the working procedures and materials specified
by the customer. Should there be any defects in materials identified
during the manufacturing stage, recall procedures are activated. The
Group closely communicates with customers for unqualified products
recall matters so that we can satisfy their needs in a timely manner.
Our Recall Team is responsible for analysing the cause and suitability
of recall, then initiate the recall process within 48 hours. Associated
rectification and preventive measures are also taken to review and
enhance the effectiveness of recall procedures. In 2020, there were
138 complaints received and all were satisfactorily settled.

EEER (@)
HEEEERE ()

FEBRE — R BB ESIFE IR
SERENURREREE NEBEE®D
REREEBRETR RFBRERZERHE
mRIRFNERBEBRFB R H
Fgﬁ)i’z B BTN R RE 2

THig WEIE%% AR - RFIEBEZE

{.%7(? ¥LM%D%§;DD °

ERREE

Bt T R FEStE PR E R E
REBRBETDEZ -FLILME >
RPSFETERMEERSE LG
ERERME  ERRkRBHEEL
REEGRIEERFLFMEE L2
FAFIPIEF A R IR A ) B 18 SUE RV EE
Ro-RAFE AEENBREAREEE
94% LA £

REERFHRIGR £EBEZELF
BRFRERIEERNYIE - HIEERE
FIRYE HIRE ARG &g ERERIIK
BF AEBMFAEHERNERER
BRRREEBE MBI &EmE
KRENFBE - -HANEKEEREED
MEIWRER KR & B > W48/
W & B O] AR 7 o I M9 7R & BREAR R AY
A R TR HE I > LU ST R 4R A Bl U A2
FRAEMME - KT ZF  HAHUWK
138 RE T PFEKRFERFEE WA
Ho
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Customer Satisfaction (Continued)

We devote every effort to satisfy our customers. Yet, complaints
do arise and we adhere to a comprehensive complaint handling
procedure stipulated in our customer communication management
procedure to settle and resolve complaints.

Conduct
tests and
investigation
5%17 :ﬁ'J nit&

Verify the issue
and liase with
customers
ZEMER

B P AR

Receive
complaints

BRI

HEER (@)
EFRREE (@)

HPBFAAES HmERMANETFR -BE
gt AN ERER T MBFIET
ERBBEERFTMAIBENEZER
FrERRT  UMR®EHFo

Rectify the
problem and
formulate
preventive
measures

4 IE R RE e
%I E FERS &

Recall or
reproduce

products }
(5] Yy 3% E #i
YEEM

2020 Targets and Indicators
—_EERFABRIER
The Group

00O
TEE

i

Responsible Advertising

Customer satisfaction > 94

EmEE >9%

The Group strives to protect its own image as well images of others.
Engagement in unfair competition of any kind is therefore strictly
forbidden. This includes the acts of trademark piracy and fabrication
and the use of advertisement materials that contain false or
misleading information about the quality and properties of products.
To safeguard the reputation of related parties or business partners, we
also prohibit damaging the goodwill of competitors, infringement of
their commercial secrets or engaging in illegal market dealings when
conducting advertising activities.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance of
relevant laws and regulations* that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

4 Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for product
responsibility-related laws and regulations

99% achieved

99% =1z

BREENESER

rEBESHREBFRMANTR-
Fit > FEBRBRELEETEFEREDN
NAFHFE - ILBEHRERBRBEL
REREEREERMER MR
HREEM - RIREBESNEHBH
NEBE  FMIERIERIEGEHFNE
B -RICEBERE Yﬁ ETES A
RIEFIFETHIHR

RAEFE > AERETAMEBERAET
ERFTRHERARBHERRZ 2
BE BB NMNRBEERMUESRENE
BEREBEHAERSERNERTENS
o

4 BLRERRER B UTHBERSE

THRABER AR
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Supply Chain Management

To bring about the best product and services, we are dedicated to
closely engaging and forming amicable relationships with suppliers
and subcontractors. The selection of suppliers and sub-contractors is
based upon a set of criteria, including the presence of valid operating
license, reasonable price, quality and environmental performance.
Regular site visits and surveys are also conducted to further audit
their conditions and assess their production abilities. Suppliers’
performance is evaluated annually. Those who fail to meet the
required standards and are unable to carry out rectification within the
required time limit face removal from the list of approved suppliers
and sub-contractors.

As a printing products manufacturer, the Group is particularly
concerned about the safety and quality of inks and other materials
provided by suppliers. It is therefore our foremost task to verify
certifications of these chemicals and raw materials including MSDS
and testing reports from credible third parties are required to ensure
that the in-coming materials meet the required standards. In line
with this, we prioritise suppliers who can demonstrate sustainability
practices such as aspects of environmental protection and human
rights. To encourage suppliers to assume their roles in social
responsibility, they are required to sign a CSR agreement as well
as to adhere to our expectations and standards outlined in a social
responsibility management procedure.

EEER (@)
e

PERRENERRRE > ZFARH
HEBRDEBBUGIFERERF R
R - HERRDEENRELER—
RIIRE > QERTA M EEF AR
NWkBER -EE8RRFERTEE -AE
ETSETEREMER UE—T =
StER AR EHEESE N - TEEE
FHEHEBPRE - ZSRENER
ERERKENRERFERNETALE
WHERR A HEERDBEE S
i R 3l Bk

ERERIEREER  ZEBLHER
HEREHIEREAMYH 222
REE At RPNWEBZITHEAZE
ZEER2RREMEIREE (BEYH
ZEHER) URERETEE=7A
BV RS U RER T S R ERE -
FLUL  JRFIBAER I RTAFEERE
BR BINIRFERAEF L) BIHE
Ho MBI HEERERSNLESEE
WAt REFERITELELTEEW
o UBTHRANTEEEEERERT
HENRAERIRE-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - EREGRS

HERR (@)
AR EE ()

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Supply Chain Management (Continued)

° Manage chemical safety
using Material Safety Data

Security
Management
ZHER

Security management system
ZHEBERS

Control of the process of

Sheet (MSDS) ;
FRYRZEZHERTE storage and transportation of
tB2Z2 goods

Chemical

ERENNHEERERRER

Safety Quality
Management Management e Control of the personnel in
t2m RETE and out of factory
European and US Standards RAEE SRUATEOAS

BUM K& 2B % Supplier Selection Criteria
HEREEEE
Sony i’ia;dard - Certification of 1SO 9001
EJEE ISO 90013
Panasgrjic Standard e Quality management measures
BT mEEEERE
Wiaste/rubbish classification Social
B R TR
Emercency Plan e?f;niél y » Prohibition of child labour, forced
EE%%*gl'%U y ol labour and prison labour

ZIEAET REETIREMET

¢ Safety Management
ZRERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Sustainable Procurement

The Group has been exploring opportunities to source greener
products. As a step in the sustainability journey, we only accept
eco-friendly materials at the stage of testing at one of our major
subsidiaries.

On the other hand, we strictly adhere to the FSC Chain of Custody
management manual to handle procurement of FSC certified paper
products. The effective implementation of the FSC standard relies on
a range of measures, including documentation of procurement for at
least 5 years to ensure traceability and integrity of relevant records.
In addition, there are controls to regulate the production process and
proper storage. To prevent mixing FSC-certified materials with non-
FSC certified materials, they must be clearly labeled, with quantity and
weight precisely marked before storage.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is committed to safeguarding intellectual property rights
of its own as well as those of relevant stakeholders. The social
responsibility management manual sets out policies formulated by the
Human Resource department to manage and control matters related
to intellectual property rights protection. For instance, unauthorised
use of clients’ patents, trademarks and technologies is strictly
prohibited. Employees should also never steal or infringe intellectual
properties of suppliers and colleagues in the company.

In 2020, the Group owns 1 patent. During the Year, the Group
was not involved in any litigation relating to infringement of any
intellectual property rights.

EEER (@)
fHAESEEIE (1)
AR

AEB-BEREREGURBERREN
EmeFRrFEERIRENES—E
S RANET—HEZEWE QT
B PE BR R ARIR R KL ©

S—HE RFEREBRFSCHEEE
EEF M URIEFSCRB AR MK
BB AMAITFSCREMRIE — R IIIE
i BEED I ENREXXH > UER
MERISCERBI R B ML K STTEE M o IIE5h
BT BEEGERUAEELEERF K
ZEFF ARG EFSCRENY
FHAJEFSCRRE IR HNBR BB
BRE UTRNREFIEERAHERE

=
5E-°

3 E

FEBERNREHBS REBRFMNE
WAHEE tESEEEFMEIA
NEREBHIERVBUER » LI IR Fe il 6l
NHERREEROSE AU &
EERBIEREREERERNEN
AR A - BETF KB ERBIE S
RHERRABREMHEE-

RIZZF AEEEE—REFN-
RAFE  AEBEWED KRARBER
R E A R RaA
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Data Privacy Protection

The Group works diligently to protect data security and privacy of its
stakeholders and employees. Our product confidentiality control policy
stipulates a series of measures and access controls for both offices
and production sites to minimise the risk of leakage of confidential
documents and products, as well as details of products which have
not yet been launched.

Suppliers and Clients tEEFREZ R

EEER (@)
BORIBA R EE

FEBTERNREAFNERES
WEIEZ 2 KRB - KB E R REE
HIBERTIBB— R I E U R E R &
£ E B AR B > DUR 1 2 S
2 BE am B9 R R JEL B DA Rz 1) oK ¥ T 35
BEmMBR -

e Entering confidential production areas without being accompanied by staff is prohibited

RIEGRTESTRER N EARBEEERES

e A confidentiality agreement is signed with clients for every order received

MEFITEARFRERTHE

e An appointed person from each department oversees the entire production process

BHMPIEE—RAEBEREELEERR

Employees fE&

e Strictly comply with the Employee Code of Ethics which forbids disclosing or publishing of any confidential

documents of the Group

BRETETERRETH EDRILRENEMAEREAME XM

e Training and inspection regarding data protection and privacy are provided annually

AERSFRHEARBBFRERLRNEIREZ

e New comers are required to sign a confidentiality agreement

MABE BRI R %
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to building a positive corporate image
and requires its employees to uphold the values of integrity and
honesty. As such, we have a zero-tolerance policy against any form
of corruption including but not limited to bribery, fraud and money
laundering. A detailed code of conduct is stipulated in our anti-
corruption policy for staffs to observe at all times. On the other hand,
we offer annual training to staff from all departments to help them
adhere to the anti-corruption policy.

During the Year, the Group has achieved the annual target of zero
corruption activity and was not aware of any noncompliance of
laws and regulations® regarding bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that have a significant impact to the Group.

There were no legal cases regarding corrupt practices, brought against
the Group or its employees during the Year.

Any member of the Group
must not bribe for trading
opportunities or competitive
advantages
TERTAHEHTRE
THEMERSES
HENHREED

Bribery comes in the form of
giving discounts or gifts to
other parties in exchange for
personal benefits
FERR O mAe T HMA L
OB LUREE A
AT

Employees should not
engage in fraudulent
acts including using false
identification or report false
operational information
BENSETRFT/A
BIEEAERNS N
FERIERAVEEE N

Stay highly alert for potential
fraudulent behaviour from
other companies, report any
suspicious case to supervisor
immediately
EEEBEMATIR
TETEEREFT 43 BN
B ERRPIAREZE

EERER (@)

RES
FEERNBIEERNTEELR LHE
EHEEERTEEHENEE -EHIL:
HAPAEEATEANESHRRNETET
B BERE - HEERARE &
B By R E5 BUR 5 B sF Al < ST R
UMETHEMERBGEET 5— M|’
HPEFRFASFINE TRMHEII
iR EBTRETEER

REFE AEECENTESNEE
Bif BANEBEAERBREBE I
SFREBRBN AR A ERAER
T EBEANER

RAFE TEHAKAEENHEESR
S R EBBERE S -

Conflict of interest

Fm AR
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Code of Conducts
Whistleblowing

To fight against corruption effectively, we encourage employees to
report any unethical behaviours to administrative and HR department
through channels that include email, messaging and direct lines
anonymously or in real names. The identity of whistleblower is kept
highly confidential. All reported cases are investigated thoroughly.
Anyone found to have violated the anti-corruption policy is subject
to disciplinary actions depending on the severity of the misconduct.
If a criminal offence is involved, the case is referred to relevant legal
department while compensation is paid if there is an economic loss.

2020 Targets and Indicators

“ETFERKIER

EEER (@)
&P PRI
£

mBERITRES WMEBETERE
FHE-AEREREZEERAERR
THRANERBEREMA A BERT
B BRBENINESERE -PIASR
BEZRGETEZEAE -SHREM
ATERRESHR RERFAETT
HBEEMEMEHNCRTE 5 KA
FR1T BARRENEREREPT
HIRE IR R AIFL IR E -

o

000 The Group

TEE
1. 0 corruption cases
= A i

ORETEZE
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R - EREGRS

LAWS AND REGULATIONS ERRGER

The Group devotes unremitting efforts to ensure that its business REBISENRMEEFEREXRESEST
operations are in full compliance with all applicable laws and PEBETEHRE - e REANERE
regulations in respect of ESG. The list of applicable laws and B FER ERFRERERLEBWT

regulations is as follows:—

Applicable Laws and Regulations Section

BRERRZER =1
Emissions ¢ Environmental Protection Law of the PRC Environmental Protection —
HER hEE AR HEMBIRIEFRE A Emission Control

e Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC IRIR IR —HEHUZH!

HhEE AR EMEIKSRBAE

Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
hEA\RAMBEARSRESE

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste
PEARANBEEREY S RIREN A

Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution

I N\ REMEIRIERE SRAE

The National Hazardous Waste List

BUZ fa g BE Y 44 ik

Integrated Air Pollutant Discharge Standard

KRS SHERE

Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard

SR BT E

Boiler Air Pollutants Emission Standard

BER RS R RURE

Use of Resources e Energy Conservation Law of the PRC Environmental Protection —
HRER hE AR EMBEESLERE Resources Conservation
e Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the PRC BRIERE-FNER

REARAMBEBREEREE

Environmental and Natural e Forest Law of the PRC Environmental Protection

Resources E A REMBEZME - Noise Management,

RIERKRAER * Regulations of Guangdong Province on Forest Protection Promoting Green Products,
Management Environmental Emergency
[ER A ZMIRE SRR Management

RIGRE-REEE VEE
BEEm RRESERE
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R - EREGRS

LAWS AND REGULATIONS (Continued) EERER (@)
Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
BRLZERER =1
Labour e Labour Law of the PRC Our People — Employee
BT hE \NREMES L Communication, Employment
¢ Labour Contract Law of the PRC Practices
RENRENBES B SR ET-REEBE ERER

¢ Law of the PRC on the Protection of Disabled Persons
E AR EMEIREAREE
¢ Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minorities
hE ANREMEDHREREE
¢ Trade Union Law of the PRC
PEARHEME T
¢ Women's Right Protection Law of the PRC
fhEE N RHEMER 2 #m fRiE %
e Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees
hEANREMELZH TEHRERIRE

The Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong

BEERRD
e The Employee’s Compensation Ordinance in Hong Kong
BB ESHERE
e The Sex Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
B B AR 151G
e The Race Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
BRR KRR A
e The Disability Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
BRBRE IR IRE
Health and Safety e Production Safety Law of the PRC Our People —~Occupational
REEZE hEA\REMBEZZ2EEE Health and Safety
* Special Equipment Safety Law of the PRC BT-BERERZE

REAREMBEBERBEZEE

Fire Protection Law of the PRC

EANRHEMBEDEPE

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases

hEARAEMBEBERR R

The Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong.
BEEBBELRERREFEM
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

LAWS AND REGULATIONS (Continued)

Vi

Applicable Laws and Regulations

RERRER

ERBGER (1)

Section

B

Labour standards

HIER

Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors
RE AR HEMBERMEAREE
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour

RIEGERETIRE

Our People — Employment
Practices

BT-EEER

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Product Quality Law of the PRC
FEARANEERESE
Production Safety Law of the PRC
PEARANBEZEEEZE
Intellectual Property Laws of the PRC
HRE \RAEMEIAHEREE
Cybersecurity Law of the PRC
REARAEMEBELEZE
Patent Law of the PRC
REANRHEMBEFEFE

The Personal Data Ordinance in Hong Kong

BRBABRFH

Operating Practices — Quality
Management and Assurance,
Intellectual Property Rights,
Data Privacy Protection
SEER-EE8EERMR
&M ER BB R

5%

Anti-corruption

R&s

Criminal Law of the PRC

RE AN RHEMEE

Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
REARAEMBERAEERFE

The Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong

BB L BERIES

Operating Practices — Anti-
corruption
EEER-RES
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R - EREGRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

RRBIEBE

2020 2019

—EZT “E-hE
Total Energy Consumption GJ 63,252.48 62,216.09
RERHFEEE TIKEE
Energy consumption intensity GJHKD ('000) 0.12 0.13
REREEE FIKEE H (F)
Electricity kWh 15,107,950.00 14,973,740.00
B TEE
Natural gas m3 186,572.00 182,852.00
RAR AR
Petrol litres 34,737.35 37,400.37
Y UH NI
Diesel litres 13,777.00 -
Sl NI
Water Consumption tonnes 163,506.00 142,222.12
FEKE i
Water consumption intensity tonnes/HKD ('000) 0.31 0.29
e /BT ()

. Packaging Materials
Enw;;%nent ol
Paper tonnes 14,634.00 3,789.28
AR Mg
Plastic tonnes 485.60 785.69
ik it
Metal tonnes 2.80 8.15
=B i
Greenhouse Gases (GHG) Emissions®
RE R
Scope 1: direct carbon emissions tCO2e 531.67 518.88
#HE BTN W—abikEE
Scope 2: indirect carbon emissions tCO2e 12,028.25 12,382.36
FE: B ME_EtREE
Total GHG emissions tCO2e 12,559.92 12,901.24
RERBHHES M_EEREE
Total GHG emission intensity tCO2e/HKD ('000) 0.02 0.02
AERBHNEZERS M- EiREE
A7t (F)

6 Emission factors are adjusted compared to those disclosed in 2019 6 BERBHREFR-Z—NFEMHA
report, and GHG emissions in 2019 are recalculated and adjusted in Byl FRTE-NENARAERBHIEE
the above table. EMstEL A
Greenhouse gases (GHG) emissions are calculated with reference BERBERGK2ERZBH AT TN

FEERE - HERERRS M2 R
BRI ARGERERISS ) Mt > Mk
WEFRIZ2EZ2019F ERBIERE FEE
BB AEERINA T - 2IKERAVEAE
E2EBRFBREZEEFMIZEEIPCO)
BB A REHERE o

to HKEX's How to Prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” and the emission factors are
referenced from the 2019 Emission Reduction Project China Regional
Grid Baseline Emissions Factor. The global warming potential is
referenced to the Fifth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued)

Environment
R

Workforce
Demographics
HEh
AE#g st

Air Pollutants
ERISEYM

RRBEME (B

2020
—E_EfF

—_—=—

2019
—F-NF

SOx
maty

0.51

0.55

NOx
a8ty

89.71

86.19

PM
R F R

7.95

7.57

VOC
BEUEERESY

tonnes

g

0.03

0.00

Waste
EEEY

Hazardous waste

BEBERY)

tonnes

g

22.91

14.27

Hazardous waste intensity

BEEEREYERE

kg/HKD ('000)
Afr/E7 (T

0.04

0.03

Non-hazardous waste
BEEEY

tonnes
T

180.00

200.00

Non-hazardous waste intensity
BEBRVERE

kg/HKD ('000)
Afr/E7 (T)

0.34

0.41

Effluent
35K

tonnes
T

13,553.00

14,168.00

Effluent intensity
TEIKERE

tonnes/HKD ('000)
Mg, #&7 (F)

0.03

0.03

Total Headcount

ET4%E

1,460

1,527

By Geographical Distribution
Bth&E 2

PRC
&

1,317

1,437

Hong Kong
B

143

90

By Age
RER

30 or Below
30 LT

222

196

31-50
315 £505%

1,107

1,234

Above 50
505% A k&

131

97

By Gender
e gl

Male
B

738

811

Female

g3

722

716
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R - EREGRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) RIFEME (8)

2020 2019
—E-TH —E—hEF

By Educational Background
BREAHAR

Tertiary education or above 226 191

REHE

Below tertiary education 1,234 1,336
REDTF

By Professional Profile

REAE

Management 353 348
BEAE

General staff 1,107 1,179
—RET

Employee Turnover Rate

BERKLEE

Total 59% 65%
“axE

By Age
BER

30 or Below 177 % 250%
0BT

31-50 35% 39%
315 E505%

LTI SEI( Above 50 65% 5%
Demographics [z

BEN By Gender
N E T 51 7))

Male 59% 64%
B

Female 60% 65%
Z%

Employee New Hire Rate

B S #h{E{ Lb =

Total 59% 62%
kL]

By Age
B EFhe

30 or Below 69% 159%
305U T

31-50 60% 51%
315 E505%

Above 50 35% 3%
505

By Gender
gkl

Male 55% 57%
B

Female 62% 68%
274
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

Training and
Development

1EAN R 2% R

Health and

Safety
BERZE

Community

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) RIVEIEHE (48)
2020 2019

—E-TH —E—hEF
Percentage of Employees Trained 97% 98%
ZillEETSLE
By Gender
gkl
Male 96 % 98%
B4
Female 98% 98%
gegs
By Professional Profile
Y AE
Management 97% 99%
BEAB
General staff 97% 97%
—RET
Average Training Hours per Person 30 16
8 A TIE IR
By Gender
e gl
Male hours 30 16
B4 IINE
Female hours 30 16
g /N
By Professional Profile
R RE
Management hours 19 17
EEAE NS
General staff hours 34 16
—RET N:=
Work-related incident cases 18 21
TEAERASE RE
Lost days due to work-related injury days 286 265
THEERTIEEH X
Work-related fatalities no. of employees 0 0
TEAERASET A BB A#
Number of employees participating in safety | person-times 2,579 2,654
training A
2HEZ2IEIEEAH
Total safety training hours hours 5,514 5,836
e lIFiss 5 NS
Donations HK$ 476,000 133,000
B I

Investment

HERE
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX BMAZRIRIE - HEREBAD
=

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

R AR IS 1E HRRIE -t E R ERREIEEIEXR =120

A. Environmental

A IRIE

Aspect A1: General Disclosure Environmental

Emissions Information on: Protection

[BHEA1 : (@) the policies; and IRIGIRE

HER 4 (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—RIEE

BERRBRAEREBHR AR S - EEREIEEYN

B4R

(@ R

(b) BTFHETABEAFZENEREZRRRANER -

KPI A1.1 Types of emissions and their respective emissions data. | Environmental
RASRAERN BER Y RESE R AR R HE R - Protection — Emission
I51EA1.1 Control

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, IRIG R & — BFRUE

RASE4ERL | where appropriate, intensity.
1EEA12  RERBEAHINE U8 KEE WHEA)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where |Environmental
RATRAER appropriate, intensity. Protection —
1B1EA13 |FTELEEEEWREE UUEE) REE (WEA) o | Effluent and Waste
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Managemen\t_
RASE4ERL | where appropriate, intensity. IRIERE 5K

IEIBA1A  |FEEESFEYEE QR E) REE ER) - |RNEE

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and Environmental
RABEAER results achieved. Protection — Emission
EIEA1S | BB ENRHRFAEMRE - Control
IRIBIRE — eS|
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Environmental
RASE4ERL | wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results Protection —
#512A1.6 | achieved. Effluent and Waste
WMEIEEEMBEEEYN A A REEELEENE Management
MR TS A SR © IRIB IR — 5 K EE
EYEE
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R - EREGRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

BB IR SR

Aspect A2:

Use of Resources
JBEA2 :
BIREHA

53 (@)

BRFIIRIE-HEREBRR

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

BRFRIRIE - E R ERREIESIEXR =4 ]

General Disclosure Environmental

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and | Protection

other raw materials. IBIS{RE

—RIRE

BEXRFERAER (B1EER KR EMEMED) OB

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in Environmental

RASEAE R total (kWh in '000s) and intensity. Protection — Resources

BiEA2.1 | RENEISNERKRIEEEREEEE UUTE

Conservation

FTREHE) REBE- IRIBERE—SHNER
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.
FREN |REKEREE-
151RA2.2
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
RASEMER | results achieved.
518A2.3 | HIEEREE AN G st B R PTIS AR ©
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Environmental
RATRAER water that is fit for the purpose, water efficiency Protection — Resources

¥51EA2.4 initiatives and results achieved.
37t SK B 78 R KR B A R R 8 > WU R IR A7k &

sTEI TS AR ©

Conservation
RIERE-HOER

KPI A2.5
PR AR
$51RA2.5

Total packaging materials used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

S RTReEMEEE UMETE) MEEEEMG
2 WEm) -

Environmental
Protection — Resources
Conservation
IRIERE—ENEIR

Aspect A3: The
Environment and
Natural Resources
JEEA3 :
RIERRAER

General Disclosure

Environmental

Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant impact on the Protection
environment and natural resources. IRIE(RE

— AR IR EE

BRBITAHIRERRAEREMERATENER

KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on the Environmental
RABE4ER | environment and natural resources and the actions Protection — Noise

$542A3.1  |taken to manage them.
HUEBHIRIE R RRE RN E

BRAZENTH-

FERERINERE

Management,
Promoting Green
Products
RIgRE—IREEE

HEESBER
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R - EREGRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

BRFIIRIE-HEREBRR
53 (@)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section
RARAEMIEIR BRARIRIE - HERERREEIIER 8-

B. Social

B. #1&

Aspect B1: General Disclosure Our People
Employment Information on: BT
JEmEB1 : (a) the policies; and

2% (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— AR IR EE
ERBEEREE - BERSEA TEFE BB -FEHE -2k
J2 52 #53 ARe LA 538 S @ F1I B9 -
(@ HR, K
(b) BTFTHETABEAXENEREERRINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group
RASE4ER | and geographical region.
$51EB1.1 BRI BEEE  FRAN RN &S DN REER -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
RASE4E®L | geographical region.
151%5B1.2 R FRAR RMES DB MK

Our People — Employee
Profile
BT REEME
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R - EREGRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

BB IR SR

Aspect B2:

Health and Safety
fEmEB2 :
fEREZR

53 (@)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

BRFRIRIE - E R ERREIESIEXR

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

— R EE

ERRHEZ2THFRERREREERTHEMGCEMN !

(@ HR;, &

(b) BFHETABBARZENERBERLRONER

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
RATRER A TERMEMAE T ABREEE
$51%B2.1

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injuries.
BIEN |RIBBATIEEH-
$51%B2.2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
R A adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
{518B2.3  |HAZLPAERANAVER SR 2R A 22 2 T > MURAERAFIT R
BE 50

MR FRIRS B REAAE

Section

=3:]

Our People -
Occupational Health
and Safety

BT -BERRKRZ

ES
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R - EREGRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

BRFIIRIE-HEREBRR
53 (@)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section
RARAEMIEIR BRARIRIE - HERERREEIIER 8-
Aspect B3: General Disclosure Our People —
Development and Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging | Training and
Training duties at work. Description of training activities. Development
[EEB3 : —RIREE BT EillRER
BER RN BERARAEERIT TIEBE R # Kk i AE R BUER - #tIE &S ©

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and

RASEM | employee category.

$51%EB3.1 BERREEENB DN ZIIEET DL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by

RASEME | gender and employee category.

aiEB3.2 | ®RMUBIREELERE D > B4 EB T TIIENIE

2o
Aspect B4: General Disclosure Our People
Labour Standards Information on: 8T
[EHEB4 : (a) the policies; and
T AR (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child or forced labour.

— R EE

BRI IEETHARGIZETH :

(@) BER; &

(b) BFHETABBARZENBRERLRONEK

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices | Our People —

RASR4ERL | to avoid child and forced labour. Employment Practices

51%B4.1 i R E BRI R E T aREI%E T o ET—RESHR

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

RASEE | when discovered.

f51EB4.2 | IRERIBREHIARE RS RPT R L B o
Aspect B5: General Disclosure Operating Practices
Supply Chain Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply — Supply Chain
Management chain Management
JE mEB5 : — AR EE EEBR—HERE
it FE % 18 EIRMHEENIRIE R & R RBUER i

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

FEEN |RMESSHNHERRE -

$51EB5.1
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R - EREGRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

BB R SR

Aspect B6:
Product
Responsibility
fEHEB6 :
EmAE

53 (@)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

BRFRIRIE - ERERREIEEIEXR

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

— R EE

ERMREESTRBNRERZS - ES REEMEEEUR

R A

MR FRIRS B REAAE

Section

311

Operating Practices
EERER

(@ BE; &
(b) BTFHETABEAZENEREIERRFINER -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Operating Practices —

RASRAER
$51ZB6.2

received and how they are dealt with.

BRERNERRRBHRFEE URRES -

Customer Satisfaction
EEERH-FARE
E

KPI B6.3
RASRAERL
}51ZB6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
R AEE R REN B EE AR ER -

Operating Practices —
Intellectual Property
Rights
SR AR A E

KPI B6.4
151%B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
LB ERTBRERERBIKIER

Operating Practices —
Quality Management
and Assurance
EERR-E=28IE
BREE

KPI B6.5
PR AR
51%B6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

i 2UH B & BUIRRE R BB URBBRNITRE
gHEe

Operating Practices —
Data Privacy Protection
SEEE-FEEL
&
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) MZAARE-HEERELEARE
1551 (48)

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

RRSRARMIEIR BRAIRE - HERERBREEIIEKR E=3:0]

Aspect B7: General Disclosure Operating Practices —

Anti-corruption Information on: Anti-corruption

JEEB7 : (@) the policies; and sERHR-KE5

REE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— I E

BRAFERE ~ R ~ IRFE R R 880 ¢

(@) BER; &

(b) BIFHBEITABEAZENHERAEERRFNER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
RATRER practices brought against the issuer or its employees
51EB7.1 during the reporting period and outcomes of the cases.

REBESHANEETANEEESRHEEEENESH
SREM BB KRG R

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
RASEEM | procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
151%B7.2  |HBHSEIE R BREF  URABRARITREER -

Aspect B8: General Disclosure Our People —
Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Community
Investment communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take | Involvement
[2EBS : into consideration the communities’ interests. BET—HESHA
HERE —iR IR EE

BRI R2HERTBRETNEEMEINTERENRAEERS
HELRHLEFHABER -

KPI BS.1 Focus areas of contribution.
RASRAEN HXEMEE-
}51ZB8.1

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area.
RASRAER EEIHEBEMHAE R
}51ZB8.2
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B HETER S

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWAY GROUP HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 132 to 301, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

=2

HINeway Group Holdings Limited
PEEEIEZERARAR “KBRR
(R EFREAMETZ B R E])

R

IZEEN (AT ) BEE3
N E132E E 5301 EMINeway Group
Holdings Limited P E2&£BEZERBREA
a* UTHBIERE) REHBAT
UTHBIEEEH)) NEEMBR
& IEMBRERBERZZEIEF+Z
B=+—HWNEREMBRAREAESE
ZHLFENGEBEEREMEEN
ARR - GRERDEHRRGESRERN
ERT URGKEMBRRHT B1F
FESHBRBRE -

KPR ZE GO BEBRRERES
BEIHAE ((EEGFEAT)) B
H(EAMBRSEL) (SEFHER
FHEA)) EEMPEIRMTY E£H
A CECEE+ A=+ —HWERS
PR UREREBEEZALEEEN
REMBRERGERERE TEE
BREAB(RBEA)NKEEREZ A
o

ERNER

HPERBEEBEMAGTEMI(E
BESHER) (EBESER)) E1T7F
steBMIERFRERR P RENSEE
RIS BB R G M BT
ENSE B PFE-—T B - RIE
BEAGSEAGREMI(EEGSEIE
fesrRl) (TspRUL) - HFIBILR BE
B> WEBTTRITHEMEESE-
HPIRE > IR B /RERE

ERBEMSBEMANEFERREHE

B o

* (EEHAE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B HETER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

ik

HEE

STEEERMVEEFE > VAR

HESFAPGEAUBREERAEEN
FH - BEFEEERMBFAERES
MHBRRREEBRRFETREN &K

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of
investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the inherent
level of complex and subjective
judgement and estimates
required in determining the fair
values.

The Group's investment properties
portfolio comprises commercial and
industrial properties located in Hong
Kong and the People Republic of
China (the “PRC") and is stated at
fair value of HK$212,020,086 as at
31 December 2020 with a fair value
loss of HK$9,917,231 recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended.

Our procedures in relation to
the valuation of investment
properties included:

e  Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of the valuers and obtaining
an understanding of the
valuers’ scope of work and
their terms of engagement;

PrEHEEEHREHBEBENER
P E 5 0 T 4 B

MREASZE REAZRETRE

REWENIGE

AABLRENENG KAEEARENEN

ERHERESEZE It GENEFESE:

DERBEATERSE
EEBRMFLER
REBBFIER R fh5t o

EEENKREMEAR
HEEUREART
FEANRLFE (THE))
SEEYYEEL/EXR
URZEZTE+
B=+t—-HNAFTE
212,020,086 % 755
B UIREEZERLEE
ENGeBaEM2
AR AREZAER LT
{EUN#9,917,231 8 T 0
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B HETER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

EEtEIE (&)

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

The Group's investment properties
are measured using the fair value
model based on a valuation
performed by independent qualified
professional valuers. As disclosed in
notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, in determining
the fair values of the Group's
investment properties, the valuers
have applied income capitalisation
approach or direct comparison
approach, as appropriate, for
respective properties, which involve,
inter-alia, certain estimates, including
appropriate capitalisation rates,
reversionary income potential and
market transactions of comparable
properties, as appropriate.

Evaluating the appropriateness
of the valuers’ valuation
approaches to assess if they
meet the requirements of the
HKFRSs and industry norms;

Challenging the reasonableness
and appropriateness of
valuation models applied
based on available market
information and our knowledge
of the property industry and
whether the methodologies are
consistent with the bases used
in prior year; and

Assessing the reasonableness
of key inputs used in the
valuation, on a sample
basis, by checking to the
publicly available information
on market transactions of
comparable properties,
comparing rental income,
terms of existing leases to the
existing lease summaries of the
Group and evaluating whether
capitalisation rates adopted are
comparable to the market.

K E 5 0 T 5 B
MREHEE REAZRETRE
REWENIGE (B)
EEENRENEDRE sTAG i E AR AT £
BATERL REE ANGELER
UREREXEEMA TEE M
BTN ESE B RERENAE
GEMBRENE4R BB BREEL
16FRE REE & RATREA
EEREMEZATE
B HEMEHZSY REFBNTE
EEBBMAERES BRRAFIEY)
ERERE (REEE ETENRH
) BERSR (HPE URTERRE
)BT (BEGE AEMAEE—
WERER -BRRA B BT AR
ENRFIBLBYEZ HERANGE
B5H2 5 (NBA)) ° EREGIHRES
i, &
BBEHAEL
BMETHRS
WARARE
B RRERN
WA ER
i EEERA
HOBMZETLE
8o MR ER
EFfERNEE
WABENGE
1% > DUk T & PR
RANEREXR
REETDHAE
LEBERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B HETER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

PR =

MREHEE

stEIE (@)

K E 5 0 T 5 B
REAZRETRE

Net realisable value assessment of properties under

development for sale

We identified the net realisable
value assessment of properties
under development for sale as
a key audit matter because of
the management’s judgement
and estimate involved in the net
realisable value assessment for
the relevant project.

Included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are
the properties under development for
sale amounting to HK$124,759,125
as at 31 December 2020, which is
stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

As set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements,
management has estimated the
net realisable value assessment
of the Group’s properties under
development for sale with reference
to the comparable market
transactions in similar locations.

Our procedures in relation to
evaluating the appropriateness of
the management’s net realisable
value assessment of properties
under development for sale
included:

e Discussing with management
to obtain an understanding
of the net realisable value
assessment;

e Evaluating the appropriateness
of the comparable market
transactions in similar locations
identified by the management;
and

e Obtaining legal opinion
on whether there is any
restrictions for the Group
to realise the properties
under development for sale
pursuant to the Updated
Freeze Order (as defined in
note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements).

HREZRFNEN TET R EFG

DIBAHEREDY
ENERRS LR
EHER BAENE
SRR EHES
REREHERFE-

REMBRIREHE
R_E_EE+_A
Z+-HNFEERED
#)%£124,759,1258 7T
HB UM A R A &2IR%
BZBEETR

ﬁﬂ@é%%ﬁ%%i
AT EEERRS
ZHREMENTELR
TEXS G5t B
EREERPYENT
I MET (G
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B HETER S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B HETER S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B HETER S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B HETER S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mr. CHAU Chi Ka.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEmkEMEEIARER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_S_SHE+_A=+—BLEE

2020 2019
=t —ET—hEFE
NOTES HK$ HK$
k=3 BT BT
Total revenue Al 532,674,495 560,585,247
Gross proceeds from sale of listed equity HE EH#ERE >
FriSmRIB4E%R 27,965,562 8,955,639
560,640,057 569,540,886
Continuing operations FBREET
Revenue g 5
Revenue from goods and services REEmERFEZ
W 7 521,037,413 544,782,853
Rental income R ON 4,880,323 7,310,989
Interest income from lending business REWREEHKZ
FEUA 6,756,759 8,491,405
Total revenue from continuing operations R B 5B E 275
MU 532,674,495 560,585,247
Cost of sales and services HE M ARIE A A (399,625,483) (408,798,120)
Gross profit EF) 133,049,012 151,787,127
Other interest income HF U A 11 1,237,216 1,343,276
Other income HgA 11 12,618,577 5,717,225
Selling and distribution expenses HERKHEES (27,077,778) (34,827,860)
Administrative expenses THEX (119,751,255) (109,972,468)
Other gains and losses Hl e & E1E 7 (50,275,668) (24,623,820)
Impairment losses under expected credit &REERGNEE
loss model on financial assets and RIEREEHIBER
contract assets, net of reversal BTz RERSE
NBR#EEE 11 (33.356,591) (4,869,880)
Finance costs BB AL A 8 (4,878,062) (5,920,964)
Share of results of joint ventures BEEERNBZEE (4,000) (9,268)
Loss before taxation from REFERLS X
continuing operations PR ATES1E (88,438,549) (21,376,632)
Taxation credit (charge) MRIBM % (T H) 10 1,121,494 (5,979,227)
Loss for the year from REFELSET
continuing operations KEFRE 11 (87,317,055) (27,355,859)
Discontinued operation BARIEREER
Loss for the year from KEBKR KSR
discontinued operation KEEIE 12 = (3,617,421)
Loss for the year REEIR (87,317,055) (30,973,280)

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2020 £ 3R



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEmkEMEEIARER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_THE+_A=+—HILEE

2020 2019
t- Jat 3: 3 “—Z2—hEF
NOTE HK$ HK$
Jiog=3 AT BT
Other comprehensive income HithZ2EWA %) :
(expense):
Items that may be reclassified HE B IEE
subsequently to profit or loss: Em A
Exchange differences arising on MBI ETBRESE
translation of foreign operations ZERERE 28,510,531 (9,129,367)
Transfer of translation reserve to profit ~ RHE—RHKEBEB AT
or loss upon disposal of a subsidiary RFEBNEHER
B - (960,888)
Item that will not be reclassified to BB DIEE
profit or loss: HBmzHEEH
Fair value gain on equity instruments FEEMEEmBA
at fair value through other BT EYR
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") (MEBEMEEW
ARRATE
HER)) 2 RRATHR
ZAFERE 2,515,681 -
31,026,212 (10,090,255)
Total comprehensive expense for the year 7S 27 B sz 4848 (56,290,843) (41,063,535)
Loss for the year attributable to KA EB NFEh
owners of the Company KEFRIE
— from continuing operations —RBREREER (87,187,111) (27,165,061)
— from discontinued operation —REBRIEKE
E55 - (3,617,421)
(87,187,111) (30,782,482)
Loss for the year attributable to FEFERS R PR (L A AR
non-controlling interests 518
— from continuing operations —REFEREETR (129,944) (190,798)
(87,317,055) (30,973,280)
Total comprehensive expense L)(T)\i%fézliié\ﬁ
for the year attributable to: 52 48
Owners of the Company FiN \T%ﬁﬁ A (56,240,266) (40,590,247)
Non-controlling interests JEER S (50,577) (473,288)
(56,290,843) (41,063,535)
Loss per share SR EE 14
From continuing and discontinued REFESSEHER
operations B IERS T
Basic (HK cents) A GBI (34.37) (12.14)
From continuing operations REFFELEET
Basic (HK cents) B (B (34.37) (10.71)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE BRI R

At 31 December 2020

ATB-BEL-A=+—H

2020 2019
—TTEF —E-hEF
NOTES HKS$ HK$
HiaE BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME--BERRE 15 249,659,901 302,279,837
Investment properties KEYE 16 212,020,086 220,915,017
Equity instruments at FVTOCI FEBEEM2EIA
BATEYERZ
RRATE 17 17,854,928 17,854,928
Club membership BATEE 3,403,700 3,403,700
Prepayments and deposits A RIERETE 22 3,896,181 4,720,010
Interests in joint ventures NN X 19 400,482 404,482
Loans receivable EURER 23 = 23,010,523
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, BEATEEBEYE KR
plant and equipment Mz ® 6,030,978 11,931,211
Deferred tax assets FIETRIBE 32 333,359 -
493,599,615 584,519,708
Current assets BB E
Inventories A= 20 35,537,489 24,334,274
Properties under development for sale HELRETRYE 21 124,759,125 42,598,351
Financial assets at fair value through FEEmE A AYE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") HER (MHEBER
BATFEYERD
ZEMEE 17 23,059,714 64,833,700
Trade and other receivables, B5 kEAM
prepayments and deposits FEUWERIE ~ FA T
MIELRET & 22 155,011,721 159,113,114
Contract assets BREE 18 35,240,798 19,008,737
Loans receivable FEWE R 23 29,599,832 44,575,290
Amounts due from related companies FEUR BEE A B FRIE 24 - 1,303,402
Tax recoverable AR EIFRIE 1,054,007 -
Short-term bank deposits FRHRIRITIE R 25 25,394,158 23,493,383
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEHE 25 203,465,951 208,721,286
633,122,795 587,981,537
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBIRER
At 31 December 2020
RTEIEF+TA=+—H

2020 2019
NOTES HK$ HK$
K&t BT BT
Current liabilities mENAaE
Trade and other payables and accruals 85 K EMENRIE
MUK EETFRIE 26 123,508,626 100,146,752
Lease liabilities HEaR 27 8,949,086 6,452,993
Contract liabilities aHaRE 28 10,464,703 4,635,602
Tax liabilities RIEAR 3,558,434 9,457,374
Amount due to a non-controlling T —RITBAE
shareholder of a subsidiary — SRR E
E QL] 29 16,810,490 16,716,817
Amount due to a related company FET —REAELQE
FIE 30 48,402 165,848
Bank borrowings RITEE 37 79,786,671 92,168,478
243,126,412 229,743,864
Net current assets BB EFE 389,996,383 358,237,673
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 883,595,998 942,757,381
Non-current liabilities El eI =K
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 44,400,592 48,178,621
Amount due to a related company FET—REAE QT
FIE 30 223,361 269,169
Deferred tax liabilities RERBEEE 32 9,044,502 8,091,205
53,668,455 56,538,995
Net assets BESE 829,927,543 886,218,386
Capital and reserves BARKHEE
Share capital %N 33 2,536,395 2,536,395
Reserves (Ei] 830,665,444 886,905,710
Total attributable to owners of KNBEE NE(LHAEEE
the Company 833,201,839 889,442,105
Non-controlling interests JEEERE T (3,274,296) (3,223,719)
Total equity RETAHREE 829,927,543 886,218,386

HNEINEEENEHZEEHMBRE
EHESFERN _E_—F=Z8_-+~
E%&&H%ﬂ%:I$MT§$ﬁ%
22 .

The consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to 301
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 26 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie £ [
Chairman /&=

SUEK Chai Hong BB [E
Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

- 4=
HeEDEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2020

BEZE-_EF+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

YA SPN 4
Deemed
contribution Capital Properties  Investment Non-
Share Share from  redemption  Contributed ~ valuation  revaluation Translation Retained controlling
capital premium  a shareholder reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
Rfe—% nE RE
[z RiER REZEH ESREHE BB fhEGE Bt ERHE RauEn N JHERER 3
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
A An A A AT AT #n #n #n An An A
At 1 January 2019 KZE-NE-E-H 2536395 368949127 188,956,957 62400 103571033 6325165  (25769,757) 8060214 220413818 930,032,352 (2750431) 927,281,921
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - - - - - (30782482) (30782482 (190,798)  (30,973,280)
Exchange differences arising on translation of ~ BEENERFELZERER
foreign operations - - - - - - - (8,846,877) - (8,846,877) (282,490)  (9,129.367)
Transfer of translation reserve to profitorloss U E—FHBATBEREE
upon disposal of a subsidiary (Note 35) REEER (E35) - - - - - - - (960,888) - (960,888) - (960,888)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEEMEERY - - - - - - - (9,807,765 - (9,807,765 (282,490 (10,090,255)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEREEZMAR - - - - - - - (9807765  (30,782482)  (40,590,247) (473,288)  (41,063,539)
Transfer of cumulative gain on an equity REE-BRBATRERER
instrument at FVTOC to retained profits Ht2ERARATEIRZ
upon disposal of a subsiciary REIEZZHBEZRTER - - - - - - (68.239) - 68,238 - - -
At 31 December 2019 RIE-hE+ZA=+-8B 2536395 368,949,127 188,956,957 62400 103571033 63252165  (25837,995)  (1,747551) 189,699,574 889,442,105 (3223719) 836,218,386
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - - - - - (@7187111)  (87,187,111) (129.944)  (87,317,055)
Exchange differences arising on translation of ~ HEEHERFEL ZERER
foreign operations - - - - - - - 28431164 - 28.431,164 79,367 28,510,531
Fair value gain on equity instruments at ATOCI  BBEM2ENARATEF 2
REREZATENE - - - - - - 2515681 - - 2515881 - 2515681
Other comprehensive income for the year RERMRERA - - - - - - 2515881 28431164 - 30946845 79367 31,026212
Total comprehensive income (expense) RERENA (B3 88
for the year - - - - - - 2515681 28431164 (87,187,111) (56,240,266 (50,577)  (56,290,843)
Disposal of investment in equity instruments ~ HEFBEMZARARATE
at vToCI Rz RATIARE - - - - - - 336,382 - (336,382) - - -
At 31 December 2020 RIEZBE+°A=+-B 2536395 368,949,127 188,956,957 62400 103571033 63252165  (22,985932) 26683613 102,176,081 833,201,839 (3274,29) 829,927,543
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HeRERERR
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_S_SHE+_A=+—BLEE

2020 2019
ZEZTHF “E-NF
HK$ HK$
B BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REE
Loss before taxation PRI RIES I8 (88,438,549) (24,994,053)
Adjustments for: BIEHTIREE :
Allowance for provision of WomEE B E
write-down of inventories 1,570,414 791,079
Depreciation on property, ME -MEREEITE
plant and equipment 37,147,191 30,663,694
Net gain on disposal of property, HEYZE -BEREREN
plant and equipment W am 558 (322,912) (619,578)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XWBELAB Z W
(note 35) (H15%35) - (11,807,968)
Change in fair value of BEYEN AT EEH)
investment properties 9,917,231 17,966,974

Gain recognised in respect of MERT—RHREEQE]

loans to a joint venture Rz W= - (1,775,100)
Net impairment losses on trade BZEWARIEZ BE
receivables B518 33 710,090 229,681
Net impairment losses on contract assets &S E E 2 B EFEFEE 855,504 68,705
Impairment losses on loan to BERF—REE QT
a joint venture Z R ER1E = 3,222,914
Impairment losses on loans receivable W ERZ REEE 30,554,241 1,348,580
Impairment losses on amounts due FEWRAE A ABIRIBEZ
from related companies AERE 1,236,756 -
Share of results of joint ventures EiEEaE Tz 25 4,000 9,268
Dividend income R EUA (528,550) (1,087,856)
Finance costs R E R A 4,878,062 5,920,964
Interest income FEUWA (1,237,216) (1,343,276)
Operating cash flows before movements kKst&EE S EHNRT
in working capital KEIEERE (3,653,738) 18,594,028
(Increase) decrease in inventories =5 (Em mb (11,407,121) 6,826,927
Increase in properties under FEERPYZEIZM
development for sale (4,629,121) -
Decrease in trade and other receivables, &5 KE{thEWEIE
prepayments and deposits B MIBU TR 8,173,371 9,486,539
Increase in contract assets HHEEEZM (14,970,788) (3,358,264)
Decrease in amounts due from FEURBEE R B RIE
related companies e 66,646 1,129,692
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL HiBBEmE A TFEYERZ
EMEERD 41,773,986 23,061,680
Decrease in loans receivable W E R 7,431,740 37,340,311
Increase in trade and other payables B2 HMEN I
and accruals DU R FE St R0 IE I 0 18,761,371 9,208,453
Increase in contract liabilities EHEEEM 5,829,101 1,305,331
Cash from operations REMBZIRE 47,375,447 103,594,697
Dividend income & EUA 528,550 1,087,856
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BAEENER (3,652,543) (646,035)
Overseas tax paid BEEINRIE (1,989,302) (1,222,793)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES #EE ¥ FEFRISIRE B 42,262,152 102,813,725
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maRERERR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_S_SHE+_A=+—BLEE

2020 2019
—ETEHF —E—h=F
HKS HKS$
BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREEE
Investments in equity instruments FE@EMEEmA
at FVTOCI BT EIRZ
BATAKRE - (6,281,200)
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, BIIEBEYE -BEK
plant and equipment REZEE (5,419,454) (11,696,796)
Placement of short-term bank deposits ~ TFFEHISE1T1E =N (320,556) (320,140)
Loans to joint ventures %ﬁ EENBIZER = (114,163)
Repayment from loan to a joint venture ERFT—REEQATER - 1,881,408
Purchase of property, plant and equipment YN EN (32,250,420) (42,286,518)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME -BREEREZ
plant and equipment FrigTuIE 2,615,112 1,106,418
Proceeds for disposal of equity HEFBHMEERAZAF
instruments at FVTOC| BYRZEBAETBKREZFT
FR1E 2,515,681 -
Interest received BUFH E 1,153,875 1,266,643
Refundable deposit refunded for %ﬁf’%&ﬁ’%@?&?ﬁz
potential disposal PRBEE] & = (15,000,000)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES IR & ZENFRER &R (31,705,762) (71,444,348)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES L& EE
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRTEE (122,111,678) (57,312,749)
New bank borrowings raised i fﬁﬁfﬁﬁ 109,729,871 62,674,171
Payments of lease liabilities HESEMm (9,482,001) (6,265,984)
Repayment to a related company ﬁ-%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁZ%ﬁ (163,254) (22,795)
Interest paid SRS (4,878,062) (5,920,964)
NET CASH USED IN RE RS FER S R
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (26,905,124) (6,848,321)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN HERFEZEE GRL)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EINFEER (16,348,734) 24,521,056
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FMzZzRERREER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 208,721,286 185,786,206
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EEREEHTE
CHANGES 11,093,399 (1,585,976)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZATRRESEE
AT END OF THE YEAR 203,465,951 208,721,286
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HeERREEEEGRZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S
Bank balances and cash IRITER MRS 203,465,951 208,721,286
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1.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in Corporate Information to the
annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) and other details of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 43.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:
Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Amendments to Definition of Business
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
"Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards” and the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 “Definition of Material”

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity.” The
amendments also clarify that materiality depends on the
nature or magnitude of information, either individually
or in combination with other information, in the
context of the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year
had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4

and HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture’

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)’

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 2020°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June

2020.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Except the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Reference to the
Conceptual Framework”

The amendments:

o update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations so that it refers to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued
in June 2018 (the "Conceptual Framework"”)
instead of Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2010 issued in October 2010);

o add a requirement that, for transactions and
other events within the scope of HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, an acquirer
applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead
of the Conceptual Framework to identify
the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination; and

o add an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognise contingent assets acquired in a
business combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2”

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2 relate to the modification of financial assets,
financial liabilities and lease liabilities, specific hedge
accounting requirements and disclosure requirements
applying HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
to accompany the amendments regarding modifications
and hedge accounting.

o Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities. A practical expedient is
introduced for modifications required by the
reform (modifications required as a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and made on an economically equivalent
basis). These modifications are accounted for
by updating the effective interest rate. All other
modifications are accounted for using the
current HKFRSs requirements. A similar practical
expedient is proposed for lessee accounting
applying HKFRS 16;
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2” (Continued)

o Hedge accounting requirements. Under
the amendments, hedge accounting is not
discontinued solely because of the interest
rate benchmark reform. Hedging relationships
(and related documentation) are required to be
amended to reflect modifications to the hedged
item, hedging instrument and hedged risk.
Amended hedging relationships should meet all
qualifying criteria to apply hedge accounting,
including effectiveness requirements; and

o Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures
in order to allow users to understand the nature
and extent of risks arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform to which the Group is exposed
to and how the entity manages those risks as
well as the entity’s progress in transitioning from
interbank offered rates to alternative benchmark
rates, and how the entity is managing this
transition.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has several Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") bank loans
which may be subject to interest rate benchmark
reform. The Group expects no significant gains or losses
should the interest rate benchmark for these loans
change resulting from the reform on application of the
amendments.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the
time of approving the consolidated financial
statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except
for investment properties and certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of the reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” (“HKAS 36").

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE£EZERBRAT o

3. GREMBHRRNGRESE
&Igﬁ_-l-ﬁiﬁ (n\ﬁ)

3.1 REMBHRRVGRE
% (&)

L}:FTEEFELE/A%ZFE?
ASEHRETERR

EP&’%—IE%E%FEH&HXEJZ
B —BEEaEMXNZE
MomAwmZBERES Y
BERERYRBEMMEE
Fiifhstc- T HEEXE
Bz AFEEHGE
MhiZE2EETTE T
REZEENBBEEBRF
BERERMZBEENAR
ZHHM R XRERTEE
BZERE FLHERS
MHERERPARAER
WEREMEBZRATEE
HRIELERET  EEA
MR EEAE29R TR
DAERCSTIBEREZ
UM ABERNSHRRS
RIEEBEMBFREGERS
165 THHE I ABRZHEHER
SREATEEEEE
ERFEZSE (BIW &
Bt ERF2HRTEE)
O ERFEREEG
SR 365% & ERE]
(TEAE s #R]5H365%))
Rz ERBE) BRI

Ny

3!5%%?%3&2@3!2@%%
St RmH2EEREE

ﬁ???—?f‘f{é)ﬁ’za—&ﬁﬁﬁ
FEFTEREERANR
BERRERRZS — %
mH2REMELLEF
mAYFES]

Annual Report 2020 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= .2 H
=

MR R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_THE+_A=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment
properties which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
guoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable

returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of the subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
ventures are incorporated in these consohdated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the joint venture. When the Group’s share
of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group's
interest in that joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in a joint venture may
be impaired. When any objective evidence exists,
the entire carrying amount of investment (include
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Except for granting of a licence that is distinct
from other promised goods or services, control is
transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group's performance as the Group
performs; or

the Group’'s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

For granting of a licence that is distinct from
other promised goods or services, the nature of
the Group's promise in granting a licence is a
promise to provide a right to access the Group’s
intellectual property if all of the following criteria
are met:

. the contract requires, or the customer
reasonably expects, that the Group will
undertake activities that significantly affect
the intellectual property to which the
customer has rights;

. the rights granted by the licence directly
expose the customer to any positive or
negative effects of the Group’s activities;
and

o those activities do not result in the transfer
of a good or a service to the customer as
those activities occur.

If the criteria above are met, the Group
accounts for the promise to grant a licence as
a performance obligation satisfied over time.
Otherwise, the Group considers the grant of
licence as providing the customers the right to
use the Group’s intellectual property and the
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time at which the licence is granted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”). In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Contract costs
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales
commissions) as an asset if it expects to
recover these costs. The asset so recognised
is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services
to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a
contract if these costs would otherwise have
been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of offices that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received,;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

] an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
property or inventory in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned. Right-of-use
assets that meet the definition of inventory are
presented within “properties under development
for sale”.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-
of-use assets) whenever the lease term has
changed, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease incentives from lessor
by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business (i.e. Property
Business as defined in note 6) are presented as
revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS
15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
("HKFRS 15") to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone selling prices.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are
accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts
that were not part of the original terms
and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their
fair values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid
or accrued operating lease income. All of the
Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes other than properties construction in
progress as described below, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes
are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the
entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “property, plant
and equipment” in the consolidated statement
of financial position except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets, other than construction in
progress less their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale which
are intended to be sold upon completion of
development and properties for sale are classified
as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in
accordance with the accounting policies of right-
of-use assets, properties under development
for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised.
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for the properties less estimated cost
to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales.

Properties under development for sale are
transferred to properties for sale upon completion.

Transtfer from property, plant and equipment to
properties under development for sale

If property, plant and equipment becomes
properties under development for sale because
its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, the carrying amount at the
date of transfer is recognised as properties under
development for sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of assets other than
financial assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of
the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

3.

= A
e

MBHRRNEREE

REBEHE (@)

3.2

FEGFER (B)

YE BB RREUR
RFEEEEZE ()

RE RS AR E BB E
AREEE GREELE
IR —ARSEEE ) 2
AR 1A 00 LA B ET
2 3 ] W Bl S 5 0 1
M2 REETEBH B
RBEEELRALES
E@RsECEin—4a
e EE B RBAES
BT 2 IRE(E
1615 98 1 [ B B 1 9 i T

o

BERZE

WE -REHEESER
EE MRERFEERS
PIERER T UHEZE
E) BEERGZEERAE
CMAZREZEEEZNAE
E?EZ%%EE%?&Z?—EEE
AERERBERNHEER
ko

FREHMEER AR E
EEHHFEEEEDZ? 4 ID‘I’A?E”‘ o

Annual Report 2020 £ #§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A

i 3

MR R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BHE_Z

3.

=

R - BN

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss
before taxation because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-
of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to
the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rate prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading
of the translation reserve (attributable to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate.

Government grants related to subsidy income
from government for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under
“other income”. Government grants relating to
compensation of expenses are deducted from the
related expenses, other government grants are
presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme, state-managed retirement
benefit scheme and Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees (such as wages and salaries and
annual leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-
term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to
the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the
cost of an asset.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

3.

= A
e

RE

3.2

MBHRRNEREE
EE 5K ()

FEGFER (B)

fj@ﬁ/},ﬂi“ tRAES 15

R ESRAIZ AN E
ERMRHFFZ MR
BARAEIR BRI o PR IF
H—REBYHRS ER]
MEH AR BT A—
HEERR AT &R FT
BREAREERN G A
i °

BERABKEFNEN TR
BIEENRSEN T
BR#EURER) HED -

Tt H & H B 8 12 A HEER
WE R EAEBRRRM
BERBEXRS B
M ZRF G5t 2 ARHKIE
AL ZREFE-BR
REERKRBEAFE
REMFTEENNESH
RiBm PSS FRIFS —
BEBVHBRSERRE
HAFFREREF A —
THEER A o

Z# TR

EREEBRENAIAS
IR 2 —F B SR
E@EE&EHEEOW
BEUERBEBANBEE
ZEMEENERS B
BEBIRBOH MR - IE
RAEEBANHEHRS
15 Pt 7 #th % 35 20 18 B PR B2
EZEBERARNEE
ZERMEEBANHEE -

Annual Report 2020 £ #§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers,
including trade related amounts due from
related companies, which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
assets or financial liabilities and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business (i.e. Lending
Business as defined in note 6) are presented as
revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not
be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI
(Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’'s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line
item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL") model on
financial assets (including trade and other
receivables and deposits, loan to a joint venture,
loans receivable, trade related amounts due from
related companies, short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents) and contract assets
which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables, contract assets and trade
related amounts due from related companies
without significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

] an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

] existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

] an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when the instrument
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
of the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

it is becoming probably that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
the Group has no reasonable expectations
of recovering the relevant financial asset in
its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. The Group
usually writes off when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables and trade related amounts due
from related companies, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
when appropriate. Any recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and
contract assets are considered on a collective
basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such
as forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade and other receivables and
deposits, contract assets, trade related amounts
due from related companies, loan to a joint
venture, loans receivable, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial asset

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified
to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group's obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax arising from fair value changes in
investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group's investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. The Group has not recognised any
deferred tax on changes in fair value of investment
properties in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject
to any income taxes on the fair value changes on
investment properties in Hong Kong on disposal. The
Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in fair
value of investment property in the PRC in note 32 as
the Group is subject to any income taxes on the fair
value changes on investment property in the PRC on
disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets within the next financial
year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's
investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by independent qualified
professional valuers. In determining the fair value,
the valuers have based their valuation on income
capitalisation approach or direct comparison, as
appropriate for respective investment properties,
which involves certain estimates, including appropriate
capitalisation rates, reversionary income potential
and market transactions of comparable properties, as
appropriate. In relying on the valuation, management
of the Group has exercised its judgement and is
satisfied that the methods of valuation adopted are
appropriate for the relevant property and reflective of
current market conditions. As at 31 December 2020,
the aggregate fair value of investment properties is
HK$212,020,086 (2019: HK$220,915,017). Details of
the valuation methodology are disclosed in note 16.

Net realisable value assessment of properties under
development for sale

The management uses their judgement and estimates in
determining the net realisable value of properties under
development for sale with reference to the comparable
market transactions in similar locations. Where there
are any changes to the market conditions in the PRC
causing the net realisable value of the properties under
development for sale below its cost the properties
under development for sale is written down to its net
realisable value. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying
amount of properties under development for sale is
HK$124,759,125 (2019: HK$42,598,351).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurement of equity instruments at
FvTod

As at 31 December 2020, equity instruments at FVTOCI
amounting to HK$17,854,928 (2019: HK$17,854,928)
are measured at fair value with fair value being
determined based on significant unobservable inputs
using valuation techniques. Judgment and estimation
are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes
in assumptions relating to these factors could result
in material adjustments to the fair value of these
instruments. See note 41 for further disclosures.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, contract
assets, loans receivable and trade related amounts
due from related companies

Trade receivables with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract assets,
trade related amounts due from related companies,
loans receivable and credit-impaired financial assets
are assessed for ECL individually. The remaining trade
receivables and contract assets are assessed collectively.
The expected loss rates are based on internal credit
ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered by the
Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has increased the
ECL rates in current year as there is higher risk that
a prolonged pandemic could led to increase in credit
default rates. The information about the ECL and
the Group’s trade receivables, contract assets, loans
receivable and trade related amounts due from related
companies are disclosed in note 41. The carrying amount
of trade receivables, contract assets, loans receivable
and trade related amounts due from related companies
are HK$110,247,609 (2019: HK$135,468,973),
HK$35,240,798 (2019: HK$19,008,737), HK$29,599,832
(2019: HK$67,585,813) and nil (2019: HK$1,303,402),
respectively.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

4.

B 82 & 5t 7 iR e fih 51 A
ERRZETERR (B

EHFREEEZ TERE

(4&

ZARMEFmIKAIZLFE
SRR T R 2\ FlEF=E
NoF_EBE+ZA=+—H>
ZREMEZERAZAFET
BRI A T E2A17,854,928 7T
—E— 4 17,854,928 1)
TR ATENE MEATED
FAGERMTREREANTERS
ABBET MNEEEEER
MR HARRA S A BB EE/EH

B R (st - R S AR AR
BREBHRGERZE TANA

FEHBERAE - E—TIHE
B R4 0

WE S EWHE  GHEE
BB /E/El/!(/?ﬁiéz\‘ il

%’E/fﬁl?ﬁ K BHIFER 1S B 5
# Hz}‘if"‘/ﬁ

BAKREBEGEFBB2,500,000
BITHWESZEKRTIE BN
*E ﬁ’éuﬂz%%%_/&wﬁ%%i@%ﬁ

MIEBWERKREERENE
nﬂﬁéﬂ%?ﬂﬁﬁmm 5 B IR ETT
SfE B N E S EWRIER S

BENDERNFG - FAHREEXT
REAEE B R IZ BB B LS
BEREIANSEBARE

%Eﬁme.fréﬂéﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁ
BEIEE - B Covid-198 15 5|
é’f%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ“Tﬁﬁmlﬁ BB
BEREEERENXE NN ER
A REBCDEMNAEENTE
HEEEEX EHMBEHEEE
BRAEENEZSEWRE 5

HNEE -FEWRE TA&F&“W%%L’A
TE?E?%*H%%TAIEBU H;Wﬁ.&
MEBE-BZBBRE SNE
E-EWE %&F’EHQ%LQTE@
B HEBEREBNEEEED A
110,247,609 T (Z&—HF :

135,468,973/ 7T) ~ 35,240,798
B (ZE—HFE 1 19,008,73758
7T) 29,599,832 7T (Z&E—H
F :67,585,813%87T) K& (ZE
— L 1,303,402387T) ©

Annual Report 2020 £ #§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 AH

i 3

MR R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z_ZFE+_A=+—HILEE
5. REVENUE 5. W&

(i) Revenue from goods and services (i) *KRBEREERFzZW=E
Revenue represents the amounts received and WamiEAEBFAME
receivable for goods sold and services provided EnERIBRHEHRR W E
by the Group, less discounts and sales related W2 ZHh I8 CRiiri0 R sEE 48
taxes during the year. FATRIE) ©
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from goods REBXKERBE MER
and services by segment for the year is as FzWmgoBEo T
follows:

2020 2019
—EFEH ZE—NEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Types of goods or services from REFESEXHENERT
continuing operations: ARFS4EEY -
Manufacturing and Sales Business*  HU3& R i E 275+
— Income from manufacturing and — KRB RS R
sales of printing products THE Z WA 486,079,273 490,000,611
Music and Entertainment Business* 544 42 4% 3¢ 52+
— Artistes management fee income — B ABEHRA 57,917 862,133
— Concerts and show income EIEE RFREWA - 3,236,150
— Income from the licensing of —SEEREFTWA
the musical works 3,029,834 3,100,522
— Promotion income —EEKA 153,333 750,367
— Sales of albums —HERBR 829,978 3,808,198
— Other music and —H M E R R SR 7S
entertainment services - 124,540
4,071,062 11,881,910
Trading Business* =RZE S
— Sales of printing products —ENRI SiHE 30,887,078 42,900,332
521,037,413 544,782,853
* The segment names are defined in the section * DIELEZTEELZN 6

“Segment information” in note 6.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

external customers is presented based on the
locations of the shipments of goods or the

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. U= (48)
(i) Revenue from goods and services (i) *KRBEREERFzZW=E
(Continued) (#&)
2020 2019
—ECEE ZE-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations: FREEES
Geographical markets: HETHE
Hong Kong &8 216,185,408 195,380,622
The PRC F ] 200,225,548 242,223,079
Europe BN 27,607,233 38,338,407
United States E[E 50,065,286 41,805,786
Others Hh 26,953,938 26,534,959
521,037,413 544,782,853
Information about the Group’s revenue from EHEA~EREKXBINSER

Z Wm 2z B 1 2 Fr i 1
EmuRHBzHEMEZ

services provided. G| o
2020 2019
—ETEF —E-NEF
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Continuing operations: FrEREET .
Timing of revenue recognition: W FEED P
Over time i B [ 486,079,273 490,000,611
A point in time NS ElS S B 34,958,140 54,782,242
521,037,413 544,782,853
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5.  REVENUE (Continued) 5. W (@)
(i)  Revenue from goods and services (i) *kBERKRERFBzZWZE
(Continued) (48)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue TXHIKBFELS %
from contracts with customers from continuing FHEREN R mEDNSE
operations with the amounts disclosed in the BRI E SR

segment information.

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Manufacturing and Sales Business SIS RIHEET 486,079,273 490,000,611
Music and Entertainment Business EE eSS 4,071,062 11,881,910
Trading Business B2ER 30,887,078 42,900,332
Revenue from contracts with REFEREEHEN
customers from BER&EHWE
continuing operations 521,037,413 544,782,853
Rental income s WA 4,880,323 7,310,989
Interest income from lending business KB M EE#2 A B WA 6,756,759 8,491,405
Total revenue from REFELSSEHNBEIN G
continuing operations 532,674,495 560,585,247
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

0]

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Revenue from trading of printing products/sales of
albums

Revenue from trading of printing products/sales
of albums is recognised when control of the
printing products, which are not manufactured
by the Group, and albums has been transferred
to the customers, being at the point the goods
are delivered to the customer’s specific location.
Transportation and other related activities that
occur before customers obtains control of
the related good are considered as fulfilment
activities. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the customers
as this represents the point in time at which the
right to consideration becomes unconditional,
as only the passage of time is required before
payment is due. The normal credit term is 60 to
90 days upon delivery, which is approximate the
time of issuing the invoices to the customers.
The Group requires certain customers to provide
upfront deposits ranging from 10% to 30% of
total contract sum, when the Group receives a
deposit before the printing products delivery,
this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start
of a contract, until the revenue recognised on
the specific contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

0]

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Revenue from manufacturing and sales of printing
products

The Group provides tailored-manufacturing
of printing products to the customers. Such
revenue from manufacturing and sales of printing
products are recognised as this performance
obligation is satisfied over time because the
Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

The progress towards completing satisfaction
of a performance obligation is measured based
on input method, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of the Group’s efforts in terms of
inputs (i.e. materials costs, direct staff costs
and other direct overhead costs incurred) to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction
of that performance obligation, that best depicts
the Group's performance in transferring control
of products. Contract assets arise when the
Group has right to consideration for satisfaction
of a performance obligation under the relevant
contracts, and the right is conditioned on factors
other than passage of time. Contract assets are
reclassified to trade receivables when such right
become unconditional other than the passage of
time. Invoices to the customers were issued upon
the delivery of manufactured printing products
to the customers. The normal credit term is 60
to 120 days upon the issuance of invoices to the
customers. The Group requires certain customers
to provide upfront deposits ranging from 10%
to 50% of total contract sum, when the Group
receives a deposit before manufacturing of
printing products commences, this will give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract,
until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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REVENUE (Continued)

0]

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Income from licensing of the musical works

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when
licenses of the Group’s musical works were
granted to the customers, being at the point the
customer has the rights to use the musical works
at their own desires. A receivable is recognised
by the Group when the licenses of the Group's
musical works are granted to the customers as
this represents the point in time at which the
right to consideration becomes unconditional,
as only the passage of time is required before
payment is due.

Concerts and show income

Concerts and show income are recognised at the
point of completion of concerts and show to the
customers. Full payments from customers before
the start of the concerts and show are recognised
as contract liabilities by the Group until the
concerts and show have been performed to the
customers. The Group requires certain customers
to provide upfront deposits ranging from 10%
to 30% of total contract sum, when the Group
receives a deposit before the completion of
concert and show, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the specific contract
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

All the Group’s contracts with customers with
unsatisfied performance obligations have
original expected duration of one year or less.
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or satisfied) as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 is not disclosed.

5.

iz (49)

() REERKRRE K
(#)
BERSHZBAEE
(%)
FEBFARTRBOE

ENERENRENRE
RHIHR A —F LT o
REEEMBREELS
15SE P HE /> TR BB
“ECRERIT-HAEF
+ZA=+t—HPEE&R
TRASE CRETHERE
17 R ZE

Leases (i) TAE
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NE
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
For operating leases: MEEHREMS !
Lease payments that are fixed EEHE R 4,880,323 7,310,989
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“ECSETCASt—HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment revenue and results

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resources allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of goods or
services delivered or provided.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments are
therefore as follows:

(a) Money lending (“Lending Business”);

(b)  Manufacturing and sales of printing and other
products (“Manufacturing and Sales Business”);

() Artistes management, production and distribution
of music albums (“Music and Entertainment
Business”);

(d)  Property development and investment (“Property
Business”), including properties development
projects and properties leasing and investments
in the PRC, mini storage business and office
leasing and properties leasing and investment in
Hong Kong;

(e)  Securities trading (“Securities Trading Business”);
and

(f)  Trading of printing products (“Trading Business”).

An operating segment regarding the distribution of
gaming machines (“Gaming Distribution Business”) was
discontinued in the year ended 31 December 2019.
The segment information reported does not include
any amounts for the discontinued operation, which are
described in more details in note 12.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results from continuing operations by operating and
reportable segment.
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6.

TEIEF+THA=1+—HIEFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. BB (#®
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DRWEKRES (@)
Revenue Segment (loss) profit
& 2 (5518 &7
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIEE ZE-NE ZEIEE ZE-NF
HK$ HKS HKS$ HKS
BT B BT B
Lending Business EES: 6,756,759 8,491,405 (26,850,426) 3,677,784
Manufacturing and Sales Business HERHEER 486,079,273 490,000,611 10,187,944 14,474,423
Music and Entertainment Business EELGEES 4,071,062 11,881,910 (8,527,786) (7,165,748)
Property Business MEER 4,880,323 7,310,989 (14,416,509) (9,051,586)
Securities Trading Business BEHBEEE - - (32,845,363)  (14,924,641)
Trading Business BoEE 30,887,078 42,900,332 1,670,886 6,621,250
Total st 532,674,495 560,585,247 (70,781,254) (6,368,518)
Bank interest income AR SBA 1,153,875 1,266,643
Impairment losses on loan to a joint venture  ERF—HEEE AT
HEEE - (3,222,914)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOECERS (18,796,063) (13,042,575)
Share of results of joint ventures e =UN=ES = (4,000) (9,268)
Certain finance costs BTREMRK (11,107) -
Loss before taxation from continuing REFELCELBRNA
operations B (88,438,549) (21,376,632)

All of the segment revenue reported above is from
external customers.

The accounting policies of the operating and
reportable segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
(loss) profit represents the profit earned/loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of bank interest
income, impairment losses on loan to a joint venture,
unallocated corporate expenses, share of results of
joint ventures and certain finance costs on lease
liabilities. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
management for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment.
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- N - NTRY ==
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DIHEEFR (@)
. i e -
Segment assets and liabilities NEEENREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and EEGKERORENIEE D
L = = RE
liabilities by operating and reportable segment: EENMEESFNT
As at 31 December 2020 R-_E2-EHF+”"A=+—H
Manufacturing Music and Securities
Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business total Elimination  Consolidated
R BER HHER
eSS HEER IR MEER 5 EEES izt B &a
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT 7 BT 7 BT BT BT T BT
Segment assets NREE 31,662,289 433,255,115 6,173,708 351,130,780 33,377,017 14,564,818 870,163,727 - 870,163,727
Other assets HitEE 256,558,683
Consolidated assets RREE 1,126,722,410
Segment liabilities NEEE 2,079,629 224,056,802 2,184,487 38,801,917 187,554 11,984,440 279,294,829 - 279,294,829
Inter-group liabilities e 76,770,136 - - - 97,751,111 - 174,521,247 (174,521,247) -
Total Bt 78,849,765 224,056,802 2,184,487 38,801,917 97,938,665 11,984,440 453,816,076 (174,521,247) 279,294,829
Other liabilities Hitta B 17,500,038
Consolidated liabilities GeEf 296,794,867
As at 31 December 2019 N_E—h&FE+B=+—H
Manufacturing Music and Securities
Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business total Elimination Consolidated
HER BER BHEE
HEER HEEY IREERS EES £5 S ity H# e
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B o B o B BT B B B
Segment assets NREE 68,241,931 424,396,848 12,770,723 274,896,424 65,348,117 14,313,104 859,967,147 - 859,967,147
Other assets HfEE 312,534,098
Consolidated assets RREE 1,172,501,245
Segment liabilities NEEE 1,338,495 210,650,931 4,557,481 39,973,577 119,465 9,188,340 265,828,289 - 265,828,289
Inter-group liabilities EERAE 96,555,847 - - - 94,490,774 - 191,046,621 (191,046,621) -
Total Bt 97,894,342 210,650,931 4,557,481 39,973,577 94,610,239 9,188,340 456,874,910 (191,046,621) 265,828,289
Other liabiliies U 20,454,570

Consolidated liabilities GeERE 286,282,859
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“ECSETCASt—HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources among segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating and
reportable segments other than certain property
and equipment, interest in a joint venture, certain
equity instruments at FVTOCI, club membership,
deferred tax assets, certain other receivables,
prepayments and deposits, tax recoverable,
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating and
reportable segments other than certain other
payables and accruals, tax liabilities and deferred
tax liabilities.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2020

SHEEH (8

Hith D EEH

BE_FE-_T¥+-H=+—H
IEEE

Manufacturing Music and Securities
Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business total Unallocated  Consolidated
REk BER BHEE
EES HEER REER MEEH #5 EUES PEEE AR Ga
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT A7 BT BT BT BT BT BT
Amounts included in the measure

of segment results from

continuing operations or

segment assets:

Interest income (exclusion of FRMA (FEERE

interest income from MEEBZHEHA)

Lending Business) (6,610) (71,988) - - (619) (2,678) (81,895) (1,155,321) (1,237,216)
Interest expenses FISHZ 39,542 4,174,700 - 633,160 6,331 13,022 4,866,955 11,107 4,878,062
Depreciation of property, NE -BRERZERTE

plant and equipment 458,988 35,513,959 37,958 686,130 73,559 260,351 37,030,945 116,246 37,147,191
Allowance for provision of MHz SRR

write-down of inventories - 1,414,662 - - - 155,752 1,570,414 = 1,570,414
Net impairment losses on ERRKTEZAE

trade receivables HEFE - 678,392 224321 2,553 - 4,824 710,090 - 710,090
Net impairment losses on BHEEZHERE

contract assets # - 855,504 - - - - 855,504 - 855,504
Impairment losses on amounts  FEWEAEABIFIE

due from related companies ZREFE - - 1,236,756 - - - 1,236,756 = 1,236,756
Impairment losses on e E 2 BEHE

loans receivables 30,554,241 - - - - - 30,554,241 = 30,554,241
Additions to property, RENE BERZE

plant and equipment 2,063,390 44,771,830 - 996,938 142,199 334,332 48,308,689 - 48,308,689
Change in fair value of financal ~ BBBEZATEIIERZ

assets at FVTPL SHEEZATEES = = - - 32,529,639 - 32,529,639 - 32,529,639
Gain on disposal of property, LENE BER

plant and equipment REzWE - (322,912 - - - - (322,912 - (322,912
Change in fair value of RENEZATEED

investment properties - - - 9,917,231 - - 9,917,231 = 9,917,231

Neway Group Holdings Limited F E&£EZERERAT

e Annual Report 2020 F#}



Notes to the Consolidated Financial

M HwRMEE

4o A
17 g =

For the year ended 31 December 2020
“EosEtCA=t-ALEE

BH=E

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Statements

6. DHEER (@

Hith D EEH (8
BE_Z-NAE+"A=+—H

ILFE

Manufacturing Music and Securities
Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business total Unallocated Consolidated
RER BLR HHEE
BE£H HEER REER MEEH % EES D FAE &a
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
B B B BT BT BT BT BT BT
Amounts included in the measure  5tEIRE E325:

of segment results from PEEEINE

continuing operations or BERHAZEE:

segment assets:

Interest income (exclusion of FEMA FEERE

interest income from MEEBZHEHA)

Lending Business) (4,372) (69,087) - - (613) (2,561) (76,633) (1,266,643) (1,343,276)
Interest expenses FEE% 117,310 4,929,768 - 846,048 7,161 20,677 5,920,964 - 5,920,964
Depreciation of property, NE -BRERZERTE

plant and equipment 285,773 28,116,894 50,640 1,062,793 75314 419,438 30,010,852 140,455 30,151,307
Allowance for provision of MRz SRR

write-down of inventories - - - - - 791,079 791,079 - 791,079
Net impairment losses ERRKTEZAE

(reversal of impairment losses) BE (RESBAD

on trade receivables 28 - 184,140 47,068 - - (1,527) 229,681 - 229,681
Net impairment losses on AHEEZRBRSE

contract assets et - 68,705 - - - - 68,705 - 68,705
Impaiment losses on loantoa ~ EHF—HEEAF

foint venture ZAERE - - - - - - - 3222914 3222914
Impairment losses on FERE BEHE

loans receivables 1,348,580 - - - - - 1,348,580 - 1,348,580
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BER

plant and equipment REZWE - (619,578) - - - - (619,578) - (619,578)
Additions to property, RENE BERARE

plant and equipment 5,456 65,577,037 - 971,883 - 150,353 66,704,729 - 66,704,729
Gain recognised in respect of HRERF-HEEAT

oan to  joint venture BAZNE - - - (1,775,100) - - (1,775,100) - (1,775,100
Change in fair value of BERBRERATEIRZ

financial assets at FVTPL SHBEZATEES - - - 6,651,180 15,189,024 - 21,840,204 - 21,840,204
Change in fair value of L EEYA

investment properties ATEEE - - - 17,966,974 - - 17,966,974 - 17,966,974
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  HE—FIMBAT 2 - - - (11,807,968) - - (11,807,968) - (11,807,968)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DHEEN G
Revenue from major products and services RXEBFTEEMEREZ WG
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue UTAKREBRBEFEERK
from continuing operations from its major products and IRz IF B RS BN AT -
services:
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Sales of printing products ENRIE i & 516,966,351 532,900,943
Artistes management fee income BABEEWRA 57,917 862,133
Concerts and show income EIRE RFEWA - 3,236,150
Income from the licensing of ZHERFETIRA
the musical works 3,029,834 3,100,522
Loan interest income from REMEEKZER
Lending Business FEUWA 6,756,759 8,491,405
Other music and entertainment services ELth & 4 B 1R 4 AR 75 - 124,540
Promotion income FEWA 153,333 750,367
Rental income A ON 4,880,323 7,310,989
Sales of albums IERIHE 829,978 3,808,198
532,674,495 560,585,247
Geographical information EE R
The Group's operation of Manufacturing and Sales KREB BB RIHEER Y
Business and Property Business are located in Hong ERHEEBRTEKE - NE
Kong and the PRC. The Group's operation of Lending B2HEEXEHR - BREHR T
Business, Trading Business, Music and Entertainment iR N MBS BEE XA
Business and Securities Trading Business are located in EEBKE o
Hong Kong.
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6.

—eopEtsp=+—ALERE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) SEEER ()
Geographical information (Continued) MEER (8)

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from
external customers and information about non-current
assets by geographical location of the customers and
assets respectively are set out below:

TEBRBEIINBER ZFEEE
FHWRmRERIFABEEZE
HopligER hEEFEMESR
HlanE -

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REIMIE Rz W ERBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIEE —EF-NF ZBIEE —E-NE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Hong Kong 58 227,654,406 211,157,605 213,140,186 226,655,112
The PRC HE 200,393,633 242,748,490 260,559,576 315,565,055
Europe BUN 27,607,233 38,338,407 - -
United States EEl 50,065,286 41,805,786 - -
Others Hith 26,953,937 26,534,959 - -
532,674,495 560,585,247 473,699,762 542,220,167

Note: Non-current assets exclude financial assets and deferred tax
assets.

Information about major customers

There was no customer contributing over 10% of total
sales of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

M FRBPEETEREMEERE
JERIRE E o

ITBEERAMN
PHE-S_SER-B—NE

+TZRA=+—HLEEE #BEE
FEMEAERHEBERBG

10% °
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7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HtlhmkE5E
2020 2019
“E-EF —E—hEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations: FEREET .
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain SNEE (B548) Wizn /$ 38 (8,151,710) 980,712
Change in fair value of investment KREMEZ N FEED
properties (note 16) (Hi1z£16) (9,917,231) (17,966,974)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWBAR Z W
(note 35) (H13£35) - 11,807,968
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME -BERIREZ
plant and equipment Wz P58 322,912 619,578
Gain recognised in respect of loanto ~ FEERMTEEAF
a joint venture Rz W = 1,775,100
Change in fair value in financial assets BBEFIX AT EHEEZ
at FVTPL THEEC AT EEE (32,529,639) (21,840,204)
(50,275,668) (24,623,820)
FINANCE COSTS 8. RIBEMZA
2020 2019
—_E°EF —E-NEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations: FEREET .
Interest on: UTEEZHE
Bank borrowings RITEE 2,446,816 3,211,865
Amount due to a related company FE(T — R RAE R B IE 62,349 96,425
Lease liabilities HEEE 2,368,897 2,612,674
4,878,062 5,920,964
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' 7 e /= s [—1
9.  DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. EF-ITHEMKESM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS o
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration EERTHEISNE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine UTAHEBENRENTILE (ZTE
(2019: nine) directors are as follows: —NE %) EE2EE
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors director
#iER FanES BUFAnES ERER
SUEK SUEK CHAN LEE LAI LAU
Ka Lun, Chai ~ Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai Kwok CHU Sai Wo, Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Wan Gun Pui Ricky Cheong Total
28 BEE RBfan EhE REH ZEZ KE Bt A58 a3t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
BT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
(note §)
i)
2020 —BEE
Fees ik - - 161,492 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 - 761,492
Other emoluments Hitd e
- Salaries and other benefits —-HERAMER 2245534 1,345,131 - - - - = = 494523 4,085,188
- Contributions to retirement —RAEREEER
benefits schemes 18,000 18,000 8,500 - - - - - 18,000 62,500
Total emoluments EREE) 2,263,534 1,363,131 169,992 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 512,523 4,909,180
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors director
YhER FaiTEE BUFATER BEEER
SUEK SUEK CHAN LEE LAI LAU
Ka Lun, Chai Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai Kwok CHU Sai Wo, Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Wan Gun Pui Ricky Cheong Total
HER HEE it EEiE SEE TEE KE fjugil] flizE] &
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
AT AT AT AT A AT AT AT AT AT
(note f)
(i)
2019 2-0E
Fees ik - - 161,492 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 - 761,492
Other emoluments Hid e
- Salaries and other benefits —HERAMEN 2,292,000 1,368,000 - - - - - - 463640 4,123,640
- Contributions to retirement —RABREEER
benefits schemes 18,000 18,000 8,500 - - - - - 18,000 62,500
Total emoluments EZEEE) 2,310,000 1,386,000 169,992 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 481,640 4,947,632
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9.

=

TERCRFA+A=+—HLEEE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
(Continued)

Notes:

(iii)

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is also the chief executive of the
Company and his remuneration disclosed above included
those for services rendered by him as chief executive.

The emoluments of executive directors were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The emoluments of non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors were for
their services as the directors of the Company.

Incentive performance bonuses for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 were determined by the
remuneration committee and approved by the board of
directors having regard to the performance and duties of
directors.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
of the Company as an inducement to joint or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
in any of the year.

EE VTR RESM
& (%)
EERITHRAEHMNE (B

ez -

(0}

(ii)

(iii)

BEERETAERT ZITHME
BOHREXREZNECEBRE
H B 31T BB H P IE AR 75 = Bl
%o

HITEFZHMDOMREEESE
RERAEEENEEFIRMHZR
BEB - FRTESRBILIER
TEFEZHMDOAREERER
BESEREZRBMEEL

BE_ZE_ZER_FT-NEF
+=A f-f- HiEFERSERx
RIEADHRERBDHMNEZEEE
EoUKAEREHE EREEE
EFRIRBRBES -

RAEFE SEEFRNTHEAR
MEXAREREEFHFMZ 2

Ho

RERNBEFE  XEERED
KRBEEXIERME > 1FS
MAREENMB R B
BB E
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9.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2019: two) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2019: three)
highest paid employees who were neither a director nor

9. EF -ITHHESKESM
& (48)
EEME

AFrEELZRERHALHR MW
B (CETE-AFE MR BERT
EF REMEZHFBEEHN L
XoHEp=% (CT2—NF: =4)
WA RBERHITHAHZ &

chief executive of the Company are as follows: SEHEEZMENT
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 3,192,110 3,092,400
Bonus (note) TEAT (H122) - 26,631

Contributions to retirement BRIABEH FHEIERR

benefits schemes 54,000 54,000
3,246,110 3,173,031

Note: Bonus was determined based on their duties and
responsibilities of the relevant individuals within the Group
and the Group’s performance.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

Mt TEADRBEREZSERETERDN
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who
were not the directors of the Company and whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as

EFTHRESKRESMN
& (48)
EEME (&)

TIIFAEABERZREHESN
MEBRUTHEEZABAT

follows:
2020 2019
mt b S —E2
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAZ EBEAH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,0008 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0018 7%
2,000,000 7T 1 1
3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office in any of the years.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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“ECSETCASt—HILEE

TAXATION CREDIT (CHARGE)

10. MIFER (ZiH)

2020 2019
—E-FE —E—hEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations: FEREE
The taxation comprises: RIBEHE !
Hong Kong Profits Tax EHBFER
Charge for the year KELZH (1,596,104) (2,285,026)
Overprovision in prior years B FEEBREEA 401,092 122,914
(1,195,012) (2,162,112)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEIBEMER
Charge for the year KELZH - (6,296,056)
Overprovision in prior years B FEBREERE 2,807,805 -
2,807,805 (6,296,056)
1,612,793 (8,458,168)
Deferred tax (charge) credit REFREFRIE (ZH)
for the year (note 32) "R (Hfa232) (491,299) 2,478,941
1,121,494 (5,979,227)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the
first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits of
one of the subsidiaries of the Company and at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.
The profits of corporation not qualified for the two-tier
profit tax regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5%.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

R_E—NE=A_+—8B'%
BILEBEB(2017FERTE (BE])
(FB730) BHIEZREY (TEZE)) »
SIAMBFFRNEGIE  EE
R_E—N\NE=B_+/\BHE
BERALE URBATISE
REMRFNERNEFNE &
EREEEEMNE2,000,000%
TOEF 188 25% iR > B8
2,000,0007& 7t A9 Z 2 BI3%16.5%
B - AR EMBF SR EH
ENERSE HafBEEs
—3%16.5%1#3

RBE_Z_ZTER-ZT—A
F+-_B=+—HLEFEE &
BRERLEAABDES —
MEBAS MG ERERREN ZE
2,000,00078753%8.25% 5t & > M
#8382,000,0007%8 7T A9 (5 51 FE 28
MEFBIR16 5%t H - A&
MAFSRMEFENEEN G
o BB R —3216.5% K o
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10. TAXATION CREDIT (CHARGE) (Continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulations of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

The taxation credit (charge) for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before taxation from continuing operations

per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

10.

MIER R ) (8)

BEBE(PREERERZE) ((E
FFREIRZED) RAEERBIUE
BRI > B E QB R W {E
FEZMEHGRH25% o

FARERR L) PJREGIE
mREMEEEAREKFAREE

RrEEE XM AR R AR

other comprehensive income as follows: mr
2020 2019
—EZF —E-NEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before taxation from REFEKESE£HEN
continuing operations PRI AIES 18 (88,438,549) (21,376,632)
Tax at the income tax rate of HPRISMIRER16.5%
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (ZE—NF 16.5%)
STEZIRE 14,592,361 3,527,144
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ ReJHNFRFIZ =2
for tax purposes M (3,944,863) (4,958,676)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBIA Z
tax purposes M 3,367,836 2,615,189
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  REMEAMFEEIEZ
N2 (16,374,717) (9,243,029)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEEBREEE 3,208,897 122,914
Utilisation of tax losses previously ElEEEIE R
not recognised MR 513,619 -
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEEEERE 2
subsidiaries operating in other MEABSITERE L
jurisdictions A (405,979) (3,206,240)
Tax effect of share of results of DEEERBEEZ
joint ventures WMET 2 (660) (1,529)
Tax effect of two-tiered tax rate MRREZ ML E 165,000 165,000
Tax effect of deferred tax liabilities KPkaEMNEINR
resulting from withholding tax on EERRIERIBEAE
undistributed profits MR & - 5,000,000
Taxation credit (charge) for the year REFEREEHEN
from continuing operations FRNERS ZH) 1,121,494 (5,979,227)
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“ECSETCASt—HILEE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING REFERKREEREFES
OPERATIONS #
2020 2019
—ECS ZE-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Loss for the year from continuing FTERBFELSEERAK
operations has been arrived at FEEFEIR GIA) -
after charging (crediting):
Auditor's remuneration 2 Gl e 2,100,000 2,100,000
Cost of inventories recognised BRARZZFEMRA
as an expense (including allowance (BiEsHRMAES
for provision of write-down of Bst51,570,4147% 77
inventories of HK$1,570,414 (Z=Z—H%F 791,079
(2019: HK$791,079)) B7T)) 226,205,655 210,084,515
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEITE 8,758,023 9,687,255
Depreciation of other property, plant and Efh#)% « = &
equipment REITE 28,389,168 20,464,052
Depreciation of property, ME -BERREITE
plant and equipment 37,147,191 30,151,307
Less: included in cost of sales and services 8 : 5t ASHE K BRFS Bl 2~ (21,449,420) (18,795,412)
15,697,771 11,355,895
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments B T A7 (B13EEHf &)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —Fre s TEREMERN 155,240,175 162,350,679
— Contributions to retirement benefits —IRIRREFI ST EHRR
schemes 2,135,822 9,131,076
Less: included in cost of sales and services &, . 5T ASHE RARFSH A (92,564,118) (97,328,520)
64,811,879 74,153,235
Legal and professional fees TEREXEER 11,424,078 7,038,181
Gross rental income from investment REREWMEZ
properties B U ALLZE (4,880,323) (7,310,989)
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred 8 | AREELER WA Z
for investment properties that KEMEESEZE
generated rental income during B RS
the year 291,480 286,707
(4,588,843) (7,024,282)

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2020 £ 3R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR M B Rk R

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

11.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 11.

REFBEEERHERES

OPERATIONS (Continued)

18 (1)

2020 2019
—E_EE “E-hEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The following items are included in UTEEBESAZREE
impairment losses under expected RENEERTBHREES
credit loss model, on financial assets ~ E5IBEINIE T 2 B {EE
and contract assets, net of reversal: 18 N pxEE
— Net impairment losses on trade —B2EWRIBEZ BE
receivables 51898 710,090 229,681
— Net impairment losses on —BNBEEZ
contract assets B RS 1E 5 EE 855,504 68,705
— Impairment losses on loans —BWEHZ
receivable BEE 8 30,554,241 1,348,580
— Impairment losses on loan to a —BRT—RKEEAQHE
joint venture 2 R ER1E = 3,222,914
— Impairment losses on amounts due ~ —FEWRBIE AT RIBEZ
from related companies B E 1,236,756 -
The following items are included in UTIEEBETAREMTIE
other interest income: WA -
— Bank interest income —IRTTFBUA (1,153,875) (1,266,643)
— Interest income on rental deposits —HEERE M EWA (83,341) (76,633)
The following items are included in UTIEEBTAEMUA :
other income:
— Dividend income — R EUWA (528,550) (1,087,856)
— Government grants (Note) — BB (7752) (10,552,678) (4,433,645)
— Others —Hfh (1,537,349) (195,724)
Note:

For the year ended 31 December 2020, government grants
represented the Employment Support Scheme launched by the Hong
Kong government of HK$4,518,785, one-off government grants in
the PRC of HK$3,036,252 related to grants under Covid-19 pandemic.
The remaining HK$2,997,641 (2019: HK$4,433,645) represented the
government grants that are receivable as a compensation for expenses
incurred during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Wt -

HE_ ST+ _FA=+—HIL=HE
FE > BUR # B 16 & B BUN # H B (R 7L 2
51214,518,785%8 75 K EE BiCovid-19
B IER BN 2 — R4 BN BN 3,036,252
T 0 BREE2,997,641 T (ZE—N4E
4,433,645 ) IERMMREBE S -2 F
+oB=+—HIEFEELENMAZHE
T 8 LS B ST 45 B o
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12.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Taking into consideration the adverse impact of the
Gaming Distribution Business on the Group’s overall
financial performance and other factors, the directors
of the Company determined to terminate this business
in June 2019 and thus the operation of the Gaming
Distribution Business had been discontinued.

The results of the Gaming Distribution Business for
the year ended 31 December 2019, which have been
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

12. B&1E

BRMBEREZANTERA
AR ZRAREFREN_Z
—NERARIEIET > AL

IR £

BRDIBEGZRBE_Z—NEF
TR=+T—HBLEFEEZXE
BABE_Z—NE+ZA

and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 —t+t—HIEFEZGEEnRE
December 2019, were as follows: EmmUWB AR T !
2019
“E-NE
HK$
BIT
Other income HMUrA 944
Administrative expenses THEX (3,618,365)
Loss before taxation from discontinued operation REBR IR EEHERRAIEIE (3,617,421)
Taxation RIE -
Loss for the year from discontinued operation KEEARIEREERARTER (3,617,421)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation has been FTEHRBERIEKEEFTRER
arrived at after charging: EEERE .
2019
ZE-NEF
HK$
BIT
Depreciation of property and equipment MERZEITE 512,387
Staff costs: BT :
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —fE - ITEREMETR] 1,471,142
— Contributions to retirement benefits schemes — R IREF T B FR 83,086
Total staff cost BB T A 1,554,228
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13. DIVIDENDS 13.

No dividend was paid or proposed for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of the basic loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the

HQ I%\

BHE_ZT_EFR_FT—NHF
+-_A=+—HLEEERTEK
HHEZRBETAKRE > BRE
HA SR DUBR 7R #8325 UK S5 ) AR

Bo

BkiEHE

AABEA NEBIEREFELE
EBNSRERBRLERNUT

Company is based on the following data: giEstE
Loss figures are calculated as follows: RS FAEWT .
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E—hEF
HK$ HK$
T BT
Loss for the year attributable to AR AL ASE
owners of the Company E518 (87,187,111) (30,782,482)
Less: loss for the year from B REBERIEREER
discontinued operation REFIE N/A RE R 3,617,421
Loss for the purpose of ARt EERELREHE
calculating basic loss per share Z K518 (87,187,111) (27,165,061)
2020 2019
—E-FE —E-NEF
Number of ordinary shares in issue ARstBsRELRBES
for the purpose of calculating ERTEBEREE
basic loss per share 253,639,456 253,639,456

No separate diluted loss per share information has been
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding issue for both years.
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14.

—eopEtsp=+—ALERE

LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 14.

The calculation of the basic loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to

FkEE (&)
AAE A AR ORI E
BB ISR SRERES

owners of the Company is based on the following data: BILERLUUTEESE
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E—hEF
HK$ HK$
#EIT BIT
Loss for the year attributable to BRstEeRERBEES
owners of the Company for RABEB AFEEASE
the purpose of calculating &518
basic loss per share (87,187,111) (30,782,482)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic loss per share.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operations is
HK1.43 cents for the year ended 31 December 2019,
based on the loss for the year from the discontinued
operation of HK$3,617,421 and the denominators
detailed above for both basic loss per share.

SRERSRRAZ HBEL E
S E R -

KEBRIEKRESEF
BHE_Z—NF+BA=+—H
EFE BRIEKREER 2SR
BEARBEAER 4381 HIiR
BREBERIEREEBRARFERE
3,617,421 80 /& E X PRsFil 5t
BEREAGEMRBZ 2S5
%0
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ME-BERXK

A

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Machinery
Construction lands and Leasehold and office and Motor
in progress buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HELHR HRER
TEIR BF HEMREH%E WAZRME HERRE AE st
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
B B B B B B B
CosT R
At 1 January 2019 RIE-NE—-F—H 8,460,383 269,282,098 57,827,554 51,046,022 474,241,366 15,960,884 876,818,307
Exchange adjustments ERBE (283,363) (1,718,320) (509,811) (174,306) (3,423,586) (89,803) (6,199,189)
Additions RE 5,865,104 - 4,496,650 2,237,504 50,675,992 3,429,479 66,704,729
Disposals HE - - - (6,536) (1,344,037) - (1,350,573)
Written-off g8 - - (940,081) (1,761,504) - - (2,701,585)
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NE+ZA=+—H 14,042,124 267,563,778 60,874,312 51,341,180 520,149,735 19,300,560 933,271,689
Exchange adjustments ERAE 2,830,368 5,757,507 1,872,958 702,309 10,555,581 303,390 22,022,113
Additions "E 1,109,279 5,039,321 7,798,246 5,190,449 28,016,014 1,155,380 48,308,689
Disposals HE - - - (72,768) (6,227,399) - (6,300,167)
Transfer to properties under BREREERTYE
development for sale (note 21) (#21) (17,981,771) (59,210,968) - - - - (77,192,739)
Eliminated upon leases expired RAESI R - (1,736,014) - - - - (1,736,014)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEE+ZR=1+—H - 217,413,624 70,545,516 57,161,170 552,493,931 20,759,330 918,373,571
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT  $RE R (A
At 1 January 2019 RIE-NE—F—H B 56,310,560 46,366,421 47,554,345 441,573,546 13,606,844 605,411,716
Exchange adjustments ERBE - (120,910 (265,754) (81,725) (1,003,086) (46,765) (1,518,240)
Provided for the year REEE - 13,153,543 6,322,162 1,974,477 7,577,407 1,636,105 30,663,694
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - - (1,507) (862,226) - (863,733)
Eliminated on written-off bl - - (940,081) (1,761,504) - - (2,701,585)
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NE+ZR=1+—H - 69,343,193 51,482,748 47,684,086 447,285,641 15,196,184 630,991,852
Exchange adjustments ERHEE - 3,598,653 1,481,161 373,115 3,023,320 187,759 8,664,008
Provided for the year KERR - 14,681,615 6,647,818 2,455,914 11,686,317 1,675,527 37,147,191
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - - - - (4,007,967) - (4,007,967)
Transfer to properties under HEREREEETNE
development for sale - (2,345,400 - - - - (2,345,400
Eliminated upon leases expired REEEE RS - (1,736,014) - - - - (1,736,014)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZRE+ZR=1+-H - 83,542,047 59,611,727 50,513,115 457,987,311 17,059,470 668,713,670
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 AZEZEE+ZA=1-H - 133,871,577 10,933,789 6,648,055 94,506,620 3,699,860 249,659,901
At 31 December 2019 RIE-AE+ZA=1—H 14,042,124 198,220,585 9,391,564 3,657,094 72,864,094 4,104,376 302,279,837
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, after taking into
account the residual values, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

15. % BB KsfHm (@)

taMx - -BRERREEE (R
TR ZIEDLRAUTE

Leasehold lands and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Over the shorter of the lease
terms or 30 — 50 years
12.5% - 20%

RIGEIFETE

AELHK BHAA MR H0E50E
BT UBEEAE)

AEYELEE  125%-20%

Furniture, fixtures and office ~ 10% - 25% FREER  10%-25%
equipment WAERE
Machinery and equipment 10% — 25% A e 10% - 25%
Motor vehicles 25% — 33':% RE 25% - 33'5%
2020 2019
—EEHF “E-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
The carrying values of leasehold THlfAE T RIEF 2
land and buildings shown IREEEE
above comprise:
Leasehold land and buildings in UREEZHEL MK
Hong Kong BF 11,588,139 10,910,677
Leasehold land and buildings in PRC IR FREZEE LM
EES 122,283,438 187,309,908
133,871,577 198,220,585

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_S_SHE+_A=+—BLEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ME - -BmER=E (&)
(Continued)
The Group as lessee EBEAEAEA
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant FHEEE GIAYE -KE
and equipment) Rk )

Leasehold land

and building
AE M RIEF
HK$
BIT
At 31 December 2019 R_ZE—-h&E+"A=+—H
Carrying amount REE 110,635,281
At 31 December 2020 R-2-ZEH+”-_H=+—H
Carrying amount EREE 50,706,915
For the year ended BE_ZT_ZF+HA=+—HLEE
31 December 2020
Depreciation charge EER 8,758,023
Expense relating to short-term leases  ELfGHATHE B RIREI X 3,858,087
Expense relating to leases of low-value EREBEZEHRES
assets, excluding short-term leases FEERBEEEMNGHEE
of low-value assets BREANREX 22,632
Total cash outflow for leases HENRSMHELE 15,731,617
Additions to right-of-use assets REFREEE 5,039,321
For the year ended BHE-ZT—hFE+ZHA=+—HLEE
31 December 2019
Depreciation charge TEER 9,687,255
Expense relating to short-term BIHAE E R E R
leases and other leases with VIRFER S AU B RS ZER
lease terms end within 12 months F165E B HEANI12E B A
of the date of initial application [EmBEMAEE
of HKFRS 16 BRI 657,493
Expense relating to leases of HEEEEENHEERRNMAX
low-value assets 24,420
Total cash outflow for leases HENRESMHERE 9,560,571

For both years, the Group leases various offices, RWmEFEE ~EESHEEM
warehouses and factory for its operations. Lease EETHRAE-RERLIK -
contracts are entered into for fixed term of one to fifty E&NECHE—ER %57

years. i ©
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15.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment) (Continued)

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
smaller office premises and office equipment. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases for
which the short-term lease expenses is disclosed above.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain not to exercise a termination option,
upon the occurrence of either a significant event or
a significant change in circumstances that is within
the control of the lessee. During the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019, there is no such triggering
event.

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$9,908,532 (2019: HK$10,330,660)
has been pledged to banks to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December 2020.

Leasehold improvements with an aggregate cost of
HK$41,434,280 (2019: HK$41,280,050) were fully
depreciated are still in use as at 31 December 2020.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

15.

Y&~ B Ress i ()

AEBREAEEA (B)

REEEE GIAYE K
KRE) (&)

o4 [ A A BN BB M A T 1)
% ROAR BT AT E o
CECEER-_E—NE+A
=+—B EHEEE IR
4 8 9 K A O S 0 K

HEHEG-

tESh » B S A 7R AR AR A BB &8
ERNEREHRBERHREX
BER AAEEEHTEES
R REBEAITHEQILERZE-
REBEE_Z_ZFR_ZT-NF
TTR=+—HLEFE TEH
HEMEMS-

BREE & 49,908,532 (&
— £ 10,330,660 7T) 2 ¥
¥ BEARREBCEFFIRIT
EARERR S -_2F+_"H
—t+—HEEZ-—RRTEEZ
o

AR AR 7441,434,2808 1 (=
— £ 41,280,050 7T) RFE
EYELEERBITE R T
EEBFE+_B=+—HARE
)Eﬁo
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

16.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various offices in the PRC and
commercial and industrial premises in Hong Kong
under operating leases with rentals payable monthly.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
three years (2019: one to three years) with no rights to
extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees
only.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to
purchase the property at the end of the lease term.

16.

REME

FEBRBEEEEHAETE
NWEEMAEREEENLIEY
FoHERSHAXM -HHA—M&K
A—E=FCZT—hFE. —ZE=
F) BEAEAAERRKASRTERE
IGHAR 2 18 °

FEFRTEREEZHFMAZI
KRR RESFEEEGHUE
BEESBZEGRE M
e A R REERRR
EEARERERFBEEYEZ
EiER

HK$
BT
At 1 January 2019 ﬁ/\\:% hE—FB—H 239,199,410
Fair value change recognised in RIEmER 2 A EES)
profit or loss (17,966,974)
Exchange adjustments fE AL (317,419)
At 31 December 2019 RIEBE—-—NF+ZA=+—H 220,915,017
Fair value change recognised in RIEmER 2 A EES)
profit or loss (9,917,231)
Exchange adjustments fE AR 1,022,300
At 31 December 2020 RIBEZEF+-A=+—H 212,020,086
Unrealised loss on property revaluation B &R EMEZEAR
included in other gains and losses RERYEELRE
— for the year ended —HEZZZHF
31 December 2020 +ZA=+—BILFE (9,917,231)

— for the year ended
31 December 2019

—BEZZE-NF
+ZA=+—HLFE

(17,966,974)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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16.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of all investment properties has been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by
Peak Vision Appraisals Limited as at 31 December 2020
and 2019. They are independent qualified professional
valuers not related to the Group.

Investment properties with fair value of HK$97,700,000
(2019: HK$97,650,000) as at 31 December 2020 was
determined based on the direct comparison approach
assuming sale of each of these properties in existing
state and by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market and
adjusted for differences in the nature and location.

Investment properties with fair value of HK$114,320,086
(2019: HK$123,265,017) as at 31 December 2020 are
determined based on the income capitalisation approach,
where the market rentals of all lettable units of the
properties are assessed and discounted at the market
yield expected by investors for this type of properties.
The market rentals are assessed based on estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of existing
lease and the market rentals of the similar properties in
the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate is determined
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales
transactions of similar properties and adjusted to take into
account the market expectation from property investors
to reflect factors specific to the Group's investment
properties.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use and adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued
operating lease income to avoid double counting. At
the end of the reporting period, the financial controller
works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs into the model. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to management of the
Group.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

16.

REWE (B

FREREMEQAFEANDRER
BEARABN _EIZFR
—E-NFt+RA=+t—RH%#17
WEERFE ZABHR/ERE
E R EN IS EREEM
(EEIE

RW_E2_ZF+_-_A=+—HZ
NF{EA97,700,0008 T (ZE
— L 1 97,650,00087T) 2 &
METLRBEBLIBREEE &%
BREEVEZEREE LB
2EMHBETS L8 ZIELR
HERXRZURMMEERUEESR
EREEE

A _ETEFEFE+_HA=+—HZ
NF(EA114,320,0868 70 (=
— L 123,265,0178T) 2
EMEIRBABRCEET
FrEwETHEMBEENNTHEA
SRR EERZEEYENTE
MW aE T E TG RARIR -
MHEEESHRERKIRERERE
BTG WLIREHEE KR
KM B ENHER S EE
BHeBARMEEXRTL2ETELY
XHERZFHVENKREXET
WEEBEYEREEN TS TER
EITHE MR AEFERZEY
(B ERZR-

RIEFREMEZRAFER A
BYMEZEERRERGRIAHE
EMAR -NERSHR MBHR
RHEIMEERLEMRES
B EE S BRI EERM R E A
BRAZHBE - WEENAFTESR
REREE FOLAEEEEE
PERRENBYRE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_THE+_A=+—HILEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. KEME (@)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques FER HEEIRPE A GFEL o
for investment properties. The carrying amount of the KEYERNGER ML EEE o
Group's investment properties is a Level 3 fair value zlx% B EYENEEEBNS
measurement. There were no transfers into or out of NS ==
Level 3 during the year.
Information about fair value measurements using EFHE KA o8 ABE
significant unobservable inputs ZAFEEEZER
The following table shows the valuation techniques TR REEEEYENTER
used in the determination of fair values for investment FEREERM R GEETPrE
properties and unobservable inputs used in the B2 o= A B o
valuation models.
Inter relationship between
significant unobservable
Fair value as at Fairvalue  Valuation Significant Range of si?nificant inputs and fair value
Description 31 December hierarchy techniques unobservable inputs unobservable inputs measurement
‘ ) , ‘ ‘ EATTEEE\NER
g K+ZA=+-BHATE ATEEM  fRERHE EXTIHEEAYE EXTOUREEAEEE  ATEFEZHNERRR
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEI%E 20k ZEI%E 0%
HKS$ HKS
BT T
Industrial properties in 97,700,000 97,650,000  Level 3 Direct comparison (i) Based on market HK$2,667 to HK$3,100t0  The higher the market price,
Fanling, Hong Kong approach observable transactions  HK$4,022 per ~ HK$3,599 per the higher the fair value
of comparable square feet square feet
properties
REENEZ TENE 3% BRULHE (i ﬁ ﬁ"ﬁtﬂ’ﬁz §THR §YAR mERE  ATERS .
THIRERS 2667ATE 31002 %
402287 3,599% 7
(i) Level adjustments 0.25%t00.50% 03%t05%  The increase/decrease in
level adjustment/location
adjustment, the higher or
lower the fair value.
i) BB 025%F050%  03%Z5% %&ﬂm%/f EREAE/
ﬁ ' SobPd
(iii) - Location adjustments 3% to 5% 0% to 2% The increase/decrease in
level adjustment/location
adjustment, the higher or
\ower the fa\r value
(ii) EBE 3%ZE5% 0%%2% f&?‘h
Properties in the PRC 16,520,086 14,265,017 Level 3 Income capitalisation (i) Capitalisation rate 3.25% 3.5% The lower the capitalisation
approach taking into account the rate, the higher the fair
capitalisation of market value.
) o rental value N
IR RERNE 3% WABRILHE () ExGEGATRE  325% 3.5% ExfERE ATEDS.
SEENERL)
(i) Market rental value RMB136 to RMB136 to The higher the market rental
RMB160 per RMB160 per value, the higher the fair
square meter square meter value
() RALEE STHK iy IN ﬁ%*ﬁ%s U5
ABBEB6TE  BenEARE  ATER
AEH1607 1607
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_S_SHE+_A=+—BLEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REME (@)
Inter relationship between
significant unobservable
Fair value as at Fair value  Valuation Significant Range of significant inputs and fair value
Description 31 December hierarchy  techniques unobservable inputs unobservable inputs measurement
) , EXTEREEAHEA
g K+ZA=+-AHATE NTEER  GERE EXTARREAYE EXTORREANEEE  ATEFEZENEERR
2020 2019 2020 2019
Z3I3E “E-nE k42 “E-hE
HKS HKS
BT A
Commercial properties 97,800,000 109,000,000  Level 3 Income capitalisation (i) Capitalisation rate 45% 4% The lower the capitalisation
in Yuen Long, Hong approach taking into account the rate, the higher the fair
Kong capitalisation of market value.
) rental value X
REETHZEENE 34k WABRIGHE () BxLE 45% 4% ERMLERE
(AmERSER ArHERS
WEAL)
(i) Market rental value HKS$21 to HKS65  HK$21 to HK$75 The higher the market rental
per square feet  per square feet va\ue the higher the fair
(i) HRALEE STER STHR H%fﬁ%ﬂﬁi@m
NETE NELE AYEER-
65770 15T
The Group's investment properties are located in Hong KEBRKREMEUNREBERH

Kong and the PRC. All of the Group's property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes are measured using the
fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

As at 31 December 2020, investment properties with
aggregate carrying value of HK$195,500,000 (2019:
HK$206,650,000) were pledged to banks to secure
bank borrowings as stated in note 31 and general

banking facilities granted to the Group.

B o A S B i BRIV & N E A1
EBEMREEERERBEZFEY
FREDUAFEENGE I
DERER/BRENDEANK-

AZEZREFZA=+—H
48 BE THI{E 73 195,500,0003 7T (=
T — L4 206,650,000 7T) Z
KREMEBERTIRIT (EAK
A3FTMIR TR E R AEEER
Z2—RIBITEEZER-
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BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

17. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FVTPL

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

17. EBREMEEBAELT
BEIRZKRET A EiB
BmBEAFEIRZZH
BE
BREMEEBARATE

SRz iRATH
2020 2019
ZEIEHE —E-NEF
HK$ HK$
AT HETT
Unlisted equity securities established — JA& 7 ~ P B K89l 3L
in Hong Kong, the PRC and ZIE LR AES
overseas (note) (g2 17,854,928 17,854,928
Note: As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has Mzt R_E_EF/KR_FE—HF+

investments in three unlisted equity securities established in
the PRC, two unlisted equity securities established in overseas
and one unlisted equity security incorporated in Hong Kong
which were held for an identified long term strategic purpose.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE£EZERBRAT o

A=+—H > x&EEHETHEMN
UM=RIFLETRAZF T8
SRR ILBY M 2K FF £ AR AR 55
REBEMAIIN—RIFLTHR
FRFETRE BEREDHF
EERENRERKRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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17.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Equity instruments at FVTOCI (Continued)

These investments in equity instruments are not held
for trading. Instead, they are held for medium to long-
term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company have elected to designate these
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they
believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in these
investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not be
consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these
investments for long-term purposes and realising their
performance potential in the long run.

Details of the fair value measurement on equity
instruments at FVTOCI are disclosed in note 41.

Financial assets at FVTPL

17.

EREMEARRARLT
BEIRZKRET A EiB
BmBEAFEIRZ R
BE (8

BREMEEBARATE
SIiRz iRAT A (&)

ZERATEREBETIFFEE
B Bk BEDBFHERRAR
AR AL "ATEFEE
BERZERATARERERSS
BHEHMEEWALRAFETER
RABRERD BHRXERE
PRE R BREYA T ER GRS
BAEBRAREENFAZSR
BEREBRAREBERENRE
REF o

FRE2EBARAFEY IR
ATEZ AT ETEFBERMIEE
AV EE o

FRBEDEATFEIRNE
MEE

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong R&BZ EHRAEE

2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
23,059,714 64,833,700

Details of the fair value measurement on financial assets
at FVTPL are disclosed in note 41.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE£EZERBRAT o

BERBERBAFEIRNEME
EZ AT EEFBRWEAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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18.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

CONTRACT ASSETS 18. AEE
2020 2019
—EEHE —EF—h=F
HK$ HK$
AT BIT

Contract assets from Manufacturing S MIHEEBN

and Sales Business HHEE 36,383,928 19,296,363
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEERERE (1,143,130) (287,626)
35,240,798 19,008,737

As at 1 January 2019, contract assets amounted to
HK$15,719,178.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's
right to consideration from the customers for the
manufacturing and sales of printing products. Contract
assets arise when the Group has right to consideration
for the work completed under relevant contracts
and their right is conditioned on factors other than
passage of time. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables upon the delivery and acceptance of
products by customers.

Typical payment terms is 60 to 120 days upon delivery.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current
assets because the Group expects to realise them in its
normal operating cycle which is within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in
note 41.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

RIZE-—NF—B—H &80E&
E#15,719,178%8 7T

GHNEETEZRMAERMNE
RIFEENRIEmAE R WERAE
ZHEM GHNEERTERAR
RS IRIEAEBEFTER TER
B BmFREF ALIRE R
LI EARDIFERFEE -G
MNEERE P X RIZWE oK
BEEESBIRIA

— R RAAR B X &60%E 120
Ho

AEBRZSGNEEDESM
HEE REASAEBRHANIE
FEEBHR BREMARETZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
—ECTE A=+ —ALEE

BE

19.

LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES/INTERESTS IN BT EEREZER T
JOINT VENTURES SEBNTIZREE
2020 2019
—EEHF “E-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Costs of investments RIELEMEERTZ
in unlisted joint ventures LB A 16 16
Share of post-acquisition profit and FE{L UL FE R I F) K
other comprehensive income Hh 2@ A 400,466 404,466
400,482 404,482
Loan to Reliance Partner Limited #5FReliance Partner Limited
("Reliance Partner”) (TReliance Partnery)
= 3,222,914 3,222,914
Less: allowance for credit losses (note /) & : 15 EE 128 % (F752i) (3.222,914) (3,222,914)
Loan to Estate Summit Limited 45 FEstate Summit Limited
("Estate Summit”) (TEstate Summit]) Z
=N 12,170,377 12,170,377
Share of post-acquisition losses and FEIG IR IR B B 18 R Ho M
other comprehensive expense SEBEX (4,411,177) (4,411,177)
Less: loss recognised (note i) B BRESRESE (Wati) (7,759,200) (7,759,200)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BHE_Z

19.

e

LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES/INTERESTS IN
JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2019, Reliance Partner
defaulted in repayment continuously and no settlement was
made for the outstanding balances during the year. The
management of the Group considered that the credit risk on
the loan to this joint venture significantly increased during the
year. In view of this, the management started to assess the
ECL on loan to Reliance Partner changing from 12-month ECL
to lifetime ECL during the year ended 31 December 2019.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, due to continuous
non-repayment from Reliance Partner, the management
considered that Reliance Partner was credit-impaired and an
impairment losses of HK$3,222,914 was recognised.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
recognised a gain of HK$1,775,100 on the loan to Estate
Summit due to the settlement from Estate Summit.

Details of impairment assessment of loan to a joint
venture for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in note 41.

19.

MTFEERBZER
BEQRZEHE (B)

(i) BEZ-AF+ZA=+—H
LF4EFE > Reliance Partneri3 &K
BRERERNLEESREES
BRoAEBEEERA RNERE
Mt TZaERazERNEER
RBEAMEIE KR -BERIL REZ
TE-AF+ZA=+—HIEF
B BIEERIATEH 4 TReliance
Partnerz BN TEHAE BB H
+oEREEEEEEEAS
HATEERE E /518 - i Reliance
PartnerfF RN ERM M EEE R
#Reliance Partner21s B {E >
I B FER3,222,9148 TR E &
o

(i) BHE_Z-hhF+ZHA=+—H
LIEEE > i Estate Summitésias
BREARE - AEECEHEIBENT
Estate Summitz Ugz1,775,100%
Fo

BE_Z-NF+Z A= +—8
JJ:EEF;N FTRERAZEMBHR
(EESEEAEE RN E A

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2020 £ 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBHRR M

i 3

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

19.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES/INTERESTS IN 19. HBFEEATRZER 1
JOINT VENTURES (Continued) BEATIZHEZ (48)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had N_ETEFRFR _E—HEFE+
interests in the following joint ventures: B=+—H > &XEERUTEE
AB BB
Proportion of
Form of Principal nominal value
business Country of place of (lass of of issued capital Proportion of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation share held held by the Group voting power held Principal activities
AEEMS
BRAE RBEREY HRRIAR IRERNE FrsRER BEARAEELS PR ELA TEEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZE05E CE-0fF ZEIBE CENE
% % % %
Reliance Partner Incorporated Anguilla Hong Kong Ordinary 50 50 50 50 Investment holding
e RE & LER RERR
Estate Summit Incorporated British Virgin Hong Kong Ordinary 50 50 50 50 Inactive
Islands ("BVI")
e EBESHES e Lk EEZH
(ZBRLEE)
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are EREARAEAZESENTEIE
not individually material =g S
2020 2019
b —E2
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The Group's share of loss NEFELEIE 4,000 9,268
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

20.

21.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

INVENTORIES 20. #8
2020 2019
—E-EE —E—hEF
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Raw materials R 22,558,598 14,220,571
Finished goods A 12,978,891 10,113,703
35,537,489 24,334,274

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain
finished goods were damaged and as a result,
allowance for provision of or write-down of inventories
of HK$1,570,414 (2019: HK$791,079) has been
recognised and included in cost of sales and services in
the current year.

REE_ZE_EF+_B=+—
HIEEE  BTEEmTEIR
At EEBFEEMK1,570,414
BT (ZTE—NE 1 791,0798
7o) W st AXRFEENHE KR
fo

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 21. FEBERYE
SALE
HKS
BT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—HA—H 43,325,216
Exchange adjustments B 2 FE %L (726,865)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hEFE+ZHE=+—H 42,598,351
Transferred from property, plant and equipment B B 4% « BB KRR 74,847,339
Additions NE 4,629,121
Exchange adjustments PE R 2,684,314
At 31 December 2020 N_EZEF+"HF=+—H 124,759,125
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BHE_Z

21.

ToTE+TAS+— LR

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

FEERTYE (B

Analysis of leasehold lands: ME T -
HK$
BT
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-ZEHF+-"HA=+—H
Carrying amount IREE 99,463,919
As at 31 December 2019 HZIE—-hE+ZB=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 42,598,351

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The residual values are determined
as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold land
component. No depreciation charge is made on the
leaseholder lands taking into account the estimated
residual values as at 31 December 2020 in respect of
the properties which are transferred from property,
plant and equipment during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The properties under development for sale of the Group
are situated on the land located in the PRC.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

FHE £ 3 B9 BR T (B LA AL 25 B A2 {7
REtTEREABEEKXFZ -
FerEEREAEELIMISN
HEHEBE MREBEEZZTZ
ZFE+_B=+—HIFEH
BEYME- -BRERYENYZEM
SOERIBE_ZE_EF+Z
ﬁ +—H®N G REREE
ELHASHRITEER

AEBZRFEERFYEMNT
Bz L #h ko
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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21.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group changed its intention of a certain plot of land
in the PRC from owner-occupation to development
for sale. Accordingly, the carrying amount of
HK$74,847,339 was transferred from property, plant
and equipment (including leasehold land and building
of HK$56,865,568 and construction in progress of
HK$17,981,771 to properties under development for
sale in current year.

One of the properties under development for sale are
developed on the land in the PRC owned by /&% &
EREMERZEAMRAT (“Zhongging”), a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$42,598,351 (2019:
HK$42,598,351).

On 18 June 2014, RIITFTHEBBERELEREBRAT
(“Zhongxing Guosheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and the immediate holding company
of Zhongqing, initiated civil proceedings against
Zhongging in the RIITEZE ARZEF ("People’s
Court of Baoan District”) for the repayment of the
shareholder’s loan owing to Zhongxing Guosheng of
RMB23,479,330. On 19 June 2014, pursuant to an
application made by Zhongxing Guosheng to freeze
and preserve assets of Zhongging in the total value of
RMB23,400,000, an order was granted by the People’s
Court of Baoan District to freeze and preserve the lands
owned by Zhongging during the period from 24 June
2014 to 23 June 2016 (“Freeze Order”).

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

21.

FEERTYE (B

HE_Z"ZEF+-"F=+—H
EFE AEBBERPENE
TRz R ERRAHES AL
BENAZBRFE -HIL IRE
E4A74,847,339 8T HYE
BERZE (BIEHE T &iE
F56,865,5688 T U K EE T2
17,981,771 87) BREZRER
ME LURNEAEEHE -

HP—BFEZETYWERH
BERTHEEMERZEERAE
(THhBERME KRB ZIER
BENBAR) RHEEE 2
LR BRmEmEL%42,598,351
BT (ZE—H4F © 42,598,351%8
7T) °©

RZE—NEB+NHF
NI EERKREERERAE
(TR ERRE) AR B Z22EN
BRABRPEEME BEZE
RAE) MEEEXRPERE
RERER ARM23,479,330701A
FYFTEZEARER (IE%
& ARZER)) HBhiEEMER
HESZEHFR - N _E—MWEARA
+HhB FAEFERRRF RS
RREFEFEEMHEEEEHEAR
123,400,000z EE EZ&
ARZERES R —ME N
BZ_+HmAE_&—/XF/NH
T+ =HRRERFRERER
MWERES 2t (DRES)) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

On 15 October 2014, the Group received the civil
mediation document (REFAHEE) issued by the
People’s Court of Baoan District that (i) both Zhongging
and the Group confirmed the shareholder’s loan was in
sum of RMB23,479,330; (ii) Zhongging agreed to repay
to Zhongxing Guosheng the sum of RMB23,479,330
together with the interests accrued from 18 June 2014
until the date of repayment within 15 days after the
effective date of the civil mediation document (i.e. 15
October 2016); and (iii) if Zhongqing fails to repay the
amount stated in (ii) in full on time, the Group has
the right to request Zhongqing to pay default interests
calculated at two times of the lending rate of the
People’s Bank of China over the same period.

On 27 May 2016, the Group received the assistance
execution notice (BFBIETT@E A E) issued by the
People’s Court of Baoan District to freeze and preserve
the land owned by Zhongging during the period from
13 June 2016 to 12 June 2019.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

21.

FEERTYE (B

A TE-—NE+B+HEHAE
BWIHEZER AR ARFTE SN
ZREFABEE AERAOWPEE
WMERAEBHUEIDKREER
A NE®23,479,3307T ; (i) H
EMHEERERNESHAMBESE
MBHBISK B & —RE+
B+HH) AEHEBRKEEZEA
823,479,330 BEEBE_E
—NEARB+N\HEEZEEHHE
LERFZHE ; KiEHEEM
EXREEFEZHEZFMHEZM
B R AEEAERERPBFRM
EXMENFNE &R EE—
HETEARBITEENE M
EEtE o

RN_E—RERAA-+tH &K
ERKRIBHEZE AR ERSE
HEHBEAITEME  UR ZE
—RNESRB+T=BEZZ2—hE
NA+ BB REERS
EiEREE 2 titho
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“ECSETCASt—HILEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

On 15 May 2019, the Group received the notice of
seizure period (B HAPRIBAIE) issued by the People’s
Court of Baoan District to freeze and preserve the land
owned by Zhongging during the period from 13 May
2019 to 12 May 2022 (the “Updated Freeze Order”).

At the date of this report, the shareholder’s loan has
not yet been settled by Zhongging. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Updated
Freeze Order is for the purpose of securing the
Group’s rights and to ensure that Zhongging has
sufficient assets to repay the shareholder’s loan to
the Zhongxing Guosheng. Therefore, the directors
of the Company considered there is no impairment
on both the properties under development for sale
and the shareholder’s loan. Zhongxing Guosheng can
withdraw the court order for the repayment of the
shareholder’s loan and then release the Updated Freeze
Order from the People’s Court of Baoan District at any
time and Zhongxing Guosheng remains in control over
Zhonggqing as its operation other than the construction
on the land owned by Zhongging is not affected by the
Freeze Order or the Updated Freeze Order.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

21.

FEERTYE (B

A _E-NFEREB+HEH K&
BiZEEZB A ARERZBHZE
HERBENEZ U Z_E— N5
ERB+=RE_ZE__F8A
+_HHERERFREREERS
2z (TERFRES]) ©

RS HH > BBt E H KR
BERREM - ARATNEFR
R BENRETEERERER
2N BEREEMERS B
HWEENTEBRREERRE
Mo RRABEFHERFTE
HERTMERRRE NG ER
1B o 1 2 B 2% ] LABE B 0 (B0 Be
EERRERIFHIES A
BEGEZEARAREMNYE
RG> PEBRI A IES S
BREME ARBFRIRTPEEME
FR¥ER L ERIRIESI  HEE
TERELRNENRESHE
@O
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

22,

BEZ R EMEUWRIE TR
TRIELURET &

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables B EWIE 113,341,530 137,764,692
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEREES (3,093,921) (2,295,719)
110,247,609 135,468,973
Receivables with brokers’ houses KAAITRE R ERIE 10,191,214 457,856
Deposits and other receivables ST REMEWRIE 22,312,508 13,820,892
Other tax recoverable H e e 18 4,296,372 3,446,943
Prepayments SEUNE O 11,860,199 10,638,460
158,907,902 163,833,124

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBERRDINA -
Current assets MENEE 155,011,721 159,113,114
Non-current assets ERIEE 3,896,181 4,720,010
158,907,902 163,833,124

As at 1 January 2019, trade receivables from contracts
with customers amounted to HK$147,056,546.

The Group's credit terms on Manufacturing and Sales
Business and Trading Business generally range from 60
to 90 days. Credit period of 120 days is granted to a
few customers of the Manufacturing and Sales Business
with whom the Group has a good business relationship
and who are in sound financial condition. The Group
allows an average credit period of 60 to 90 days to its
customers of Music and Entertainment Business. The
following is an ageing analysis of the trade receivables
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

A _E-NEFE—HB—H ' kKEH
BRINZENZ B S EKRIE
2147,056,5467 7T ©

AEBRERBEXEBFUKRES
(B2 EEBPERE—MRNF60RE
OH VHEAEBERITER
R BB T RBIT 2 8E & iE
EXBEROUEAFAI20HZEES
o REBEAETFTERRIBRRET
BEEZEEHRFHEAE60E
He A TARRESHARBIZRER
HERZ%| > B ZEWIE (B
Br{EEEEEMH) REE DM
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

22. BHKREMBURIETE
TRIBU KT £ (B)

2020 2019
—_ECZE —E-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Manufacturing and Sales Business and ~ #Y3& Ko & 3£ 75 MU K&
Trading Business: B2ER .
0 — 30 days 0&E30H 58,405,247 72,774,483
31 - 60 days 31&260H 33,881,466 32,715,228
61 — 90 days 61£290H 11,183,977 20,317,316
Over 90 days BiE90H 5,569,541 8,376,318
109,040,231 134,183,345
Music and Entertainment Business: BRRIR BT
0 - 30 days 0&30H 778,509 821,801
31 - 60 days 31&860H 129,147 77,990
61 - 90 days 61E90H 89,722 266,194
Over 90 days BiBo0H 210,000 119,643
1,207,378 1,285,628
Total trade receivables B 5 FEWRIE 4R % 110,247,609 135,468,973
NW_E-_EF+_H=+—H">

Trade receivables of approximately HK$26,284,000
(2019: HK$31,158,000) were denominated in United
States dollars (“USD") as at 31 December 2020, the
currency other than the functional currency of the

respective group entities.

N — < —=

% 84926,284,0008T (=%
— L€ 131,158,000 7T) 2 &
FREWARIEUETT (MET)) BE

z

fi» B
ThAEE I -
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22.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$9,040,941 (2019: HK$8,495,961) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, HK$4,348,466 (2019: HK$78,017) has
been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as
in default. With reference to the historical records, past
experience and also available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information to those customers,
the directors of the Company do not consider these
receivables as credit-impaired as these customers have
a good business relationship with the Group and
recurring overdue records of these customers with
satisfactory settlement history.

Rental deposit paid of HK$594,686 in respect of the
non-cancellable short-term operating lease with a
related party as disclosed in note 39 is included in
deposits and other receivables as at 31 December 2019.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables and deposits for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 41.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

22,

BB RHMEURIE A
1qITAIE'L/(& ﬂjﬁ (n‘ﬁ)

N —_EEFE+"_RB=+—H"
RNEB B G RWEIBLE GRS
B FEBRE A2 589,040,941 7T (Z
T —NHF 8,495,961 87T) 2
FE W Rk I8 » 52 35 B W R B Y R
SHEEmB -ERRERT
4,348,466 7T (ZE— N !
78,017787c) B HE90H T %ut:
BUWIERABRN K2EZE
)EE’J}ﬁEEEBﬁ”z\LE,%%%Mu&—J
EENGEREREBEMEMESE
Bl RKATDERELARBZENE
WHRIBEHIREERE BRRA
ZERPHAAERHFTRETER
% BZEEPRNKE AR
BT HER G RIER -

Sﬁiﬁﬂ&ﬁ‘;ﬁ%ﬁ%&%ﬁtﬁ £ B
FHEINA O RIE GRS
Eﬁz%ﬂ‘i\&‘i\sm 68678 7T
FARE—hhE+_B=+—
Hzsl&RkEMEBWRIE

BE_Z_ZER-_ZT-NF
TRA=+—HILEEFENEZ K
H{th FE R IB LUK 5T s BY BB 5T
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_S_SHE+_A=+—BLEE

23.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

2020 2019
—_EEHE —E-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fixed-rate loans receivable EWEEER 61,502,653 68,934,393
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEREG (31,902,821) (1,348,580)
29,599,832 67,585,813

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENDIA !
Current assets MENEE 29,599,832 44,575,290
Non-current assets ERBEE - 23,010,523
29,599,832 67,585,813

The loans receivable has contractual maturity within one
to two years (2019: within one to two years) as at 31
December 2020. The average interest rate for the fixed-
rate loans receivable was ranging from 5% to 37%
(2019: 5% to 24%) per annum.

Other than the gross carrying amount of
HK$31,376,190 (2019: nil) was past due over 90 days,
there is no other loans receivable which was past due at
the end of the reporting period.

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting
to HK$27,429,434 (2019: HK$41,097,461) as at 31
December 2020 is secured by properties located in
Hong Kong. The fair values of these properties are
higher than the carrying amounts of the respective
loans receivable. The Group is not permitted to sell
or re-pledge the properties in the absence of default
by the borrower. There has not been any significant
changes in the quality of the collateral held for the
loans receivable. The Group has not recognised a loss
allowance for the loans receivable as a result of these
collaterals.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

N _E_EF+_H=+—H"
ERETNEHNEHEAEA—=
MER (ZE—LEFE: —EME
W) - EEEKERZFHEF
RBNF5%E3T7% (ZE—HF
5%ZE24%) o

Pr48BREE(E31,376,190% 7T (Z
T—h&F %) BEAHEEB#EI0H
AN Rt dE H A E WL E Fp R S P
RE&E A o

N _E_EF+_H=+—H"
MERETH(E /327,429,434 7T (=
T—HF 41,097,461%87T) BY
FEWER T BN EBNYEIR
HoZEYEMNATFERMBREE
WEFHNREEAS - EERA
REHNERT  ZEBAFRE
ERBIREZEE 2SR
WERFMFAENIRRRERIL R
ERIERES - KEBE W EEZ
LR EMERERERBEE
Bt o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting
to HK$27,760,367 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$24,221,603), which is secured by the entire
issued share capital of immediate holding company
of the borrower and guaranteed by the son of the
ultimate beneficial owner of the borrower. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the counterparty
of this loans receivable defaulted in repayment
and no settlement was made for the outstanding
balances during the year. The management of the
Group considered that the credit risk on this loans
receivable has significantly increased during the year
and started to assess the ECL on this loans receivable
from 12-month ECL to lifetime ECL during the year
ended 31 December 2020. In view of the probability
of the default and the recoverable amount of the
pledges, an impairment loss of HK$26,549,287 (2019:
HK$1,211,080) was recognised.

The remaining gross carrying amount of loans receivable
amounting to HK$6,312,852 (2019: HK$3,615,329)
is unsecured. During the year ended 31 December
2020, there are counterparties with gross carrying
amount of HK$3,958,939 defaulted in repayment
and no settlement was made for the outstanding
balances during the year. In view of the continuous non
repayment from the debtors, an impairment losses of
HK$3,828,939 (2019: HK$130,000) on these credit-
impaired debtors during the year ended 31 December
2020. Also, the Group has recognised HK$176,015
(2019: HK$7,500) loss allowance on the remaining
loans receivable.

Total loss allowance of HK$30,554,241 (2019:
HK$1,348,580) have been recognised in respect of the
loans receivable during the year ended 31 December
2020. Details of impairment assessment of loans
receivable for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 are set out in note 41.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

23.

EREmR (&)

RZETEFZRA=+—RH"
MSBEEE(E A27,760,3678 7T (Z
T — A4 24,221,603 1) B9
FEWE T U ABNBEZZER
NENEIEBITRAIERR
TWHZEFRANRKREGEE A
ZRFFER - BE_Z_ZTF
+ZRA=+—HIEFE  IEEW
ERNHEFHIERNET RERN
WHERBEEREBELF AERE

% A A K hE BT I B 4R 5T
ILEKERNTEREEEBE ®
BE_TETF+"HB=+—H
IFFER+_EBTEHREERIE
BAHHTEAEEREBE ENE
AP A SEME R IR IR B0 B] Uk Bl &
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ZT— 4 11,211,080 7T) BIE
(EVSEEE
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E_EF+_"_HA=+—HILHF
£ 48BREE %43,958,939/8 7T
W FHERER RERIE
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HIEFE  EEKRE R
30,554,241 8 (ZE2—Hh&F:
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 24. [EWWRAEATIFHRIA
2020 2019
—_EEHE —E-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Gross carrying amounts 4EEREE 1,236,756 1,303,402
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEREG (1,236,756) -
- 1,303,402

The amounts due from related companies represent
trade related balances from two related companies. One
of the related companies is controlled by Dr. Suek Chai
Kit, Christopher (“Dr. Suek”), the father of Mr. Suek Ka
Lun, Ernie, and another one is held as to 52.47% by the
trustee of a discretionary trust of which the immediate
family member of Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie is one of the
discretionary objects. The Group’s credit term of 30
days has been granted to the related companies.

As at 1 January 2019, amounts due from related
companies amounted to HK$2,433,094.

The following is an ageing analysis of the amounts
due from related companies, net of loss allowance
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

FEURRRE R B RURIE MR BE AR
B8 B 7 BRI AS iR o H i —
BABHEAGREL (BB L)
RERBEENRR) EF) M5
—XEAR BB EEEN
REANFEES2.47 % 0 MEEE
BEENERRKERERSBER
mAZ— AEERRREATRE
T30HZEEH-

R_E—hE—HB—H EKEE
EBONTFRIEA2,433,09458 7T

UTFARREHRBHEEZAH
2H2ZBWRE AT RIE
BIRRE) ZRE Do

2020 2019
—EEHF ZE-NEF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Over 180 days #BiB180H - 1,303,402
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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24.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group's
amounts due from related companies balance with
gross carrying amount of HK$1,303,402 which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$1,303,402 has been past due 90 days or
more and is not considered as in default based on the
satisfactory settlement history of the related companies,
and thus no allowance for ECL is provided.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group has agreed with the related companies on the
repayment schedules of the outstanding receivables
but the related companies continued to default in
repayment upon partial settlement of the outstanding
balances. Thus, the management of the Group
considered that the credit risk on related companies had
significantly increased and credit-impaired in view of
the understanding of the business update of the related
companies, an impairment loss of HK$1,236,756, which
represented the remaining gross carrying amount, was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Details of impairment assessment of trade related
amounts due from related companies for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note
41.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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FEAEEREE 241,303,402 TH
HIE> BMERREHAE A
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Short-term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash held by the Group and bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less.
As at 31 December 2020, bank balances and short-
term bank deposits of approximately HK$22,102,000
(2019: HK$6,981,000), HK$2,729,000 (2019:
HK$3,226,000), and HK$8,019,000 (2019: HK$98,000)
were denominated in USD, HK$ and RMB respectively
and bank balances of approximately HK$69,000 were
denominated in Euro (“EURO") as at 31 December
2019, the currencies other than the functional currency
of the respective group entities.

Furthermore, included in the short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
amounts denominated in RMB of approximately
HK$110,416,000 (2019: HK$123,161,000), which are
not freely convertible into other currencies.

The bank balances and short-term bank deposits carry
interest rates with a range from 0.1% to 2.5% (2019:
0.1% to 2.5%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment of short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note
41,
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2,729,0008 7w (ZE— N .
3,226,0007 1) 528,019,000/ 7T
—ZT—HHF 98,0008 2
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#4969,00078 0 2 IRTTEE RN —
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

26.

B % R H MR RRIE A R
FEst IR
UTARREHFRESEAN
#5285 RIE R E D
o

2020 2019

—ECFEHF —E—hEF

HK$ HK$

T =

0 - 30 days 0&30H 46,307,321 50,325,121
31 - 60 days 31260H 17,421,917 6,965,381
61 — 90 days 61290H 11,043,614 3,063,315
Over 90 days #B4E90H 9,680,938 3,352,350
84,453,790 63,706,167

Accrued expenses and other payables  FE&t 5% & E {th FE S =18 39,054,836 36,440,585
123,508,626 100,146,752

The credit period ranges from 90 days to 120 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are within the credit
timeframe.

Trade and other payables of approximately
HK$4,361,000 (2019: HK$3,958,000) and HK$141,000
(2019: HK$498,000) were denominated in RMB
and USD respectively, the currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities, as
at 31 December 2020.

Rental deposit received of HK$370,000 in respect of the
non-cancellable operating leases with a related party as
disclosed in note 39 is included in other payables as at
31 December 2019.

EEHNFIOREI120H KE
BEEHERHFEREEEEE LU
F{RFT A T TIBEIR S (T o

A CECEFE+_RB=+—H"
A 8#94,361,0005E T (ZE—H
£ © 3,958,000%8 70) K2141,000%8
7T (ZTZE—H4F 1 498,000 7T) 2
B REMENRIEDUAR
MRETTE MEBEKHET
JEEREE BB INEE K

MYSE3OFmIRERLEE — BB AL
PT5T AL BY A B] HUSH 48 = 1 B WY
MR 12 £370,0008 T E T A
R ZE-NEFE+ZR=+—HZ
H A RIES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HHE&E
2020 2019
—E-EE —E—hEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Lease liabilities payable: FEHEEaE
Within one year R—ER 8,949,086 6,452,993
Within a period of more than one BE—FERBEME
year but not more than two years BVHARE R 9,166,052 6,088,746
Within a period of more than two BEmEENBERE
years but not more than five years HEREA 2,564,782 8,585,066
Within a period of more than i h FREIEA
five years 32,669,758 33,504,809
53,349,678 54,631,614
Less: Amount due for settlement with & : RRBI&EIE F5R
12 months shown under current 891218 B R E H8
liabilities BiEIA (8,949,086) (6,452,993)
Amount due for settlement after RIERBSERETIRN
12 months shown under non-current 1218 3 & Z| HB (B2 =x 18
liabilities 44,400,592 48,178,621

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant

DRRAEE B RN INEG K Z 5
WEBENEERRHNT

group entities are set out below: X .
2020 2019
“EIEEF —E-NE
HK$ HK$
AT B
Denominated in HK$ against RMB B TR AREEE 36,050,889 36,560,280

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 4.38% to 5.38%
(2019: from 4.38% to 5.38%,).

FHEaFEFRMIINET ST S G
FFIEANF438%F5.38% (=
— N 4.38%%E5.38%) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

28.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

BHNER

2020 2019

—_EEHE —E-NEF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Contract liabilities from Trading Business 2R B B ZE BN AN AR 474,481 685,883
Contract liabilities from Music and REBERIRE TN

Entertainment Business sH8E 552,917 552,917
Contract liabilities from Manufacturing 2K B 8435 & 5 & 275

and Sales Business BHEE 9,437,305 3,396,802

10,464,703 4,635,602

As at 1 January 2019, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities was HK$3,330,271.

Contract liabilities are classified as current liabilities
because the Group expects to settle them within 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a deposit before the printing
products delivery, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised
on the specific contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit. The Group receives a 10% to 30% deposit on
acceptance of orders for trading of printing products
from certain customers.

When the Group receives a deposit before the
completion of concert and show, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the specific contract exceeds
the amount of the deposit. The Group receives a 10%
to 30% deposit on from certain customers when the
contract for concert and show signed.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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BEREREEA3,330,27187T°
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S AIEBRENHERES
BB BEEMIEECANRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

28.

29.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

When the Group receives a deposit before the
manufacturing of printing product commences, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
receives a 10% to 50% deposit on acceptance of
manufacturing orders from certain customers.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities.

28.

GHNRE (@)

HAREEPREER EREBE
WEzT & BIER Y & 4B IG BF
EEfGHat EEMETEY
MR W G BB AE
EREETELANIIRETER
U EY10% E50%R95] & ©

TRITR A F RSB R mE
B REEENEE.

HK$
BT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B#E_E-_ZEHF+_°-_HA=+—H
LHEE
Revenue recognised that was included in STAFT SN B EGR
the contract liabilities balance at [
the beginning of the year 4,635,602
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_ZT—-hAE+-A=+—H
LEEFE
Revenue recognised that was included in ARV ENBEGR
the contract liabilities balance at BRI
the beginning of the year 3,330,271

AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

30. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 30. EBft—REAEABMRIEA
2020 2019
ZEZEE “E-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Carrying amount that is repayable: FEEEREE !
— within one year ——FR 48,402 165,848
— over one year but less than —BB—F e mE
two years 44,427 45,807
— over two years but less than —BEmEEL N EE
five years 116,627 112,376
— over five years —BRAF 62,307 110,986
271,763 435,017
Less: Amount due for settlement B —EREIREERIE
within one year (shown under meaeEET
current liabilities) F7) (48,402) (165,848)
Amount due for settlement after —F R IRERENRIE
one year 223,361 269,169
The amount is unsecured and fixed-interest bearing at ZERIBEAEIRFR  -ZEEEF
a range from 18% to 20% per annum (2019: 18% to ENF18%E20% (ZE—HE:
20% per annum). The related company is controlled FEFFEI18%E20%) 5T B o 5%
by Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, who is a director of the BATHANASERERMITE
Company. ] o
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31. BANK BORROWINGS IRITEE
2020 2019
ZEZEE “E-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Secured bank borrowings BIRRRITEE 79,786,671 92,168,478
The carrying amount of bank BEREREERERZ
borrowings (shown under current RITEEZREE
liabilities) contains a repayment on FoREhadET
demand clause: FR)
— Within one year ——FNRN 58,092,799 41,923,771
— Within a period of more than —BE—FErEBE
one year, but not exceeding REES=NEE IS
two years 21,693,872 13,577,523
— Within a period of more than —BEMFEETBIE
two years, but not exceeding HEEREB R
five years - 36,667,184
79,786,671 92,168,478
Less: Amount due within one year B RREBEET
shown under current liabilities FIRZ—FRN
EEEEY Q] (79,786,671) (92,168,478)
Amount due after one year —F BT HIE - -

Details of the pledged assets for the secured bank
borrowings are disclosed in notes 15 and 16.

The secured bank borrowings carry interest at Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") plus 1.25% to
2.5% (2019: 1.25% to 2.5%) per annum.

BIRBIRITEENIRIREEEES
RMsE15 161 E -

BEEFRTEEREEBIRTE
= E (BEERTRERE) I
1.25%F2.5% (ZE—HF :
1.25%%F2.5%) 2 FFEFE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

32.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)
assets recognised and movements thereon during the
current year and prior years:

For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated
financial statements, certain deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities have been offset. The following is

32, RERIE

UTFARAEFERBEFERS
ZEBRIERIE (BR) EEUKR

HEH)

TLAR AR S

MBRERME 5T

RIEMIAE B M IRIER T & [JE
BHEHE UTH/HREAEND

the analysis for reporting propose: A

2020 2019

—EEHF —E-NEF

HK$ HK$

#HIT BIT

Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 333,359 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAR (9,044,502) (8,091,205)
(8,711,143) (8,091,205)

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

32.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 32. IRIEFRIB (48)
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) MTFARKREERBEEERESS
assets recognised and movements thereon during the ZEIEIFIERIE (BE) EEUR
current year and prior years: HEE) .
Change in
fair value of
Accelerated financial ECLon
tax Tax assets financial
depreciation losses at FVTPL assets Others Total
BRER
BATE
1A SHEE
TRBEEN 2T
MERHITE MEEE ATEEY z8E1E Htr oh
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B B B B B B
(Note)
)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-hF—FE—H (3,598,867) 6,267,750 (6,106,654) - (7,170,174)  (10,607,945)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (NE) BALFRH
for the year (1,997,803) (1,688,842) 1,688,842 - 4,476,744 2,478,941
Exchange adjustments ERAZ - - - - 37,799 37,799
At 31 December 2019 RIZ—N&
+ZB=1+—H (5596,670) 4578908  (4,417,812) - (2,655,631)  (8,091,205)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (E) BAXERR
for the year (105,487) (4,417,812) 4,417,812 918,434 (1,304,246) (491,299)
Exchange adjustments ERHEE - - - (128,639) (128,639)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZE
+ZB=1+—-H (5,702,157) 161,096 - 918,434 (4,088,516) (8,711,143)

Note: As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the deferred tax liabilities
“others” are arising from the revaluation of investment
properties upon change of use of certain premises from
owner-occupation to leasing out for rental income and the
temporary difference arising from the revenue recognised over
time from manufacturing and sales of printing products for
PRC subsidiaries under HKFRS 15.

Mt -

RIBETRFR-_ZT-NF+Z
A=+—H ETERESEHAM)
DRETYENRZRBNERES
HAE BRI S WA R IREY)
FETEMRES  MERZEE
RIRBEEBYHREEDH 1558
PEE b MRk E PRI E AR
ENRIE B iS il EM W m i E
Ho
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

32.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$349,855,000 (2019: HK$280,501,000) available
to offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$976,000 (2019: HK$27,751,000) of the tax losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$348,879,000
(2019: HK$252,750,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unused tax losses
of HK$7,902,000 (2019: HK$16,149,000) that can be
carried forward for five years from the year in which
the losses arose. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$77,996,000 (2019: HK$79,198,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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RERERR RER T HIKHE R
KomFlz st R AREEE
#97349,855,0008 ¢ (ZE—H,
£ :280,501,000587T) c KEEE
ThAE4976,000 T (ZE—H
& :27,751,00087T) 2R E
EREDEIERIEEE BN B
AR EFRE M ERE
BRI TS5 E548348,879,0007% 7T (—
T — N4 252,750,000 7T) FE
RIELERMIBEE st AKX AR
TEE5487,902,0005& T (Z&E—H,
£ 116,149,000 7T) » BRAEE
OHEEESEEREEB A F-
HAhEE o R4S E o

RGP E 2SR ZE PEKH
BAEBH_ZEENF—FB—HiE
BEEY 2 m A Bk 2 IR B AN TE
HOF o B 72 2 52 B o] 428 &) 0 B S
B AR aFMEL 2 RIFE
R RO BEERFEERK
B BERA B] B A% AR 85 (o] » B ar fm R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_S_SHE+_A=+—BLEE

33.

34,

SHARE CAPITAL 33. &7
Number of shares HKS$
Shares of HK$0.01 each S0%0.018 TTHIRZ (R i 3vg 5 4=! BT
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2019, RNZZ—nF—H—
31 December 2019 and 2020 H-Z&—NFEK
TETEE
+-A=+—H 50,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
At 1 January 2019, A - NEF—H—
31 December 2019 and 2020 H-ZZE—NEFxk
_ECEF
+-A=+—H 253,639,456 2,536,395

There was no movement in the Company's share capital
for both years.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 February 2014, a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was approved by shareholders
of the Company and adopted by the Company. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on the date on which the
Share Option Scheme is adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares of the Company. Additionally,
the Company may, from time to time, grant share
options to outside third parties for settlement in
respect of goods or services provided to the Company.
Details of the share option scheme are disclosed in the
directors’ report of this annual report.

No share options have been granted since the adoption
of the Share Option Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

35.

Cumulative exchange differences in respect of
the net assets of the subsidiary reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on loss of

“ETEFF+ZR=1+—HIFE
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 35. HE—RMBAR
On 28 March 2019, Dream Class Limited (“Dream RZE—AEFE=ZB=Z+N\H"
Class”) and Grand Prospects Finance International Dream Class Limited (I'Dream
Limited (“Grand Prospects”), which are both wholly- Class]) REZPHBEBRERA
owned subsidiaries of the Company, and Kwong g (lE#ExR)) BAEEKRABZEE
Da Enterprises Limited (“Kwong Da"), the ultimate WEBAE) RIBESEEREALT
holding company of the major shareholder of Sichuan (THZE | > W) BRERMERR
Yinghua Real Estate Co. (“Yinghua"), entered into a NE (THERME)) TEREY
confirmation deed for the settlement and completion RRERNE)) 5] LR
arrangement for the disposal of Star Rank Limited NAE B miRE S EStar Rank
("Star Rank”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dream Limited (T'Star Rank] > Dream
Class which holds 16.67% equity interest of Yinghua, Classe 2 BB T HiFHFH
to Kwong Da. Grand Prospects signed a loan agreement EEME16.67%MHE) 24
with Kada Capital Investments Limited (“Kada"”), which ARG EH - EREHESE AN
holds 83.33% equity interest of Yinghua, to provide KEEREAR (TESE)) ((FHH
a 2-year loan to Kada with an amount equal to the FEEHE83.33%RH) =7
outstanding consideration payable of RMB21,693,205 B LnESRH—%%
(equivalent to HK$25,523,825 at the date of BEEERNHAZNRBARKE
transaction) bearing 10.5% annual interest. Upon 21,693,205 (MRS ERHHEE
signing of the loan agreement, the disposal of Star Rank 1025,523,825%8 ) WM FHE
is completed on 23 December 2019 and Dream Class FOBENZEI105%E %
ceased control on Star Rank since then. ERtZE % HE&EStar Rankit —
ZE—NF+ZBEZ+=HEK’
mDream ClassE & FRFiE B
Star Rank & ¥ # o
HK$
BT
Net assets disposed of: HEZEESE !
Equity instruments at FVTOCI FRHMEEWARATEIRZ
RAETA 14,679,744
Bank balances SR1T4EER 1,232,670
Other payables HMEMRIE (2,999)
15,909,415
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—KWBEAR 2 -
Consideration KB 26,756,495
Net assets disposed of HEZEEZE (15,909,415)

BERZNBARNEEFEB KD
EMNEERMHZNBEAT
WA RIIBDEZ RAER

control of the subsidiary =58 960,888
11,807,968

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRERAFE .
Consideration 1B 26,756,495
Less: Bank balances disposed of B HERAERRENETRN (1,232,670)

Loan granted by the Group (Note)

IRITHEER (H/32)

(25,523,825)
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35. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

35. HE—XMEBAE (&)

Note: The outstanding consideration is settled by the loan granted Wiz, AZARBEEAEREENE
by the Group. Details of the loan grant is disclosed in note 23. REE B - EREBHBEBERME
2395 o
The results of Star Rank for the period from 1 January Star RankitZZ—hF—B—H
2019 to 23 December 2019, which have been included E-NAFE+IZAZA+= EJJ:
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other Hﬁ BHESR (Bt AREER
comprehensive income, are as follows: Hth2EmWARERP) 0T :
HK$
BT
Loss from the operation of Star Rank and R B £8 & Star Rank Kz
its subsidiaries HI B A BEE (18,377)
Gain on disposal of Star Rank (included in H €& Star Rank M9 U 25
other gains and losses) Gt AH M = & E518) 11,807,968
11,789,591
During the year ended 31 December 2019, Star Rank BHE_Z—NF+HA=4+—

and its subsidiaries contribute operating cash outflows
of HK$18,377 to the Group.

36. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

All of the Group's properties held for rental purposes
have committed tenants for the next one to three years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
contracted with tenants for the future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

H thEE > Star RankEEMWEBA
SAANERERMKERES R
18,377/87T
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

36. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 36. WEHE (B
(Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued) EBEEAERBAN (&)
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are HHIET 2 RAGIBRERWAERE
as follows: wmr
2020 2019
ZEIEHE —E-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FRN 3,661,724 4,691,272
In the second year FHF 3,552,000 4,440,000
In the third year =4 2,072,000 1,110,000
9,285,724 10,241,272
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has RREFHAR AEBREHEH %
contracted with a related party of HK$9,176,000 (2019: FEATIMARREHRENR
HK$9,990,000) for the future minimum lease payments. 9,176,000 7T (ZE—NF :

9,990,000787T) 5749 ©

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. BEXEIE
2020 2019
—EBIEE “E-NE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Capital expenditure contracted for MU TRIBEFTABRE
but not provided in the consolidated 47 & BA F5 3R 7= R 2
financial statements in respect of: EHEZEARS

— acquisition of property, plant and —BEYME -KREX&

equipment 5% 1 2,491,735 20,302,233
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the ORSO Scheme)
and the MPF Scheme established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO
Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme
were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO
Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after 1
December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by the
employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at a rate of 5% of
the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of
service with the Group.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the local municipal government
of Shenzhen. The subsidiary is required to contribute
5% of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no
significant forfeited contributions which arose upon
employees leaving the schemes before they are fully
vested in the contributions and which are available to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group in the
future.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of
HK$2,135,822 (2019: HK$9,214,162) represent
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the plans.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)  Save as disclosed elsewhere in the notes 24 and
30 of the consolidated financial statements, the
Group has entered into significant transactions
between related parties and subsidiaries of the

39. FAEALRS

(a) KBEmaMBHMRMT24R
0HE i Ty PR R & S
AEED EARRAIREEA
TRMERARET NIE

Company as follows: AR5
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Rental income (Note) HzHA H5E) 1,110,000 4,440,000

Expenses relating to BIHAE B AR

short-term leases (Note) (Ht3%) 3,858,087 657,343
Finance costs (Note) BB A (H5E) 62,349 96,425

Note: The transactions were carried out with related
companies which are controlled by Dr. Suek.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other

et  ZEXBTHEBEE LI
Hll 2 BEAB#EIT

(b) FEEEASZIRIM
UTRESKEMEIEE

members of key management during the year BABRFERNZEHBN
was as follows:
2020 2019
=L LEYS —s—he&
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Short-term benefits EHAER 5,984,775 6,809,378
Post-employment benefits BER B R 90,000 125,760
6,074,775 6,935,138
The remuneration of directors and key executives EERTETHABZH
is determined by the remuneration committee BT BN S B g @R
having regard to the performance of individuals AETZRBETIHZEEE
and market trends. TE ©
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. EXEREERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in REBSEHEAMUBEREAEHR
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern ETSEEAEFSELSE RS
while maximising the return to owners through the ﬁé’ﬁ—; B 4 B (8 T8 K M 7 - >
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. EEIRSEA ALDHR-
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, $$l2=’q$7ﬂﬁaﬂz (B8 3F
which includes amount due to a related company and MIEE30% 319 Rlig 58 ﬁ\:g:
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 EFER_E—NF+B=+—
disclosed in notes 30 and 31, respectively, net of cash AZEN—XREEEA B HIE KRR
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners TEE NGRS AESEBE &
of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves. KABBEAEANEGEERD (B1ER
AT 1) 4B R
The management of the Group reviews the capital rEEZEEBEBEERTEARRE
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the B EHNZEBEEANANLEASE
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital. KRB Z AR REER FEBE L
The Group will balance its overall capital structure THRE BRI MD RETHED
through new share issues, repurchase of shares and the ELoREEEEHERERET AL
issue of new debt or the redemption of the existing o
debt.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from REEERERIKE FFEEHIT
prior year. g o
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 41. EMTH
Categories of financial instruments ERITHEZER
2020 2019
ZEIBE “E-NE
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Financial assets EMEE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BiBHMEEWRARZ
AT EIERZRATR 17,854,928 17,854,928
Financial assets at FVTPL FRBEmEATEIRS
TREE 23,059,714 64,833,700
Financial assets at amortised cost BREBENATEEREE 392,436,272 444,076,605
Financial liabilities ERBE
Amortised cost BIHp A 215,742,246 204,663,722
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and other receivables and deposits, loan to a joint
venture, loans receivable, trade related amounts due
from related companies, short-term bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables and
accruals, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, amount due to a related company, bank
borrowings and lease liabilities. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The directors of the Company manage and monitor
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. In addition,
certain trade receivables, bank balances, short-
term bank deposits, trade payables of the Group
are denominated in RMB, USD, HK$ and EURO,
the currencies other than the functional currency
of the respective group entities as disclosed in
notes 22, 25 and 26 respectively. Approximately
25% (2019: 24%) of the Group's total revenue
are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity making
the sale, whilst almost 13% (2019: 13%) of
costs are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entity’s
functional currency.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, directors of
the Company monitor foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group’s intra-group balances do not form
part of the net investment in foreign operations.
The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated intra-group balances which have
been eliminated in the consolidated financial
statements of certain subsidiaries of which the
functional currency is HK$ and RMB at the end of

41. TR (48)
HEEEEIEEERBE (8)

5 EBE ()
() EBEEELE G

FEBEEEBGSGR BN
BINEH B BB — B
DoBRETHERSHR
UBTRARE RN
ERETHE QB
G 75 ¥R I By DASK
Bt ENEBEBERNIR

the reporting period are as follows: [ERERINE
2020 2019
—EEHE —EF—hHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net amounts due (to) from (FET) FEWLAE]
companies denominated BARERETEHE
in RMB against HK$ B ERIE (1,064,826) (885,000)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are approximately as follows:

Lease liabilities

HEaRE
2020 2019
—ECEE —E-hE
HK$ HK$
BT BT

A B LU B 1 2 B
BRI A E R RS

RZ B REESIUWT
Monetary assets Monetary liabilities
BREE BBaR
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEF E-NEF ZBI%E _FNE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT

USD against HK$ ~ ETRABTT - -
HK$ against RMB BT R AR 36,050,889 36,560,280
RMB against HK§  ARBRERT = -
EURO against HK$  Blt 287 = -

48,386,000 38,139,000 141,000 498,000
2,729,000 3,226,000 - -
8,019,000 98,000 4,038,000 3,958,000

69,000 - - -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with
USD, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the USD/HK$ exchange rates.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 10% (2019: 10%) increase and decrease
in functional currency of respective group entity
against relevant foreign currencies (other than
USD) and all other variables were held constant.
10% (2019: 10%) is the sensitivity rate used
and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items, and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 10% (2019:
10%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax
loss for the year where functional currency of
respective group entity strengthen 10% (2019:
10%) against foreign currencies. For a 10%
(2019: 10%) weakening of functional currency of
respective group entity against foreign currencies,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the result for the year.

41. £FT A (8)
HEEEEIEBEREE (B

ISR (1)

) EHESE (8
SELE D17
R 1 38 7T BE R B % T
o AEMBMRET B
Y EEF G HREAE
AEH o

T E A — ) E P

BHENERSE I
EERBEREINEGE (R
Et) A EREEI0% (Z
T—HE10%) 28R
EoFrABRIELEXA10%
TE—NE 10%) 0 ]h
EEE T EEXD A

B EaBEH HHED
MREFEUNEAEZER
BEEERIER  IMEX
HIB10% (ZE2—HF .
10%) SEAEBENIR
SHRZHBEERE T X
T MITENERSE
ZHHEE M RINEFHE
10% (ZE—HE 1 10%)
ZERT RERREE
A FTIE N o 818 B & &

BERZNEEB RN

%

ZEI10% (ZE—NF:
10%) > B R EFEXEHF
BHEEBHERZFE-
Impact of Impact of Impact of
HK$ EURO RMB
BTZEE Btz NRB2ZEE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2020 —EEF
Increase (decrease) in loss  FEESEIEM GRL)
for the year (2,782,000) 5,800 332,000
2019 —Z—NEF
Decrease in loss for the year — FEERE5#ER /D (2,783,000) - (322,000)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk primarily relates to variable-rate short-
term bank deposits, bank balances and bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk relates primarily to the fixed-rate loans
receivable, amount due to a related company,
interest-free loans to joint ventures, amount
due to a non-controlling shareholder of the
subsidiary and lease liabilities as at 31 December
2020 and 2019. The Group has not used any
derivative instruments in order to mitigate its
exposure associated with fluctuations relating to
interest cash flows. However, the directors of the
Company monitor interest rate exposure and will
consider other necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.

Total interest revenue/income from financial
assets that are measured at amortised cost during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is
as follows:

41. TR (48)
HEEEEIEEERBE (8)

15 B % (48)
(i) FFEREEZR

RIEZEFER_ZT—N
F+H=+—H > &&
BARZZIEEMNEMEXER
Kigﬂ&éhﬁﬂﬁﬁ

CIRITTREBRRIBITESE
W% FEBNTASETE
HTFEERKER BN —
KEEABRE AT E
ENBIZREERKE
T—KWBAB —%IEE
BREZFBUR_-EZ
ZEF_ZE—-—HAF+H
—+—HBHWNHESEHEEE
ZRFEHERR AE
B EKXAEATTETAR
AR A T R RIRE R
ERIERZ AR R
$”T§$W¥ﬂ7ﬂ
g 0 I R RS TE 8 28 K

2 E R E R R REE
thErRITE
REBEE_Z-_ZER-FE

—hE+ZRA=+—H1
FE > REZREBHRAG
BEZEMEEZMBW

= WMABENT
2020 2019
—E-EHF —EF—-h=F
HKS$ HKS
BT BT
Interest revenue ) B U &=
Financial assets at HEEN AT EZ
amortised cost THEE 6,756,759 8,491,405
Other income HA A
Financial assets at BEIE A ES
amortised cost ETMEE 1,237,216 1,343,276
Total interest income FIEWALEZE 7,993,975 9,834,681
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(1) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest expense on financial liabilities not
measured at FVTPL during 31 December 2020
and 2019 is as follows:

41. TR (48)
HERAMEEEEREE (B)

45 E g (48)

(i)  FIEEE (&)
REBEE_E-_ZFERKR_F
—hWE+-_B=+—HLt
FE CUWIFEBERER
TEHEZEREENER

R
2020 2019
—_E_EHE —E-NE
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities HEIEN AT E 2
at amortised cost TRBE 2,509,165 3,308,290
Sensitivity analysis BURUE DT

The management of the Group considers that
the Group’s exposure to future cash flow risk
on variable-rate bank balances as a result of the
change of market interest rate is insignificant and
thus variable-rate bank balances are not included
in the sensitivity analysis.

The impact on the Group's cash flow is due in
part to its sensitivity to interest rate which has
been determined based on the exposure to the
variable-rate short-term bank deposits and bank
borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of asset outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease is used which represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonable possible change in
interest rates.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2019:
50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-
tax loss for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$227,000 (2019: HK$287,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
short-term bank deposits and bank borrowings.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect
of listed equity investments in Hong Kong and
unlisted equity investments in Hong Kong and
PRC as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses on listed equity
investments in Hong Kong and unlisted equity
investments in Hong Kong and PRC during
the year have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period. For sensitivity analysis purpose,
the sensitivity rate considers at 10% in the
current year. If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 10% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$3,416,000 (2019:
HK$6,905,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments.
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B 5 RE (4)
(i) FIEEE )
BRED T (&)

WHZEEFH FES0EE
B (ZTE—NES50EE
) M AE EM e KR
AL E KEBKEZRK
MEEIESEM /B8
227,000 T (ZE2—h5F:
287,00087T) - BRAE L
FTERBLAEEMRERRE
BRIRITER RIRITEERN
RS 7 MK E o

(i)  BMERSEE

N_ETEFERZE—AN
FE+-_RB=+— E $$
EEMEBN EHRAE
EUREARTEMNIELE
TRALEEARZERA

AN
oo O
AN

BRE DT

FRAEBNLTRERE
UkEBEBRPEIFLS
RAEREZBRE DTS
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REEEE LB E D
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and deposits, loans receivable,
amounts due from related companies, loans to joint
ventures, short-term bank deposits and bank balances
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’'s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets, except that the
credit risks associated with loans receivable is mitigated
because they are secured over properties located in
Hong Kong.

Trade receivables, contract assets arising from contracts
with customers and trade related amounts due from
related companies

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an internal credit rating system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Except for (i) debtors who are credit-
impaired; (i) customers with outstanding significant
balances exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant
contract assets; and (iii) trade related amounts due from
related companies, which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables and
contract assets are grouped into four internal credit
rating buckets (namely: low risk, medium risk, high risk
and doubtful) based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to repayment histories for recurring
customers and current past due exposure for the new
customers. The contract assets have substantially the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same type of contracts. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables, contract assets arising from contracts
with customers and trade related amounts due from
related companies (Continued)

Loss allowance of HK$710,090 (2019: HK$229,681),
HK$855,504 (2019: HK$68,705) and HK$1,236,756
(2019: nil) have been recognised in respect of trade
receivables, contract assets and trade related amounts
due from related companies, respectively, as at 31
December 2020.

Loans receivable

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, interest rate offered
to customers and collaterals received. Monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group has
concentration of credit risk as 52% (2019: 49%) of the
total loans receivable was due from two (2019: two)
independent third parties of total of approximately
HK$31,719,306 (2019: HK$27,836,932). Loans
receivable are assessed individually.

The directors of the Company estimate the estimated
loss rates of loans receivable based on historical credit
loss experience of the debtors as well as the fair value
of the collateral pledged by the customers to the
loans receivable. For those loans receivable secured
by properties located in Hong Kong with aggregate
amount of HK$27,429,434 (2019: HK$41,097,461),
the directors of the Company considered the loss given
default is low in view of the fair value of the collaterals
are higher than the carrying amounts of the respective
loans receivable. The Group has not recognised a loss
allowance for the loans receivable as a result of these
collaterals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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41.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loans receivable (Continued)

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting
to HK$27,760,367 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$24,221,603), which is secured by the entire
issued share capital of immediate holding company
of the borrower and guaranteed by the son of the
ultimate beneficial owner of the borrower. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, the counterparty of
this loans receivable defaulted in repayment and no
settlement was made for the outstanding balances
during the year. The management of the Group
considered that the credit risk on the loan to this loans
receivable was significantly increase during the year. In
view of this, the management started to assess the ECL
on this loans receivable changing from 12-month ECL
to lifetime ECL during the year ended 31 December
2020. In view of the probability of the default and
the recoverable amount of the pledges, which is
expected to be insignificant, an impairment losses of
HK$26,549,287 (2019: HK$1,211,080) was recognised.

The remaining gross carrying amount of loans receivable
amounting to HK$6,312,852 (2019: HK$3,615,329)
is unsecured. During the year ended 31 December
2020, there are counterparties with gross carrying
amount of HK$3,958,939 defaulted in repayment and
no settlement was made for the outstanding balances
during the year. In view of the probability of the
default, an impairment losses of HK$3,828,939 (2019:
HK$130,000) on these credit-impaired debtors during
the year ended 31 December 2020. Also, the Group
has recognised HK$176,015 (2019: HK$7,500) loss
allowance on the remaining loans receivable.

Total loss allowance of HK$30,554,241 (2019:
HK$1,348,580) has been recognised in respect of these
loans receivable during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loan to a joint venture

The directors of the Company continuously monitor the
credit quality and financial position of the counterparty
and the level of exposure to ensure that the follow-
up action is taken to recover the debt. Loan to a joint
venture is assessed individually. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the management of the Group
considers that the credit risk on the loan to this joint
venture is significantly increased. In view of this, the
management started to assess the ECL on loan to
Reliance Partner changing from 12-month ECL to
lifetime ECL during the year ended 31 December 2019.
In view of continuous non-repayment from Reliance
Partner during the year ended 31 December 2019, the
management considered that Reliance Partner is credit-
impaired, an impairment losses of HK$3,222,914 was
recognised.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of
the Company make individual assessment on other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The directors
of the Company believe that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of
other receivables and deposits. The Group assessed the
ECL for other receivables and deposits were immaterial.
Thus no loss allowance was recognised.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Short-term bank deposits/cash and cash equivalents

The Group only transacts with reputable banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and therefore the directors of the
Company consider the risk of default is low. The Group
uses 12-month ECL to perform the assessment under
ECL on short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents individually based on the average loss rate
by reference to credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. The Group assessed the ECL
for short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents were immaterial. Thus no loss allowance
was recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
ME-2-SEL-A=+-HILEE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

41. ERT A (@)
SRR EIEEZEREBER (48)

1= B /m 52 B B B 5T 1S (48)

AEBREEEEHTEEIELU
TER

Trade receivables/
contract assets/trade
related amounts due

Internal credit rating  Description from related companies  Other financial assets
BakKmE/
BHEE/
FWREAL
ABEETR it B 7 HMRE HthEMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
AR HFEFNENRRRED B BEFARNE SHREBREERE- +ZERBRHEEHE
AUREEHE
Medium risk Debtor has past-due balance overdue less than 90 days Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
as at year end not credit-impaired
hER BEHEARERERRBRDN0E NG HEREERE- TZERBRHEEHR
FHREERE
High risk Debtor has past-due balance overdue more than 90 days Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
as at year end not credit-impaired
S BHEARERERBIRREIBIOH B REER LHREBEERE- +ZERRHEEHE
AHREEHE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
initial recognition through information developed not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
jea EERBREMERERLURBEEEM FHRERESEE- FHEERESRE-
BBNHAIBERAEZER) REREEHE REREEHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired
B HRETEHEECRLREEAE HEREERE- L HRBEREERE-
BHREERE BHREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
MisH BRBEBTNESARARENHBRES MHEREE MHBEREE

FEBEFRABRINEARENE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
—ECTE A=+ —ALEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets (trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, loan to a joint venture, loans
receivable, trade related amounts due from related

ERMIA @)
MHERAREEBRREER (B

1= B /m 52 B B B 5T 1S (48)

TREFMIIETEERTREE
(B 7 B WmkIa ~ E g W skia
K] -BERF—REEQRE
BWER BRFAERTEZHE

companies, short-term bank deposits, cash and cash B IENWSHETESF - HEE
equivalents), contract assets and rental deposits, which HEEE) ANBEENESES
are subject to ECL assessment: E’J TE%‘J_W“ MO ZETHMEE
BETTRE BB -
External Internal
credit credit 12-month or
ratin ratin lifetime ECL ) Gross carrying amounts
NEEEFAE ABEETA T-ERR2BRNEESS i
2020 2019
ZEI%E “E-E
Notes HK$ HK$
k4 BT BT
Financial assets at REERSHENEREE
amortised cost
Trade receivables B ElHIE 2 NA (note 1) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 88,830,776 101,037,022
TER (Ht1) HRAEEFE IR
/nofe‘ 7) Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 24,510,754 36,727,670
(Hzt1) 2EFRBEESE (BRIF0)
Other receivables and deposits ~ EtEMFIAR:TE: 2 NA (note 2) 12-month ECL 23728722 7,503,748
TER (Hz2) +ZERRHEERSE
Loan to a joint venture ERF-RAEAT 19 NA Loss Creditimpaired 3222914 3222914
TER B EEHE
Loans receivable feREm 23 NA Low risk 12-month ECL 27,429,434 42,446,041
TER BER +ZERRHEERE
ngh risk 12-month ECL 2,353,913 26,488,352
BER +-BAEHEESE
Loss Credit-impaired 31,719,306 -
5g EEHE
Amounts due from related i UNGIERE] 24 NA Low risk Lifetime ECL = 1,303,402
companies TER BER PHRBEESSE
Loss Credit-impaired 1,236,756 -
B8 EEHE
Short-term bank deposits RHBTER 25 BBB N/A 12-month ECL 25,394,158 23,493,383
TEH +ZERRHEERE
Cash and cash equivalents BERRE%E 25 BBB N/A 12-month ECL o 48,705,688 67,075,460
TEH +ZERRHEERE
Aorabove  N/A 12-month ECL ‘ 154,760,263 141,645,826
AFIM b TER +-BAEHEESE
Other items HitEE
Contract assets HRUBE 18 NA (note 1) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 34,689,173 12,841,864
TER (1) 2HRAEEFE &R
Low risk Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 1,694,755 6,454,499
EER PETRBEESE (BRIF0
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. EEEIE (48)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Rk EFE ()

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERME

Notes: W

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Apart of debtors with credit-
impaired and customers with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract assets, the
Group determines the ECL on these items collectively with
reference to past default experience for recurring customers
and current past due exposure for new customers.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers in relation to
its Group's operation. Customers with outstanding significant
balances exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract
assets with gross carrying amounts of HK$24,510,754 (2019:
HK$36,727,670) and HK$1,694,755 (2019: HK$6,454,499)
respectively as at 31 December 2020 were assessed
individually. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and contract
assets which are assessed collectively as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

EREZBBRERGHNEE
FEREXRBEBYBREENS
IR F T EREFAMEE
BEAEHRERF -FREHIRE
ERENEBBERRRRERZEKR
#EERB182,500,0008 T EE K
BREGNEEN REAMZSF
EERBESREBMEEZFNETE
BUERAMERRFEBIAN
THRERETERIGEERRE

rAREBEERREEZ I
Do AEBMAEEEREREN
ERRARABEETR KEE

BEAREHRIBIB2,500,0008 TR
ERGHNEENREMAENR S
TEE+_RB=+—8%3 A
24,510,754 (ZZ2—NF .
36,727,670 7T) k1,694,755 7T
(ZB—1L4E : 6,454,499387T) K9
HERBETEBF G TRIEMH
EREREWRERENEE
TEITFERIE-NAE+ZA
=t+—HER2PEREEERE R
HIREERE) £8:TH NEE
B OB EEE
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. T H (B
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEAGESIEEEREE (B
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R #EFEE (48)
Notes: (Continued) Kiz# : (&)
1. (Continued) 1. (4&)
2020 —E-TF
Gross carrying amount BRI 42%8
Average Trade Contract
loss rate receivables assets
Internal credit rating REBEETR FiEsia=x B 2R RIE BHEE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Low risk 16 LB 0.1 19,183,942 14,279,728
Medium risk R B 2.81 56,919,816 11,528,584
High risk = Ek 9.09 12,727,018 8,880,861
88,830,776 34,689,173
2019 —E—-NE
Gross carrying amount IREAR%R
Average Trade Contract
loss rate receivables assets
Internal credit rating REBE E TR TR B EWRRIE BHEE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Low risk ERE 0.1 12,714,976 3,222,643
Medium risk el 1.5 46,887,611 3,678,738
High risk = ER 3.75 41,434,435 5,940,483
101,037,022 12,841,864
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. EMT R (88)
HERAMEEEEREE (B)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

1= B /m 52 B B B 5T 1S (48)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Kiz# : (&)
1. (Continued) (#8)

The estimated loss rates on trade receivables are estimated
based on historical credit loss experience of the debtors and
study of other corporates’ default and recovery data from
international credit-rating agencies including Moody's and
Standard and Poor’s, and are adjusted for forward-looking
information (for example, the forecasted default rate expected
by the international credit-rating agencies) that is available
without undue cost or effort. The contract assets have the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same type of contracts would apply the same internal credit
rating and loss rate. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors and contract assets is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
provided impairment allowance of HK$422,968 (2019: net
reversal of impairment allowance of HK$68,838) and net
impairment allowance of HK$854,089 (2019: net impairment
allowance of HK$68,923) for trade receivables and contract
assets respectively, based on the collective assessment during
the year ended 31 December 2020. Net impairment allowance
of HK$287,122 (2019: net reversal of impairment allowance
of HK$19,866) and net impairment allowance of HK$1,415
(2019: net reversal of impairment allowance of HK$218) was
provided respectively for trade receivables and contract assets
which are assessed individually with outstanding significant
balances exceeding HK$2,500,000. Net impairment allowance
of HK$318,385 were made on credit-impaired debtors during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

B BUWRIENES BER A
REEBERR N TEAAF M EB A
BREEEREERKEBIREE
TR (BERENRELER)
LMY E MR BEL KU 85
EITRMEMMGE LIHBET
B8 % B A G 7 B EUS RO AT HE
MER (IMEFRE SRR
WA FRREOE) FLUEE-
BHNEERMERERESNNES
PR IE BB R EARR A BB 4
B W fE AR R B PR (S E 5T AR &
BEX-BEEENERZER
DUFE (R B3 R ELBS FE AR =R
BHNEEMNRBER -

REEZZZEF+"A=+—
HIEFE AEERBEE-ZTZ
TE+ZHA=+—HILEEN
RIEERTEME S EKRRIE
EREHNEEDRRBRERE
4229688 (CE—H4E : BE
5 0P 4868,8388 1) RIAE
P 1575 58854,089%8 T (T —Ah
F O RERE$5868,92378T) ©
BB EE M REBEEAER
#B83#82,500,00038 TV & 5 FE UL
FEREHEES IRV BERE
JF88287,12287w T2 —NF
BE R S D] 7558 19,86678 7T)
KR EEE TR 4158T (T
—NE R EREECFEE218
BT MEBE_Z—-HAE+A
=+—HLEEE RHBEEER
B A FE YR BR 7R 7E S R (B 3 45 03 4B
318,385% T 0
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. EFMTAH (@&

Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEAMEIEEERBE (48)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEEfER B EFE (48)

Notes: (Continued) Kiz# : (&)

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the 2. MAXEERMEEMS  &~&E
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk EEAAREN T EEERR S
has increased significantly since initial recognition. BRI T ESEM.
2020 —EEF

Not past due/
no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
3k
B HA R EE EEBIRT Mzt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT AT
Financial assets at R A 2
amortised cost ERIEE
Other receivables and deposits HMEWRIER] & - 23,728,722 23,728,722
2019 “Z—NF

Not past due/

no fixed

repayment
Past due terms Total

K@,/
%81 58 = E T EERR HmEt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

Financial assets at RS E
amortised cost EREE

Other receivables and deposits HMEWRIER] & - 7,503,748 7,503,748
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. EFMTAH (@&
Financial risk management objectives and policies BMERAEESEEEREE (&)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERER B EFFEL (B)
The following table shows the movement in allowance for TRITHESEKRZTIE 5L
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables, contract BEE - BHZTT— a8 G ME
assets, loan to a joint venture and loans receivable. IWEH BN TEERE S BIERE
2o
Amounts Loan to
due from Trade Trade ajoint Loans Loans
related receivables receivables Contract venture receivable receivable
companies under under  assets under under under under
under lifetime lifetime lifetime lifetime lifetime 12-month lifetime
ECL ECL ECL (not ECL (not ECL ECL ECL
(credit- (credit- credit- credit- (credit- (not credit- (credit-
impaired impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
g Lt R27ES
BEBE  RRGEE  REANEE  RR2OES FEFE  ®t_fR %728
(BHR REEH 5155 EEEH BER BHEESH AL
EEHME (BHR (RiEH (RUEHR EEHME) (RitH (BHR
BIERAY EEHE) =EHE) EEHfE BIERHY EEAME) EEHE
EWEE  JIRNER  FIRNESR JIERE  BRF-X BIERRY BIERRY
SE FElIE EWE RHEE RERT FEHER &R @it
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
B BT B B B B B B
As at 1 January 2019 RIE-NE-F-B - 14013910 2,416,781 218921 - - - 16649612
Changes due to financial RR—A—HEDIN
instruments recognised SHTALRNES
asat 1 January:
- Transfer to credit-impaied ~ —HEZEEEHE - 2,709 (2,709) - - - - -
~ Impairment loss recognised ~ —BHER i ESE - 318,385 - - 3,222,914 - - 3,541,299
- Written off s - (14,335,004) - - - - - (14,335,004)
- Impairment loss reversed -BELHESE - - (2,412,901 (218.921) - - - (2,631,822)
New financial assets originated ~ ¥7iERE SRIEE - - 2,324,197 287,626 - 1,348,580 - 3,960,403
Exchange adjustments ERHE - - (29,649) - - - - (29,649)
As at 31 December 2019 RIZ2-NE
+-B=+-A - - 2,295,719 287,626 3222914 1,348,580 - 7,154,839
Changes due to financial RR—A—HREZN
instruments recognised SHTARRENES
as at 1 January:
- Transfer to credit-impaired ~ —EEEFERE - - - - - (1,341,080) 1,341,080 -
- Impairment loss recognised  ~BRERAEHE 1,236,756 - - - - - 30378226 31,614,982
~ Written off —HisH - - - - - - - -
- Impairment loss reversed -BELRESE - - (2,303,774) (287,626) - (7,500) - (2,598,900)
New financial assets originated ~ ¥1ERESHEE - - 3,013,864 1,143,130 - 183,515 - 4,340,509
Exchange adjustments ERBE - - 88,112 - - - - 88,112
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEE
+ZB=+-H 1,236,756 - 3,093,921 1,143,130 3222914 183,515 31,719,306 40,599,542

Changes in the loss allowance for amounts due from
related companies during the year ended 31 December
2020 are mainly due to the credit risk on related
companies had significantly increased and credit-
impaired in view of the understanding of the business
update of the related companies, an impairment loss of
HK$1,236,756 was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F E&£EZERERAT
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im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
are mainly due to:

41. TR (8)
HEEEEIEBEREE (B

15 B /m 52 R B B 5T 1S (48)

HE _ECEBEER_E—NE
+ZA=+T—HLEFENEZE
KBRS IR I AR B Bm

(Decrease) increase in lifetime ECL

2IABIEERHRE (L) HEm

2020 2019
k- g 23 —Z-NE
Not credit- Credit- Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired impaired impaired
KRR BHR ENbE SR
EERE EERE EEHE EEHE
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
AT BT BT BT
Trade receivable with a gross carrying BEAKBEZEHR
amount HK$2,709 (2019: HK$nil) EEREZERE
defaulted and transferred to WEIE (REREES
credit-impaired 2,709Ew (Z2—A
£ BHT)) - - (2,709) 2,709
Settlement in trade receivables BERABERA
with gross carrying amounts 1%137,764,6927%
HK$137,764,692 (2019: HK$149,470,618) 7t (ZZ—HE:
since beginning of the year 149,470,618%7T) 2
B Z A (2,303,774) - (2,412,901) -
Impairment allowance recognised for FERMEEEERE
new originated trade receivables with WA (REREE
gross carrying amounts HK$113,341,530 113,341,530
(2019: HK$137,764,692) during the year 7t (ZZ—fE -
137,764,692 7))
BZBEER 3,013,864 - 2,324,197 318,385

During the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment
loss of HK$318,385 was recognised for credit-impaired
debtors who were defaulted in repayment continuously
and no settlement was made for the sales to this debtor
during the year. The Group has taken legal action
against these debtors to recover the amount due.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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im e SRR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for contract assets during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are
mainly due to:

41.

ERMTA (&)
HHERREREBERER (6)

ER B R BEFEG (&)
e
+-B=+—HLEE A0HE

(Decrease) increase in lifetime ECL

Not credit-impaired

SRS EEIE (AL 1B

FHREERE
2020 2019
—EEHF —E—hEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Settlement in contract assets with gross BE#)iEAE E4EREES
carrying amounts HK$19,296,363 19,296,363 7T (&
(2019: HK$15,938,099) since the — L& 1 15,938,099/
beginning of the year T ZENEE (287,626) (218,921)
Impairment allowance recognised for R HIZRESLY
new originated contract BHE EREES
assets with gross carrying 36,383,928 7T (&
amounts HK$36,383,928 — L5 119,296,363
(2019: HK$19,296,363) during 70)) R 2 BERE
the year 1,143,130 287,626

Changes in the loss allowance for loan to a joint
venture during the year ended 31 December 2019 are
due to the continuous non-repayment from Reliance
Partner, the management considered that Reliance
Partner is credit-impaired and an impairment losses of
HK$3,222,914 was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2019.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
ME-2-SEL-A=+-HILEE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. ERTH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEREEEEREBEER (8)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEEfER B EFE (48)
Changes in the loss allowance for loans receivable REE_ZE_ZEEKR_T—NEF
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 +ZA=+—HILEFE BKE
are mainly due to: MG EEEEFSFTERAN .
Increase in lifetime ECL Increase in 12-month ECL
Credit-impaired Not credit-impaired
2 HATEI = B8 + AR EREEHEEM
BHREERE FEREERE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIEEF =y S ZEIEF —E-hE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT AT BT
Loans receivables BEAOREREEY
with gross carrying REGREZER

amounts HK$31,719,306 B MRREES
(2019: nil) defaulted and 31,719,306 7T

transferred to credit- CE—NF D)
impaired 1,341,080 - (1,341,080) -
Settlement in loans BEMEE TR
receivable with a {B7%150,0007 7T
gross carrying (ZTBE—hE. T
amount HK$150,000 2 EWE™N
(2019: nil) since
beginning of the year - - (7,500) -
Impairment allowance AT IR 2B
recognised for BEAE
— loans receivable — BFVREEER
with gross EE%A31,719,306
carrying amounts BT (CE—N
HK$31,719,306 (2019: FT) ZRK
nil) since beginning of 6N
the year 30,378,226 - - -
- new originated — FRFNERE LR
with gross carrying H{E#2,353,913

amounts HK$2,353,913 B (TE—N
(2019: HK$26,488,352)  £F : 26,488,352
during the year 7T) - - 183,515 1,348,580
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

41.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The estimated loss rates on loans receivable are
estimated based on historical credit loss experience
of the debtors and study of other corporates’ default
and recovery data from international credit-rating
agencies including Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s,
and are adjusted for forward-looking information (for
example, the forecasted default rate expected by the
international credit-rating agencies) that is available
without undue cost or effort.

As disclosed in note 23, the loans receivable with
gross carrying amounts of HK$31,719,306, which are
originated since year ended 31 December 2019, was
defaulted in repayment and the management of the
Group considered that the credit risk on these loans
receivables was significantly increase and also started
to assess the ECL on these loans receivables from
12-month ECL to lifetime ECL during the year ended 31
December 2020. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group has recognised impairment loss of
HK$30,378,226 on these loans receivable.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE£EZERBRAT o

41.

ERMTA (&)
HHERREREBERER (6)

1= B /m 52 B B B 5T 1S (48)

R EMZESHBERBERE
BARBREEEBRERKER
EEFRIEE (BEBEBERIRE
W) BHEMEEELN RO
BREVBT TR R b 5t > WRL B A
8% a4 5055 77 R p] BXAS BRI AT
EMEN (PIMNERE ST Ri%
B TRRIZ QL R) fFHH

o

UM 23 E  BEHEZS
—hE+_B=+—HLEEER
FRIAEERE B 431,719,30678 7T
ZEWERBHEXNENR MAE
BEEEERAZEEKRERNE
ERBEABLEARREBEE_Z
TEF+_B=+—HBILEEJ
MR ZERWERZBIRES
BERI2ELBHEESETG
A2AEBREERE-HE_Z
_EFE+_A=+—HLEE>
AREBEMZZRINE RES
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

41.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring and
maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents secured
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation

of bank borrowings and ensure compliance with loan
covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and lease
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the earliest time band regardless of the probability
of the financial institutions choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other financial liabilities
and lease liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from prevailing
market rate at the end of the reporting period.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE£EZERBRAT o
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rEBEERBESTRB X
PHEEBREREFIEMZIR
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BEFEEMFESTABRE
REBRBZTE EEERZER
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TR o
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ir e IR R M sE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_S_SHE+_A=+—BLEE
- = ==
41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. ERTH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEAGESIEEEREE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BB R ()
Liguidity tables BB
Weighted Carrying
average 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
effective Within to to to Over undiscounted 31 December
interestrate  On demand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows 2020
-k 33
REEHR +Z8
mETsH =8R8 - k3 RénmE =t-A2
RIRA= BEX =faRR E-F EfE ERE fedchik:3 it IREfE
% HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS
AT b i AT AT b i AT
2020 -3
Trade payables BRREITE N/A - 84453790 - - - - 84453790 84,453,790
FER
Other payables and accruals HtERFERE N/A - 34419532 - - - - 34419532 34419532
TER
Amount due to a non-controlling ER-FHBAR NA 16,810,490 - - - - - 16810490 1681049
sharefolder of a subsidiary —2FEREENE TER
Amount due to a related company Ef-REEATNE Note 1 9,757 16,514 60,813 81,084 162,168 67,570 397,906 271,763
il
Secured bank borrowings BRRRAEE Note2 79,786,671 - - - - - 79786671 79,786,671
Li:2)
Leases liabilities HESE Note 3 - 2,824.328 8,312,843 10,907,768 6,934,389 47,584,000 76,563,328 53,349,678
M3
96,606,918 121,714,164 8,373,656 10,988,852 7,096,557 47,651,570 292,431,717 269,091,924
Weighted Carrying
average 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
effective Within to to to Over  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate On demand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows 2019
k3
RER +2A
METH =R - ME Reng =t+-Hz
BRAE BRER ={EAR E-E EWE E5E BRLE et REB
% HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
AT AT oo AT AT AT o AT
2019 “E-nE
Trade payables EREMNTEA NA - 63,706,167 - - - - 63706167 63,706,167
TER
Other payables and accruals EftETEREN B NA - 3163743 - - - - 31637243 31637243
TER
Amount due to a non-controlling ER-FHBAR NA 16716817 - - - - - 16716817 16716817
shareholder of a subsidiary —AFRRRETE TER
Amount due to a related company E—-REEAFTE Note 1 116,063 19,514 81,056 93,841 182,439 128,383 621,29 435,017
il
Secured bank borrowings BERRAEE Note2 92,168,478 - - - - - 92168478 92,168478
i)
Leases liabilities HEBE Note 3 - 2,332,953 6,406,227 8,082,579 13,216,592 49,840,000 79,878,351 54,631,614
&3
109,001,358 97,695,877 6,487,283 8,176,420 13,399,031 49968383 284,728352 259,295,336
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_ZZHE+-B=1+—HIFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liguidity tables (Continued)

Notes:

(1) The amount due to a related company carried at interest rate

ranging from 18% to 20% (2019: 18% to 20%) per annum.

(2) The secured bank borrowings carry at HIBOR plus 1.25% to
2.5% (2019: HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.5%) per annum.

(3) The incremental borrowing rates for lease liabilities ranging
from 4.38% t0 5.38% (2019: 4.38% to 5.38%).

41.

ERMIA (@
R LB 2 B IR KB ()

TEE LR (B)
TEEL K (5B)

Mzt -

(1

BN —REAEQABDREBEENTF
18%ZE20% (ZE—NFE  18%E
20%) 2 FFEE B o

BIEIRIRITIEE #ﬁ*%fﬁﬁﬂ%
FEMI.25%ZE2.5% (ZE—Hh
F BB RTEZEREM 25%E
2.5%) ZHEMEEE -

HEaBEWIE %%‘%I ENHFE
4.38%Z%E538% (ZE—NF
4.38%%E5.38%) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

41.

—eopEtsp=+—ALERE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are included in
the “on demand” time band in the above maturity
analysis. The carrying amount of the bank borrowings
amounted to HK$79,786,671 (2019: HK$92,168,478)
as at 31 December 2020. Taking into account the
Group’s financial position and assets pledged for
the bank borrowings, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the financial
institutions would exercise the discretionary rights
to demand immediate payment. As at 31 December
2020, the directors of the Company believed that
such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements. The aggregate principal and interest
cash outflows amounted to HK$80,914,086 (2019:

41.

ERMIA @)
MHERAREEBRREER (B

FEEZmEE (B)

N _ETEER_EFE-NE+TZ
B=+—HWHEREKREEKRR
ZIRTEEE EMEEE S HH
STATRER ) 2 HEESEEAR 7R
—ETEF+"H=+—H" iR
TREENIREEL 479,786,671
BT (ZE—N% 192,168,478
BiT) o EEEBAERZ B EAR
REFIRITEEERZEE &
NEVEFHEE > MEEE R 5E
TERNBEEERBIRAR R
E-EF+"_HA=+—H &R
AEFMHEE ZERTEELSR
BERmEEETENRHEE
B R _BE_ZTFE+_HA=+—
H xR MNERSRHBHEIES

HK$97,436,502) as at 31 December 2020. The 80,914,086 (ZE— N F :
repayment schedule based on the scheduled repayment 97,436,502 7T) - RIBFATEEMN
dates is set out below: BHE EMEERUT -
2020 2019
ZEIEHE —EF-NE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FR 61,786,187 43,071,093
Over one year but less than two years BB —EB/DRME 19,127,899 15,529,762
Over two years but less than five years BBEMEEB/DRAE - 38,835,647
80,914,086 97,436,502
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

41.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

Fair value measurement and valuation process

The financial controller of the Company is responsible
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
key inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent
it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engaged independent qualified professional
valuers to perform the valuation. The financial controller
works closely with independent qualified professional
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs to the model. Financial
controller reports to executive directors semi-annually to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in determining the fair value of various
assets are disclosed below.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

41.

ERMIA (8
EMIAZATEHE

L S R A S B A T S 0B
SREEATEZER

R FEERIGEES

AARMBREEEEEBEEN
BEDERATEFETEZHA
i o

REstEERARINATER:
AEBAEHPIESHIER TEA
TR BRI REESE —
MBAMBER AEEERE=
BB AEREEGHEMETHE
B-UBRERBISEREE
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BRESFFRORITESFERU
EREEATERINRE-

BEMEETRAERTER AN
fGEH AR ER R AMRNER
MRS E -

Annual Report 2020 £ #§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR M B Rk R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_S_SHE+_A=+—BLEE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and key inputs

41. TR (48)
SMIAEZAFEHE (@)

FEEBFEE I RELD
FlEHEZEMAEZ AT

/]

AEEFDEMEENKREHR
BATEFFE TRILERE
EREETMEELNTEREZE
B (LHEFRBGERMREE

WA o

used).
Fair value as at Fair value  Valuation technique(s) and
Financial assets 31 December hierarchy  key input(s) Sensitivity
SRBEE R+ZBA=+—HZAFE ATEES “ERTRIZBAZE BEE
2020 2019
“EIZF FNE
HK$ HK$
BT B
Investment in listed equity in Hong Kong 23,059,714 64,833,700 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
as financial assets at FVTPL market
PERBBBARATERZ AR EREMS E 2 EARE TER
FHEEZREBLINREAEE
Investments in equity securities 17,854,928 17,854,928 Level 3 Asset-based approach with key
established in Hong Kong, the PRC inputs of
and overseas measured at FVTOC|
BB2EWARATETR 2 £33 BEL  TEQANBER

ZRHBERIZ RAESRE

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3

during the years.

(i) Fair value of the underlying
assets of the investees; and

() BEEAMEBEE
NEE R

(i) Marketability discount of
19%

(i) 19%KFB T

A significant increase in
the comparable market
transactions price
used would result in a
significant increase in fair
value, and vice versa.
AR RTISR S ER KR
A BERATEXRE
L R2ZTR -

A significant increase in the
discount rate used would
result in a significant
decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.

WEEANELA - BHA
TEAETY  R2h
R o

FRER B~ B2 R FE3RE
I BB E 0
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. T H (B
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMIAEZAFESE @
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements B3R FEFAEZ R
Equity Financial
instruments assets
at FVTOCI at FVTPL
EB
Hh2 @A EBEE
BATEYER BATEYER
ZRAETH ZEMEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January 2019 RIZ2—hHF—F—H 26,253,472 6,651,180
Purchase of equity investments BAFBHEME2EmEA
at FVTOCI BATESRZRERE 6,281,200 -
Disposal upon disposal of RHE—BHRBABRHE
a subsidiary (note 35) (H5%35) (14,679,744) -
Realised loss in profit or loss BRPEEIR/HEE - (6,651,180)

At 31 December 2019 and 2020 RIBE-—NERZE_ZFE
+-BA=+—H

17,854,928 -

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value of
its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their fair
values.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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BAFEABZZHEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BHE_Z

42,

e

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 42.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

METBFEERRENS
AR

TR EEBNRELEFE
TERNEHFF BERER
FREEF METHFTELEN
BEABEENEWNRKRETRE
ERAERFRERERERT
WMOBEAMELIHRTRENEG

o
Amount
due to
a related Lease Bank
company liabilities ~ borrowings Total
FEff—=x
MEARAME HEaRE RITEE ek
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B B
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-hFE—F—H 457,812 61,295,313 86,807,056 148,560,181
Financing cash flows (note) MERERE W) (119,220) (8,878,658) 2,149,557 (6,848,321)
Finance costs REME 96,425 2,612,674 3,211,865 5,920,964
Exchange adjustments E R - (397,715) - (397,715)
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-NFE+ZB=+—H 435,017 54,631,614 92,168,478 147,235,109
Financing cash flows (note) RBERERE W) (225,603)  (11,850,898)  (14,828,623)  (26,905,124)
Finance costs REMAX 62,349 2,368,897 2,446,816 4,878,062
Additions HE - 5,039,321 - 5,039,321
Exchange adjustments B R - 3,160,744 - 3,160,744
At 31 December 2020 AZEEE+-A=1—H 271,763 53,349,678 79,786,671 133,408,112

Note: The cash flows in relation to repayments to a related company,
repayments for lease liabilities and bank borrowings and
finance costs.

M Bm—REEQASER -HES
BRRTEREREBNRESR
BUKRRBERA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE_ 2+ _"_B=+—HIEE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

43. XEMBATIZ*1E

AATHBATR _E-BER
= AEF-A=t+—B2H
1o

Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
TREMBERT
BaBRT/ B/ GEMEE
WEARHE B0 AT b BT ERESL TEBEH
2020 2019
—E_%F “E2NE
% %
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited BVI HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
FAREEERAR EBEYHE 10,0008 L@ % REER
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
RRERIBRAR &E HK$500,000 REER
deferred non-voting
1,000 & &R
500,0007%7¢
BRERELR
AIEEEARGERAT The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Testing of printing
(note 1) (&t 1) I registered capital products
AE1,000,0007 ER kit )
HfEE
WEDR (GRIN) BRAF The PRC HK$30,000,000 100 100 Label and paper
(note 1) (M 1) I registered capital products printing
30,000,000/ 7 RERARRAER
SRER
Chung Tai Printing (China) Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Property investment
Company Limited 5E HK$10,000 and development
FAEIR (FED) BIRAE deferred non-voting MERENER
1,000 0 & B
10,0007 7T
BRERELK
Chung Tai Smart Labelling Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Trading of label and
Company Limited 5E 1ETEEK printing products
RARERRBRAT EEREROM @
Chung Tai Printing (International) Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited B TETEBR RERR

hRENR (EFR) BRARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

43.

—ECE

—= =

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F+-RA=+T—HLFE

Effective percentage

43. TEMBATZF1E (@)

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KRTFBERT
BaeEs/ K&/ HMEE
WEARHE ML s BT ERESHL IBEH
2020 2019
—EIBE “ENF
% %
REFRKER (FI) BRAE The PRC HK$98,000,000 100 100 Label, packaging and
(note 1) (&£ 1) s registered capital paper products
98,000,0007 ¢ printing
HfEL BE 0K
AR RN
Delight Source Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
SUBRAR B 200,000 T & @A products
BEMRER
General Star Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Trading and
BEEXERAT B TETLER production of
surgical masks
BEREEMOS
Green Link Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Trading and
BHERERRAT B TETLER distribution of
surgical masks
BERNHEIMIOS
Profit Link Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Property investment
PAREEEERAH E#%  HK$2 deferred non-voting MERE
100BTEER
2B
ERZRRELR
New Box Mini Storage Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Provision of mini
RREMEBRAR &% HKS2 deferred non-voting storage services
100ETEBR REERIMBHEERE
28T
BEERRELR
Star Entertainment (Universe) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of artistes
2124 (3F) BRAR &8 TETSER management and

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2020 £ 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

43. TEMBATZF1E (@)

Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
FARMBERT
BaeEs/ K&/ HMEE
WEARHE ML s BT ERESHL IBEH
2020 2019
—EIBE “ENF
% %
Neway Smart Technology Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 RFID printing products
(International) Company Limited 55 10,0008 T & B and RFID label
REBERR ER) BRAT ERSVEORIERK
ESSEEE
Neway Star Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of music
HREREIRERAR BE 10,0008 75 & 8 i licensing services,
sales of music
albums and
investment holding
R LRS-
HESHERR
REER
Neway Star Artiste Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of artistes
Limited 5E 10,0008 LB BR management
MERESERERAT services
RIEEANEERS
Showtimes (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Organisation of
BERA G BRAF &% TETEER concerts and shows
EMEEERTE
Kingbay Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Securities trading
GRREBRAT &% VBT EER BERES
Fruitful Global Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
EEERERAT E 1ETEER products
BEDRm
Grand Prospects Finance Hong Kong HK$100,000 ordinary 100 100 Money lending
International Limited s 100,0008 LB K e
SR EERERAT
Sansible Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Trading
MERERAT BB 10,000 A& @k 8%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. FERBATIZFHIE (B

(Continued)

Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
FARMBERT
BaERT/ B/ EMEE
WEARHE ML s BTN BERESL IBEH
2020 2019
“EIEE “E-NE
% %
Supreme Cycle Inc. BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Property investment
HBRUEE 1ZT BBk MERE
TRETEEERMEREERAR The PRC US$20,000,000 100 100 Financial leasing
(note 1) (lf#3£1) M registered capital MEHE
20,000,000 7%
SRER
Zhongxing Guosheng (note 2) The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
REER (f7522) HE registered capital REER
AE2,000,00070
SRER
Zhongqing (note 2) The PRC RMB2,000,000 60 60  Property development
B (Bz2) I registered capital MEER
AE#2,000,0007T
SHRER
Zhongda Qingyuan (note 1) The PRC HK$230,000,000 100 100 Property development
hROBR (WiE1) I registered capital MEERE
230,000,000 75
HMER
BERPELSHEEXREER The PRC RMB5,000,000 100 N/A  Property management
AT (note 1) (B15#1) FE registered capital AEA and project
A 5,000,0007 investment
SMER WEEENEBRE
Notes: Bzt
) These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the (1) ZEMBABNFREZIINEEE
PRC. b
) These subsidiaries are domestic-invested enterprises (2) ZEMBRAB TR AREMILZA

established in the PRC.

The operations of all subsidiaries are carried out
principally in Hong Kong and the PRC.

B

FENBAINEBIERES
R BT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MR R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE

43.

“ECSETCASt—HILEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Exception for Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited,
which is directly owned by the Company, all other
subsidiaries are indirectly owned by the Company.

The above table only includes those subsidiaries
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results of the Group for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length. The deferred non-voting
shares, which are not held by the Group, practically
carry no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of
nor to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
relevant companies or to participate in any distribution
on winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the years.

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have non-controlling
interests:

Place of Proportion of

43.

FTEMBLARZF1E (8

SR RERIERARATEER
SIERERN FIEEMB R
SIFRARE BEER -

EREGEALADEZIAHEIE
%22;&1&%.2!&&?%,\1*%5}62&
EEFEETESONMER
Fle EERAR ﬁ?fﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’&ﬁ
RERBEHNBR IR BERER
EIER: GFERAEEFA) EE L

I A A E KR B R IEWA
BFABZRRERREBESHHEE
AIRRAEHNE LRI SR
BRE2EEMDIK

Pt /88 A B) 1S 6 48 B AR ) BF
BEEREAREE 2 EHES-

TREBTAEREAFERED
ZIFEEMBABFIE

establishment

ownership interests

and principal and voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests
Bt B R FFIERIEFATS
WEAEHE TEEHME BAEREERREEZILS SETIFZRESZEE Rt FERER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEFE “FEF ZBIRE “E-NE ZBEIEFE “FNF
HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT
Zhongging The PRC 40% 40% (129,944) (189,624)  (2,823,578)  (2,773,001)
hiE i
Individually immaterial subsidiaries - (1,174) (450,718) (450,718)
with non-controlling interests
BEFERERZ
BRAFEAKE RS
(129,944)  (190,798)  (3,274,296)  (3,223,719)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e SRR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFE

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE AT BAFEAR R ER
COMPANY
2020 2019
—E% —E-NE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZERE 42,671,966 42,671,967
Amounts due from subsidiaries AL EYNCIE = 781,859,603 791,147,417
824,531,569 833,819,384
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and H AR GRIE
prepayments Sl RFEMNRIA 253,607 197,075
Loans to joint ventures BTEERBIZEM - 50,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEBY 48,585,649 18,426,910
48,839,256 18,673,985
Liabilities afi
Current liabilities RENAaE
Other payables and accrued HMEMRIER
charges EstER 656,283 490,254
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT B [ A B Rk I8 109,256,304 86,531,949
109,912,587 87,022,203
Net current liabilities REEEFEE (61,073,331) (68,348,218)
Total assets less total liabilities WEEREERE 763,458,238 765,471,166
Capital and reserves BEAXRKHEE
Share capital (RN 2,536,395 2,536,395
Reserves Ei] 760,921,843 762,934,771
Total equity R AERE 763,458,238 765,471,166
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& A —
e TR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE S TE+ A=+ HILEE
44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44, ERABMERRR (B)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Wit
Reserves [ELi=
Capital
Share  redemption  Contributed Reorganisation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
RiVEE BErBRGEE BARR Bl REEHN szt
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
STy BT BT AT AT AT
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—FB—H 368,949,127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 265,196,381 757,561,368
Profit and total comprehensive FERHREENALE
income for the year - - - - 5,373,403 5,373,403
At 31 December 2019 RIZF-NETZA=1t—H 368949127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 270,569,784 762,934,771
Loss and total comprehensive rEFEREERSER
expense for the year - - - - (2,012,928) (2,012,928)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZE+ZA=+-H 368,949,127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 268,556,856 760,921,843
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Principal Properties

E LY/ S

At 31 December 2020
N _ETEF+_"_H=+—H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Group'’s effective

A. BREYE

Approximate

interest in gross Category of
Location the properties floor area Usage lease
FEERYEH B4 4EiEm
h 24 ZERER mE HR#® &R
(sg. m)
(FFHK)
Lot. No. 5378 IN D.D.51, 100% 4,859 Industrial Medium-term
G/F-2/F, 4fF, T2 lease
Chung Tai Printing Group Building FRERFEAY
No. 11 Yip Cheong Street,
On Lok Tsuen, Fanling,
New Territories, Hong Kong
EEMAMBEBRE T ENEBEHNSR
AR EBEARELE49515%
537855 ~ #h T F 218 K 44E
Yuen Long Town Lot No. 292, 100% 1,063.82 Commercial Medium-term
Units 21, 22, 23, 41 and 77 of EES lease
1/F and the whole of 3/F, FRAAFR AT
Hop Yick Commercial Centre (Phase 1),
No. 33 Hop Choi Street, Yuen Long,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BHERMATTEAS M E335%
BmEERL (—H) —8221-22>
B NRTITREAR=IEDE
TCEATI #h EE2925%
No. 1801, 15/F, 100% 175.66  Commercial Medium-term
Block 4, Yard 89, [EES lease

89 Jianguo Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the PRC

FREIE REAR & 22 B B8 895

895 f45E 12 15/ 1801 E
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Principal Properties

E LY/ S

At 31 December 2020
N _ETEF+_"_H=+—H

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR

B. HEXERPUE

SALE
Group'’s effective
interest in  Approximate Category of
Location the properties site area  Usage lease
TEBRYES
25 ZERED BOMBER AR AR
(sg. m)
(FAHR)
Two parcels of land designated 60% 5,853.40  Mixed Medium-term
located at Lot No. B19001-1*1 and Residential lease
No. B19001-2*1 of Villagers HREeEE FRHAFAXY

Committee of Lian Tang Village,
Dong Cheng Sub-district Office,
Qingcheng District, Qingyuan City,
the PRC

Mg (LS AR B E = 5 5 & BRI AT
MERERENRZEGZIEE LM
(Ot X 4R 52 55B19001-1* 158 Kz
585B19001-2*15%)
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Five Years Financial Summary

hEMBHE

RESULTS ¥§§
For the year ended
31 December
HE+-_A=+—HALEE
2016 2017 2018* 2019* 2020
TT—RE “E—tfF TR\ FE —E—fLE —EEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FERT FET FHET
Revenue Wz 562,911 515,534 592,626 560,585 532,674
(Loss) profit before taxation — BR#3 AT (E548) E A 86,724 52,092 (35,220) (24,994) (88,438)
Taxation I8 (12,720) (4,142) (3,004) (5,979) 1,121
(Loss) profit for the year AE (B518) &) 74,004 47,950 (38,224) (30,973) (87,317)
Attributable to: MR ALFEN :
Owners of the Company UN=IEZ =N 74,206 48,146 (37,922) (30,782) (87,187)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A (202) (196) (302) (191) (130)
74,004 47,950 (38,224) (30,973) (87,317)
=5 ==
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
As at 31 December
®“+-—B=+—8
2016 2017 2018* 2019* 2020
TENE Bt ZE—\EF¥ —EB—hEx —BCEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FERT FET FERT
Total assets BEEE 1,116,246 1,206,500 1,157,108 1,172,501 1,126,722
Total liabilities BEeE (202,412) (196,987) (229,826) (286,283) (296,794)
Total equity B 48%E 913,834 1,009,513 927,282 886,218 829,928
Equity attributable to L /N=IEZZ=DN
owners of the Company FE(L R 916,374 1,011,224 930,032 889,442 833,202
Non-controlling interests e (2,540) (1,711) (2,750) (3,224) (3,274)
913,834 1,009,513 927,282 886,218 829,928

The amounts for the year ended 31 December 2018 were presented

upon the application of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, which the
comparative financial information was not restated. The amounts
for the year ended 31 December 2019 were presented upon the
application of HKFRS 16, which the comparative financial information

was not restated.

REZE-E-N\F+_A=+—HILF
EZ A EBYEHREEREIR
REBHUZHREERF157EES] AL
BHBEEM I FAES  JCBE —F—N
FA A=A —HIEFEZZEIER
BEBUEHREFERF 167 EES AILE
HBEER I FAAES
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Neway Group Holdings Limited
PESEZRAMRAA

Chung Tai Printing Group Building,11 Yip Cheong Street,
On Lok Tsuen, Fanling, N.T., H.K.
BAMRMBEL YT ENEGE SRR ARENRISERKE

Tel E35E: (852) 26696111  Fax {HE.: (852) 2677 6556
Website #831t: www.newaygroup.com.hk
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Paper from
responsible sources
FSC

wwiscog  FSC™ C134852




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事之簡歷
	董事會報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收入報表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量報表
	綜合財務報表附註
	主要物業
	五年財務概要
	封底

